
Meeting of:  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: Tuesday, 17th October, 2017
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: ROCHDALE TOWN HALL, The Esplanade, 

Rochdale, OL16 1AB

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 4 - 7

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held 18th July 2017. 

6.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REVIEW 2016/17 8 - 16

To scrutinise details of the Annual Review of complaints made to the 
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman

 

7.  PROPOSED LOCAL POSITIVE RECRUITMENT CRITERIA POLICY 17 - 26

Public Document Pack



The Committee is asked to scrutinise a proposed Local Positive 
Recruitment Policy, prior to consideration by the Cabinet 

8.  FINANCE UPDATE REPORT 2017/18 27 - 48

The Committee is asked to scrutinise the Council’s financial position 

9.  COLLECTION FUND 2017/18 49 - 59

The Committee is asked to scrutinise the Council’s current Collection 
Fund position 

10.  MEDIUM TERM FINANICAL STRATEGY 2018/19 TO 2022/23 60 - 141

The Committee is asked to scrutinise the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

11.  REVENUE BUDGET UPDATE 2018/19 TO  2020/21 AND SAVING 
PROGRAMME 2018/19 TO 2019/20 

142 - 156

The Committee is asked to scrutinise the latest position regarding the 
Council’s Revenue Budget for 2018/19 to 2020/21, and Savings 
Proposals in order to meet the budget gap for 2018/19 and 2019/20 

12.  DISCRETIONARY FEES & CHARGES 2018/19 157 - 163

The Committee is asked to scrutinise the proposed fee and charge 
levels, by service, for 2018/19. 

13.  CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19 TO 2020/21 164 - 173

The Committee is asked to scrutinise the Capital Programme 
Proposals 2018/19 to 2020/21. 

14.  WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 174 - 179

To review the Committee’s work programme. 

15.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  



16.  REVENUE BUDGET UPDATE 2018/19 TO  2020/21 AND SAVING 
PROGRAMME 2018/19 TO 2019/20 - SAVINGS PROPOSALS 
APPENDIX 

180 - 226

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Membership 2017/18:

Councillor Sultan Ali (Vice Chair) Councillor Andy Bell
Councillor Robert Clegg (Chair) Councillor Michael Holly
Councillor Daniel Meredith Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Susan Smith Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Councillor Mohammed Zaman

For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson
Senior Governance and Committee Services Officer 
Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


 CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 18th July 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor Robert Clegg (Chair); Councillors Sultan Ali, Meredith, 
Robinson, and Zaheer.  Substitute Members: Councillor Cocks, Sullivan and 
O’Neill. 

OFFICERS:  D Wilcock (Interim Director of Resources), R Barker (Head of 
Workforce and Organisational Development), V Bradshaw (Assistant Director 
- Finance), K Mackenzie, M Jones, J Osbourne and S Shahid (Resources 
Directorate) J Rooney (Assistant Director - Information, Customers & 
Communities), N Holder, J Jones (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and Peter 
Gregory (Economy Directorate). 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillor Brett (Deputy Leader & Cabinet 
Member for Corporate & Resources). 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Holly, O'Rourke, Rush and 
Zaman.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
14 There were no declarations of interest.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
15 There were no urgent items of business.

ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
16 There were no items that required the exclusion of the press and 
public. 

MINUTES
17 DECISION:  That the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 14th June 2017 be approved 
as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

DIRECTORATE PLANS
18 The Committee assessed a progress update for the Corporate Plan 
2016/2019, Place Plan 2016/2021, Directorate Plan 2017/2018 as well as the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017/2018 to identify areas for inclusion 
onto the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny’s Committee’s Work Programme 
for 2017/2018.

DECISION: The updates be noted. 

CONTACT CENTRE PRESENTATION - AGYLISYS KPI UPDATE
19 CONTACT CENTRE PRESENTATION - AGYLISYS KPI UPDATE

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



The Committee received a presentation from the Contact Centre Manager and 
the Senior Customer Access Manager regarding the contact centre and 
Agylisys KPI update.  Members were advised of: 

 The key highlights for January – June 2017; 
 Key performance Indicators;
 Feedback from services and
 Priorities during July- December 2017.

DECISION:  The presentation be noted. 

4TH QUARTER PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2016/17- CORPORATE 
COMPLAINTS
20 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Acting Director of Resources 
which provided Members with a summary of corporate complaints and 
compliments received during the fourth quarter of 2016/2017. 

It was reported that there had been a reduction in the overall number of 
complaints received during 2016/2017 and the number of complaints received 
in the fourth quarter of 2016/2017 was considerably lower than corresponding 
period in 2015/2016. .  This was due to the establishment of a ‘Waste 
Strategy’ and the introduction of the weekly food waste and alternate recycling 
collections during the third quarter of 2015/2016.  Members were advised that 
there had been a marked initial increase in complaints but that the number of 
complaints received had continued to decrease throughout 2016/2017 as the 
process became established. 

DECISION:  The report be noted. 

4TH QUARTER PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2016/17- HEALTH 
RELATED ABSENCE REPORTING
21 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Acting Director of Resources 
which provided the fourth quarter and year-end health related absence figures 
to Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an 
assessment against Directorate and Corporate targets.

The fourth quarter health related absence figures, indicated that the overall 
level for the Authority was 2.46 days per FTE, of which 1.39 days (56%) were 
due to long term sickness absence.  The days lost for the same period in 
2015/16 was 2.53 days per FTE of which 1.45 days (57.3%) were due to long 
term sickness absence.

The year-end absence figures indicated that the overall level of days lost for 
the Council was 8.33 days per FTE compared with 7.62 days per FTE for 
2015/16. Of the 8.33 days lost per FTE, 5.25 (63%) were lost to long term 
absence, and 3.07 (37%) to short term absence. This was similar to the 
breakdown of days lost in 2015/16 where 4.59 days per FTE (60%) were long 
to long term absence, and 3.03 days (40%) to short term absence.

Page 5



The Committee discussed the establishment of a Member’s Scrutiny Study 
Group to examine the Council’s Health Related Absence Policies and agreed 
that the clerk contact Members to request nominations and arrange a meeting 
to evaluate and scope the project. 

DECISION:  (1) The report be noted;
(2) The Clerk be requested to seek nominations for the proposed Health 
Related Absence Policy Study Group and arrange a meeting to evaluate 
and scope the project. 

REVENUE AND BENEFITS - PRESENTATION
22 The Committee received a presentation and scrutinised a report which 
highlighted the key priorities, challenges and changes within the Revenues 
and Benefits Service.  Members were provided with an update in relation to 
the following: 

 The scope of the Revenues and Benefits service;
 Key service priorities, challenges and changes; 
 Discretionary business rates/discounts and
 2017 budget business rate changes. 

In scrutinising the information contained in the presentation and report, the 
Chair requested that any future decisions made at the discretion of the Chief 
Executive and Leader in respect of the business related reliefs be reported to 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

DECISION: (1) The presentation and report be noted;
(2) The Head of Revenues and Benefits feedback any future decisions 
made at the discretion of the Chief Executive and Leader in respect of 
the business related reliefs.

BUDGET 2018/19 TO 2020/21 GUIDELINES, TIMETABLE AND PUBLIC 
ENGAGEMENT - PRESENTATION
23 The Committee scrutinised a presentation and a report of the Acting 
Director of Resources that had sought and received approval from the 
Cabinet, at its meeting on 27th June 2017 of the budget guidelines and 
timetable to be used in preparing  the detailed 2018/19 budget and provisional 
budgets for 2019/2020 and 2019/2021. 

The Committee were advised that the Council is legally obliged to set a 
balanced budget and the report established the planning process for the 
budget and detailed the assumptions used in the preparation of the budget to 
ensure they are agreed, reasonable and consistently applied by all services.

The budget forecast had been based on a number of assumptions, known 
levels of expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation of 
these assumptions was not expected to be finalised until 
November/December 2016. 

DECISION:  The presentation and report be noted. 

Page 6



CYBER SECURITY - PRESENTATION
24 The Committee received a presentation from the Senior Systems and 
Network Engineer detailing the Council’s Cyber Security Strategy. Members 
were advised of: 

 The motivations for cyber-attacks;
 The most common threat - phishing;
 The occurrence of cyber-attacks globally;
 Cyber-attack trends since 2005;
 The measures in place to protect the Council;
 Threats faced in 2017;
 How well vulnerabilities were managed;
 The WannaCry timeline and
 How well the Council rated and compared to other organisations. 

DECISION:  The presentation be noted. 

ASSET STRATEGY - PROGRESS REPORT 2016/17
25 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Planning and 
Development which provided the Committee with an update in relation to the 
implementation of the Council’s Asset Strategy 2016/2019.

DECISION:  The progress regarding the implementation of the Asset
Strategy Action Plan and the results against Key Performance Indicators 
be noted. 

WORK PROGRAMME
26 Members of the Committee considered the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme for 2017/2018. 

DECISION: – That the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Work 
Programme 2017/2018 be noted.

Page 7



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting Tuesday 19th September 
2017

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Corporate and Regulation

Report Author Carolyn Whitham
Public/Private Document Public

LGO Annual Review 2016-17

Executive Summary

1. The report provides Members with the Annual Review of complaints made to 
the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman (LGO) about Rochdale 
Borough Council in the year ending 31 March 2017.

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Members note the content of the report and Annual 
Review letter.

Reason for Recommendation

3. Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the 
Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised.  The Annual 
Review provides an overview of the effectiveness of the Council’s complaints 
procedures and customer satisfaction with Council services.

Key Points for Consideration

4. The Annual Review letter provides local authorities with the LGO’s 
assessment of the Council’s performance in complaint handling for the 
previous financial year.  In addition, the review also provides a general update 
on developments affecting the LGO.  

The Review shows the relatively small number of complaints received against 
Rochdale Council by the Ombudsman during 2016/17.  In total 40 complaints 
and enquiries were received, which is a reduction on the previous year when 
the total was 64.

The number of decisions made by the LGO differs from the number of 
complaints and enquiries received, as complaints may be received and 
decided upon in different financial years. 

Of 38 decisions made during 2016/17, only 7 complaints were subject to 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



4.1

detailed investigation.  17 complaints were referred back to the Council as 
premature to be considered under the Council’s own complaints procedure, 12 
complaints were closed after initial enquiries, and 2 complaints were classified 
as invalid, in that the complainant had either provided insufficient information 
or advised at an early stage they did not wish to pursue the complaint.  

Of the 7 complaints that were investigated, 6 were found to be upheld and 1 
was not upheld.  The LGO recommended remedies for 5 of the upheld 
complaints, all of which were accepted and implemented.  

Details of the complaints that were upheld can be found below. 

LGO Category Nature of complaint
Adult Care Services Information re care charges
Adult Care Services Standard of care and care fees
Adult Care Services Safeguarding procedures
Adult Care Services Assessment process
Environmental Management Waste collections
Highways Public footpath

In addition to Annual Review letters, the LGO also publishes an annual 
Review of Local Government Complaints, which includes a summary of 
complaint statistics for every Local Authority in England. Appendix 2 contains 
an extract from the review which highlights Rochdale Council’s performance in 
comparison with neighbouring authorities. 

As can be seen from the extract, the number of enquiries / complaints 
received by the LGO and the number of complaints decided in 2016-17were 
lower for Rochdale MBC than for any of the neighbouring authorities.

Alternatives Considered

None.  Information is provided annually by the Local Government & Social 
Care Ombudsman.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The total cost of agreed local settlements for LGO complaint decisions taken 
during 2016-17 was £1,904.36. A breakdown is shown below.  This is a 
reduction on the previous year when the total cost was £5,142.57.

Service £
Adult Care 1,804.36
Environmental Management 100.00
Total 1,904.36

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 
report.

6.

Page 9



Consultation

7. Not applicable.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Whitham, Tel: 01706 923508, 
carolyn.whitham@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 10



 

20 July 2017 
 
By email 
 
Steve Rumbelow 
Chief Executive
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 
 
 
Dear Steve Rumbelow, 
 
 
Annual Review letter 2017 
 
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGO) about your authority for the year ended 31 
March 2017. The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries received 
about your authority and the decisions we made during the period. I hope this information 
will prove helpful in assessing your authority’s performance in handling complaints.  
 
The reporting year saw the retirement of Dr Jane Martin after completing her seven year 
tenure as Local Government Ombudsman. I was delighted to be appointed to the role of 
Ombudsman in January and look forward to working with you and colleagues across the 
local government sector in my new role. 
 
You may notice the inclusion of the ‘Social Care Ombudsman’ in our name and logo. You 
will be aware that since 2010 we have operated with jurisdiction over all registered adult 
social care providers, able to investigate complaints about care funded and arranged 
privately. The change is in response to frequent feedback from care providers who tell us 
that our current name is a real barrier to recognition within the social care sector. We hope 
this change will help to give this part of our jurisdiction the profile it deserves.   
 
Complaint statistics 
 
Last year, we provided for the first time statistics on how the complaints we upheld against 
your authority were remedied. This year’s letter, again, includes a breakdown of upheld 
complaints to show how they were remedied. This includes the number of cases where our 
recommendations remedied the fault and the number of cases where we decided your 
authority had offered a satisfactory remedy during the local complaints process. In these 
latter cases we provide reassurance that your authority had satisfactorily attempted to 
resolve the complaint before the person came to us.  
 
We have chosen not to include a ‘compliance rate’ this year; this indicated a council’s 
compliance with our recommendations to remedy a fault. From April 2016, we established a 
new mechanism for ensuring the recommendations we make to councils are implemented, 
where they are agreed to. This has meant the recommendations we make are more specific, 
and will often include a time-frame for completion. We will then follow up with a council and 
seek evidence that recommendations have been implemented. As a result of this new 
process, we plan to report a more sophisticated suite of information about compliance and 
service improvement in the future.  
 
This is likely to be just one of several changes we will make to our annual letters and the 
way we present our data to you in the future. We surveyed councils earlier in the year to find 
out, amongst other things, how they use the data in annual letters and what data is the most 
useful; thank you to those officers who responded. The feedback will inform new work to 

Page 11

Phipps Carolyn
Text Box
 Appendix 1



provide you, your officers and elected members, and members of the public, with more 
meaningful data that allows for more effective scrutiny and easier comparison with other 
councils. We will keep in touch with you as this work progresses. 
 
I want to emphasise that the statistics in this letter comprise the data we hold, and may not 
necessarily align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include 
enquiries from people we signpost back to the authority, but who may never contact you. 
 
In line with usual practice, we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our 
website. The aim of this is to be transparent and provide information that aids the scrutiny of 
local services. 
 
The statutory duty to report Ombudsman findings and recommendations 

As you will no doubt be aware, there is duty under section 5(2) of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 for your Monitoring Officer to prepare a formal report to the council where 
it appears that the authority, or any part of it, has acted or is likely to act in such a manner as 
to constitute maladministration or service failure, and where the LGO has conducted an 
investigation in relation to the matter. 

This requirement applies to all Ombudsman complaint decisions, not just those that result in 
a public report. It is therefore a significant statutory duty that is triggered in most authorities 
every year following findings of fault by my office. I have received several enquiries from 
authorities to ask how I expect this duty to be discharged. I thought it would therefore be 
useful for me to take this opportunity to comment on this responsibility.   

I am conscious that authorities have adopted different approaches to respond 
proportionately to the issues raised in different Ombudsman investigations in a way that best 
reflects their own local circumstances. I am comfortable with, and supportive of, a flexible 
approach to how this duty is discharged. I do not seek to impose a proscriptive approach, as 
long as the Parliamentary intent is fulfilled in some meaningful way and the authority’s 
performance in relation to Ombudsman investigations is properly communicated to elected 
members.   

As a general guide I would suggest: 

 Where my office has made findings of maladministration/fault in regard to routine 
mistakes and service failures, and the authority has agreed to remedy the complaint 
by implementing the recommendations made following an investigation, I feel that the 
duty is satisfactorily discharged if the Monitoring Officer makes a periodic report to 
the council summarising the findings on all upheld complaints over a specific period.  
In a small authority this may be adequately addressed through an annual report on 
complaints to members, for example.   

 Where an investigation has wider implications for council policy or exposes a more 
significant finding of maladministration, perhaps because of the scale of the fault or 
injustice, or the number of people affected, I would expect the Monitoring Officer to 
consider whether the implications of that investigation should be individually reported 
to members. 

 In the unlikely event that an authority is minded not to comply with my 
recommendations following a finding of maladministration, I would always expect the 
Monitoring Officer to report this to members under section five of the Act. This is an 
exceptional and unusual course of action for any authority to take and should be 
considered at the highest tier of the authority. 

Page 12



The duties set out above in relation to the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 are in 
addition to, not instead of, the pre-existing duties placed on all authorities in relation to 
Ombudsman reports under The Local Government Act 1974. Under those provisions, 
whenever my office issues a formal, public report to your authority you are obliged to lay that 
report before the council for consideration and respond within three months setting out the 
action that you have taken, or propose to take, in response to the report. 

I know that most local authorities are familiar with these arrangements, but I happy to 
discuss this further with you or your Monitoring Officer if there is any doubt about how to 
discharge these duties in future. 

Manual for Councils 
 
We greatly value our relationships with council Complaints Officers, our single contact points 
at each authority. To support them in their roles, we have published a Manual for Councils, 
setting out in detail what we do and how we investigate the complaints we receive. When we 
surveyed Complaints Officers, we were pleased to hear that 73% reported they have found 
the manual useful. 
 
The manual is a practical resource and reference point for all council staff, not just those 
working directly with us, and I encourage you to share it widely within your organisation. The 
manual can be found on our website www.lgo.org.uk/link-officers  
  
Complaint handling training 
 
Our training programme is one of the ways we use the outcomes of complaints to promote 
wider service improvements and learning. We delivered an ambitious programme of 75 
courses during the year, training over 800 council staff and more 400 care provider staff. 
Post-course surveys showed a 92% increase in delegates’ confidence in dealing with 
complaints. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 

 
 

Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman for England  

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 13

http://www.lgo.org.uk/link-officers
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


Local Authority Report: Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 
For the Period Ending: 31/03/2017 
 
For further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website: 
http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics 
 
 

Complaints and enquiries received 
 

Adult Care 
Services 

Benefits and 
Tax 

Corporate 
and Other 
Services 

Education 
and 

Children’s 
Services 

Environment 
Services 

Highways 
and 

Transport 
Housing 

Planning and 
Development 

Other Total 

10 7 4 8 4 3 0 4 0 40 

 
 
 

Decisions made 
 

Detailed Investigations  

Incomplete or 
Invalid 

Advice Given 
Referred back 

for Local 
Resolution 

Closed After 
Initial 

Enquiries 
Not Upheld Upheld Uphold Rate Total 

2 0 17 12 1 6 86% 38 

Notes Complaints Remedied   

Our uphold rate is calculated in relation to the total number of detailed investigations. 
 

The number of remedied complaints may not equal the number of upheld complaints. 
This is because, while we may uphold a complaint because we find fault, we may not 
always find grounds to say that fault caused injustice that ought to be remedied. 

by LGO 
Satisfactorily by 

Authority before LGO 
Involvement 

  

5 0   

P
age 14

http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics


Complaints & enquiries received (by category) 
2016-17

Local Authority 
Adult Social 
Care 

Benefits & 
Tax

Corporate 
& Other 
Services

Education 
& 
Children’s 
Services

Environmental 
Services, 
Public 
Protection & 
Regulation

Highways & 
Transport Housing

Planning & 
Development Other Total

Bolton MBC 6 11 6 10 16 1 5 13 1 69
Bury MBC 12 8 1 9 11 9 2 5 0 57
Oldham MBC 8 9 6 17 5 6 3 4 1 59
Rochdale MBC 10 7 4 8 4 3 0 4 0 40
Salford City C 14 19 6 18 13 4 3 6 1 84
Tameside MBC 13 10 8 19 13 4 4 7 0 78

Notes 

The statistics include all the complaints and enquiries received in 2016/17.
Number of complaints and enquiries received: a number of cases will have been received and decided in different business years, this means the number of 
complaints and enquiries will not always match the number of decisions made. 

Appendix 2

P
age 15



Complaint and enquiries 
decided (by outcome) 2016-17

Local Authority 
Invalid or 
incomplete 

Advice 
Given

Referred 
back for 
local 
resolution

Closed 
after initial 
enquiries

Not 
upheld Upheld

Uphold 
rate (%) Total

Complaints 
remedied 
by LGO

Complaints 
remedied 
by 
Authority

Bolton MBC 6 1 36 12 6 5 45 66 5 0
Bury MBC 1 1 29 15 8 6 43 60 6 0
Oldham MBC 4 0 26 20 3 10 77 63 9 1
Rochdale MBC 2 0 17 12 1 6 86 38 5 0
Salford City C 7 1 39 14 13 8 38 82 5 0
Tameside MBC 6 1 39 17 11 9 45 83 8 0

Notes 

Number of complaints and enquiries received: a number of cases will have been received and decided in different business years, this means the number of 
complaints and enquiries received will not always match the number of decisions made.

P
age 16



Report to Cabinet and  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 17th October 2017
24th October 2017

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Corporate and Regulation

Report Author Louise Griffiths
Public/Private Document Public

Proposed Local Positive Recruitment Criteria Policy

Executive Summary

1. The report provides Members of Cabinet and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee with details of the Council`s proposed Local Positive Recruitment Policy, 
which is an amendment to the Council`s Recruitment and Selection Policy, for 
consideration and approval.

Recommendation

2.
2.1 It is recommended that Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee consider the proposed Local Positive Recruitment Policy and provide 
comments to Cabinet as part of the Member decision making process.

2.2 It is recommended to Cabinet that the Rochdale Residency Criteria Statement 
(detailed in appendix 1) be applied to entry posts i.e. lower graded jobs at 
Grades 1 to 3.

Reason for Recommendation

3. To provide Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee with details 
of the Council’s proposed Local Positive Recruitment Policy for consideration and 
approval.

Key Points for Consideration

4. The Council`s Corporate Plan for 2016 – 2019 includes a commitment to improving 
the lives of local people. This is embraced in the three priorities of People, Place and 
Prosperity. The Council`s vision is to build the prosperity of the Borough and the 
people who live here. 

Employment is the best route out of poverty, enabling independence, creating wealth 
and increasing aspirations.  As part of a strategy to promote the Borough’s image and 
reputation the Council wants to enable more residents to access local employment 
opportunities in the Borough. 
 
The Local Positive Recruitment Policy which is now being proposed will ensure that 
the Council is at the heart of leading the promotion of local employment in the 
Borough.

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



It is proposed that the Rochdale Residency Criteria (detailed in appendix 1) be 
applied to entry level posts to the Local Authority i.e. jobs at Grades 1 to 3. It is also 
suggested that the operation of the Policy be reviewed in 6 months to assess how 
successful it has been and to consider whether any additional actions are needed to 
further support the delivery of this policy objective. 

It is also suggested that the Council consider the most appropriate means of 
promoting the Policy. Applying for a job at the Council should be as simple and clear 
as possible, including maximising the available local advertising media. We recognise 
that the Council’s procedures for applying for jobs at the Council can be daunting for 
those who are not used to working in the public sector or who may have been out of 
the jobs market for some time. The Council will work in partnership with Employment 
Links to promote the policy and provide support to potential applicants who are 
currently unemployed in terms of the recruitment process.   

We will involve agencies such as Jobcentre Plus and other organisations already 
engaged with job seekers to inform people about the Council’s Policy. In addition, as 
part of the Council’s strategy of investment in local businesses, it is intended that the 
roles will be advertised in local media. It is also suggested that these vacancies are 
publicised in local libraries, community centres, schools and local retail outlets. 

We will also utilise the Council’s existing links with the Stronger Families project , the 
Working Well project, the Place Based project and partner agencies such as Housing 
Associations including RBH, Riverside, Regenda, the Lighthouse Project, 
Groundwork, Petrus, etc.
  
Any change to the current Policy would also need to be considered in the context of 
the Government’s agenda around apprentices and the Council`s desire to attract high 
quality candidates in a competitive Greater Manchester labour market. 

With regard to schools, as the Council is not the Employer for all staff in schools and 
the fact that recruitment decisions lie with the Headteacher/Governing Board it is 
therefore suggested that we seek to influence decisions by encouraging schools to 
adopt a similar policy. 

This Policy will enable the Council to ensure that the composition of the workforce is 
representative of the community.  In particular the Council will focus on those 
protected characteristic group where there is under-representation. The Council will 
continue to maintain its commitment to disabled applicants and people from the 
armed forces. 

Finally, it is noted that the Council’s current Recruitment and Selection Policy was last 
reviewed in 2006. We will be reviewing it this year notwithstanding this report to 
ensure we capture best practice and ensure that the Policy meets the needs of the 
Council as both a business and employer of choice.

Alternatives Considered

The Council could decide not to implement the policy however this would potentially 
impact on its ability to meet its commitment to improve the prosperity of the residents 
of the Borough. 

Costs and Budget Summary

Page 18



5. There are financial implications arising from the implementation of this Policy are 
expected such as: 

 Holding and Hosting Recruitment/Skills Events;
 Reduction in potential income from Greater Manchester Jobs and increase in 

advertising costs from the use of local media;
these will be assessed more fully and discussed with the Portfolio Holder. A further 
report may need to come to Cabinet if the costs are more than material although we 
will aim to manage them through approved budgets.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. The Council needs to ensure that the Policy does not either directly or indirectly 
discriminate against any group where a protected characteristic is defined in 
equalities legislation; therefore the Council has undertaken an Equalities impact 
Assessment and sought legal advice in order to identify any risks and potential 
strategies to mitigate.
 
The legal advice indicates that the local positive recruitment criteria policy is not 
directly discriminatory nor does it obviously contradict any employment law 
provisions.  However the Council should monitor the application of the policy to 
ensure that it does not have a disproportionate impact on a group with a protected 
characteristic  (age, sex, disability, race, religion, sexual orientation). .  

The Provision, Criteria or Practice (“PCP”) is measured by reference to the equality 
impact assessment and whether or not the statistics demonstrate disproportionate 
impact.

From a comparison perspective the appropriate pools would be Rochdale residents 
(group benefits) as against non-Rochdale residents (disadvantaged group). Also, it 
is advised that the application of the policy is monitored to ensure that particular 
protected groups are not disadvantaged and the use of monitoring forms is advised.

In any event, we are advised that a PCP is capable of being objectively justified i.e. 
a proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim so we would in all likelihood be 
able to satisfy the “legitimate aim” requirement. Also provided it could be shown that 
the policy was necessary and there are not obviously alternatives that would have a 
less discriminatory impact then the proportionality requirement would also be met.

The Equality Impact Assessment (Attached as Appendix 2) provides details of the 
boroughs communities (based on the 2010 census) and the composition of the 
Councils workforce. The Council would need to monitor the impact of the policy on a 
regular basis in order to ensure that it does not result in any direct or indirect 
discrimination, based on applying the criteria. It is also vital that the Council meets 
its legal obligations to employees who are at risk of redundancy; only if there are no 
“at risk” candidates can vacancies be advertised both internally and externally.

Consultation

7. The Council`s proposed Local Positive Recruitment Criteria Policy has been subject 
to formal consultation with Trade Unions (Letter from Trade Unions dated 22nd 
September 2017 attached as Appendix 3).

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Councils current Recruitment and 
Selection Policy and Procedure.

HR Service, Floor 2, Number One 
Riverside, Rochdale.

Page 19



For Further Information Contact: Louise Griffiths, Tel: 01706926250, 
louise.griffiths@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 20



Appendix 1

Rochdale Residency Criteria 

Jobs at Grades 1-3 only open to applicants who are permanently resident in the Borough of 
Rochdale. The residency requirement only applies to these jobs; anyone can apply for all 
other Council jobs. If a particular job proves hard to fill, however, despite careful local 
marketing, then it may be re-advertised without the residency requirement. 

The Council has this policy because the rate of unemployment amongst Rochdale residents 
is high we also know that there are many people in the Borough with the skills needed for 
these jobs. The Council takes its responsibilities to the communities of the Borough very 
seriously and is working hard to help ensure the people it serves, particularly the most 
disadvantaged, are benefiting from employment opportunities in the Borough and this policy 
is one aspect of the action being taken. 

A Rochdale resident is someone who lives within the municipal boundaries of the Borough of 
Rochdale. That is someone whose Local Authority is Rochdale Borough Council. Post codes 
can be very misleading. The easiest test (if you are not familiar with the geographical 
boundaries) is that if your household pays Council Tax to Rochdale Borough Council, then 
you are a resident within the boundaries of the Borough of Rochdale If your household pays 
Council Tax to any other neighbouring Authority, then you are not a resident within the 
municipal boundaries of the Borough of Rochdale.
 

Page 21



Appendix 2

EIA - Proposed Local Positive Recruitment Criteria Policy

1. What is the name of the proposal and its current status?  

The Equality Impact Assessment assesses the proposed Local Positive Recruitment Criteria 
Policy, which is for the purposes of formal consultations with Trade Unions.

2. Which Service is responsible for this proposal?
This proposal is to be presented to Members of the Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
and Cabinet by the Head of Workforce & OD.
3. Does this proposal impact on other services or other service savings proposals and if 
so, have you discussed this proposal with the Service Directors from those other 
services?
This proposal will impact on all Grade 1 – 3 posts across the organisation (excluding schools), 
the proposal has been subject to consideration by the Leadership Team.
4.Please state the name of the officer leading the EIA 
Louise Griffiths, Senior HR Consultant
5. Who has been involved in undertaking this assessment e.g. list the stakeholder 
groups which have been involved? 
The proposal including the EIA will be subject to consultation with Trade Unions
6. What is the scope of this assessment?

 what is included in this assessment
 does this proposal link to any other proposals (i.e. previous or current).  If so, 

please state
The assessment will be confined to the Council`s Grade 1 – 3 posts.  

The issues being considered are:
 If applying this proposal to those posts in scope of the revision to the Councils 

Recruitment and Selection Policy would potentially be discriminatory under the 
protections arising from the Equality Act 2010.  

 If the proposal has a discriminatory effect, to what extent this would be.
 If the proposal can be justified.

This proposal links to the Councils commitment to improve the lives of local people. This is 
embraced in the three priorities of People, Place and Prosperity. The Council`s vision is to 
build the prosperity of the Borough and the people who live here. 
7 a).What does the function currently do?  
   b).Describe the needs which this service meets?
The proposed Local Positive Recruitment Criteria Policy will result in a revision to the Council`s 
Recruitment and Selection Procedure and aims to increase the number of employees at lower 
grades who are Rochdale residents.  
8. What proposed changes do you wish to make?
The proposal is seeking Member approval to commence formal consultations with Trade 
Unions on the proposed Local Positive Recruitment Criteria Policy. A further report will be 
submitted to Members outlining the outcome of consultations and detailing the implementation 
timescale and arrangements.
9. Who are the key stakeholders who may be affected by the proposed changes?
Residents of the Borough.

Page 22



10. What impact will this proposal have on all the protected groups

An initial equality impact assessment has been undertaken on the proposals as they affect employees 
in scope of the review.  The assessment does not identify any significant equalities issues in relation to 
the proposal or its implementation. 

Detailed in the table below is the spread of people from protected characteristic groups in both the 
current posts graded 1 – 3 and the borough as a whole (based upon the 2011 census).  

A summary of the issues identified is outlined below;

Gender
The EIA identifies that there is a much higher proportion of men in the Borough than those employed 
by the Council.  This could be possibly due to the fact that posts generally at Grade  1-3 have 
predominately attracted and been filled by female applicants in the past. As part of this policy, the 
Council will look at encouraging and promoting vacancies to male applications by using positive 
measures to achieve more diversity in its workforce.  

Age
The Council recognises that it has an aging workforce, and therefore it is important to have strategies 
in place to promote and encourage young adults into a working career at the Council, whilst also 
retaining and encouraging older people in the Borough to remain in work. The Council aims with this 
policy to advertise apprenticeships more widely to young adults to enable them to secure a career 
working for the Council. The EIA identifies that there are a lot more residents in the Borough at 65+ 
than those working for the Council, and although the Council will work closely with other agencies to 
advertise and promote roles to older people, it must be acknowledged that many people at that age 
have chosen to end their working career and no longer wish to work.

Ethnicity
The EIA shows that there is more of a proportionate mix of ethnic minority staff within Schools (15.2%) 
than those working direct for the Council (9.9%).  This may be partly due to the fact that Schools 
advertise many of their vacancies at the School where parents/members of the community are able to 
view and apply for roles.  Therefore, the Council aims to apply a similar approach by working closer 
with communities and Council staff who work with communities, to advertise and promote vacancies.

Disabled
The Council promotes and encourages staff with a disability to apply to apply for its vacancies.  
Recognising that there is a much larger proportion of the Borough identified as disabled, compared to 
the Council’s workforce, the Council will aim to work more closely with agencies to promote and 
advertise vacancies.  This would include informing potential applicants of the support that would be 
available to them at the Council. The Council will continue to guarantee an interview to candidates who 
have a disability and meet the person specification criteria.

Race Equality 
See Section 10 above. 

Disabled People
See Section 10 above. 
Carers
There is no evidence to suggest that this group would be adversely affected.

Page 23



Gender
See Section 10 above.
Older and Younger People
See Section 10 above.
People who are Socio-Economically Disadvantaged
This proposed policy should have a positive benefit and links to the Councils commitment to improve 
the lives of local people. 
Religion or Belief
This information is not held to be able to assess if this group would be adversely affected. 
Sexual Orientation
This information is not held to be able to assess if this group would be adversely affected. 
Gender Reassignment
This information is not held to be able to assess if this group would be adversely affected. 
Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave or Those who have given Birth in the Previous 
26 weeks
This information is not held to be able to assess if this group would be adversely affected. 
Marriage or Civil Partnership
This information is not held to be able to assess if this group would be adversely affected. 
11.  Conclusions and Recommendations
What are the main conclusions from this analysis?
The main conclusion from this analysis is that any potential discrimination of a protected group as a 
consequence of the implementation of the proposal is not significant.  In terms of the protected group 
identified, the risk of challenge is limited and robust evidence is available to defend any claim.  
What are your recommendations?
To ensure that robust arrangements are in place to monitor the effectiveness of the Policy.
What measures (a) have you or (b) do you propose to put in place to mitigate any adverse 
impacts?

It should be noted that the proposed policy will be subject to review and should any potential issues 
arise they will be assessed and reported.
What evidence do you have which demonstrates that these measures will be effective?

12.  Please provide details of who you have consulted on the proposals and the 
methods which you used to consult.  State your consultation and inclusion 
methodology. 
The Consultation and Inclusion Methodology Used

Trade Unions.

13. Produce an action plan detailing the mitigation measures that you propose to put 
in place to address any adverse impacts.  
As above
14. Equality impact analysis sign off by the Equality Impact Assessment Board for the 
Committee Meeting

Name Position Date

Page 24



Posts affected by the proposed Local Positive Recruitment Criteria

Protected Groups
Rochdale Borough 

residents (from 
2011 census)

In Scope of 
Proposed 

Changes (Council 
Staff at Grades 1 - 

3)
Employee 
Baseline

In Scope of 
Proposed Changes 

(Schools Staff at 
Grades 1 - 3)

Employee Baseline

Group Category No. % No. % No. %
Male 103,600 48.9% 177 23.5% 105 5.2%

Gender
Female 108,099 51.1% 577 76.5% 1917 94.8%
0-14* 41,827 19.8% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%
15-29 42,541 20.1% 53 7.0% 256 12.7%
30-44 42,914 20.3% 166 22.0% 705 34.9%
45-64 53,601 25.3% 488 64.7% 1011 50.0%

Age

65+ 30,816 14.6% 47 6.2% 50 2.5%
White British 172,874 81.7% 655 86.9% 1677 82.9%
BME 38,825 18.3% 75 9.9% 308 15.2%Ethnicity
Unknown 0 0.0% 24 3.2% 37 1.8%
Yes 44,359 21.0% 23 3.1% 39 1.9%

Disabled
No/Unknown 167,340 79.0% 731 96.9% 1983 98.1%

211,699 754 2022
Data source as at 01.02.2017 from Trent HR IT System
* For the purposes of fullness, this data has been included, however it is not relevant to this 
analysis therefore these figures need to be considered in the context that they provide an 
insight into the composition of the borough compared to the makeup of the Council. 

Page 25



Page 26



Report to Cabinet and Corporate O&S Committee

Date of Meeting 14th September 2017 
(CAB)
17th October 2017 (COS)

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Finance  

Report Author Julie Murphy  
Public/Private Document Public

Finance Update Report 2017/18

Executive Summary

1.1 To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
the Council’s financial position as at the end of July 2017.

1.2 The Finance Update Report contains detail of the following:

 The forecast Revenue position is an in-year saving of £0.899m.
 Services have not identified any issues in meeting the savings target of 

£5.895m.
 Forecast Capital spend is £82.060m. Rephasing of £7.973m has been 

identified and budgets which are no longer required are £0.807m.

1.3 Effective financial management is essential if the Council is to keep spending 
within available resources. It is vital that services make adjustments in 
spending to ensure that they spend in line with the approved budget.

Recommendation

2.1 Consider the 2017/18 Budget position for Revenue, Capital and Savings as at 
the end of July 2017.

2.2 Consider the Revenue Budget adjustments as detailed in 4.1.2

2.3 Approve the Revenue Budget Pressure Fund requests detailed in 4.1.4.

2.4 Consider the Capital Budget adjustments as detailed in 4.4.1.

2.5 Approve the Capital Virement request detailed in 4.4.2.

2.6 Consider the Capital Rephasing and underspends detailed in 4.4.3.

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



Reason for Recommendation

3.1. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 
authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial 
resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of variations 
against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

This report provides a breakdown of the Financial Position for the Council and 
focuses on the position as at the end of July 2017. 

Key Points for Consideration

4.1. Revenue Budget 2017/18

4.1.1. The budget set by Budget Council on 1st March 2017 was £196.031m. This 
has been increased to £201.085m as set out below:

Budget Changes

Approved by When Reason for change Amount (£m)
Budget Council Mar-17 Approved budget 196.031
Cabinet Apr-17 Increase in Better Care Fund 5.168
Cabinet Jun-17 Adjustment to Education Support Grant -0.373
Cabinet Jul-17 Section 31 Discretionary Funding for Business Rates Relief 0.259
GRAND TOTAL 201.085

4.1.2   There has been a change in the treatment of the Education Support 
Grant since Budget Council, with an element of the funding now being shown 
within Children’s Services rather than in General Grants. 

Additional funding has been given in relation to the Section 31 Discretionary 
Funding for Business Rates Relief.

4.1.3 The overall position taking account of the projections currently being forecast 
by services as at the end of July 2017 is an in-year saving of £0.899m.

4.1.4 Budget Pressures

The Budget Pressure Fund for 2017/18 is £0.769m (£0.309m ongoing and 
£0.460m one off). There is a difference between the amount reported at the 
end of May due to a number of the budget pressure allocations made during 
2016/17 being of a one off nature and not being required in future years. 

The following request for funding has been made to the end of July 2017.

Page 28



Economy (£0.150m Ongoing)

Asset Rationalisation – The service is forecasting a budget pressure in 
relation to the achievement of the asset rationalisation strategy of £0.150m 
on-going.

If the above pressure is approved the balance in the Budget Pressures Fund 
will be £0.619m (£0.159m ongoing and £0.460m one off).

4.1.5 The major (>£0.250m) variations to controllable budget, by service, are 
detailed below:-

Adult Care - £0.440m (In-Year Saving)
The service is reporting an in-year saving of £0.440m due to a combination of 
staffing savings; mainly as a result of staff turnover; the renegotiation of 
contracts with external providers; and an increase in Government grant 
income to the service.
Resources - £0.295m (In-Year Saving)
The Service is forecasting a £0.295m in-year saving, resulting from staff 
savings and additional funding from Central Government regarding New 
Burdens
Finance Control - £0.517m (In-Year Saving)
The reported underspend relates to interest savings as no external borrowing 
has been undertaken in the first 4 months of the year offset by lower income 
on short term investments due to low interest rates.

£0.050m of the 2017/18 in-year saving is allocated to underwrite a bid for 
external funding associated with Dippy the dinosaur project.

4.1.6 See appendices A & B for the General Fund Revenue Summary and the 
Revenue Finance Pro formas for Services with variances >£250k.

4.2 Corporate Debt

4.2.1 The Council has a responsibility to collect income due and to recover 
outstanding debts owed. There are three main types of income which are 
owed to the Council. These being council tax; business rates and sundry 
debts. Sundry debts includes:

 Fees and charges raised as invoices by all Directorates of the Council, for 
services provided.

 Housing benefit overpayments which occur as a result of a change in 
entitlement to benefit.

As at the end of July the outstanding debt is £10.786m. 

Page 29



Total £m

Balance of debt carried forward from 2016/17                 9.947 
Invoices raised               17.788 
Payments/ credit notes/adjustments (16.729)
Write offs (0.220)

Balance as at July 2017               10.786 

Summary of Corporate Debt to July 2017

The aged debt analysis indicates that previous years’ debt has decreased by 
£0.882m since May 2017.

The debt outstanding as at the end of May 2017 was £9.786m. Debt has 
increased by £1.000m to £10.786m as at the end of July 2017.

The debt is split between debt which is still within minimum payment terms or 
on hold and debt which is subject to recovery actions once payment terms 
have elapsed. £8.097m (75%) of the total debt outstanding is subject to 
recovery actions with £2.689m (25%) relating to new and “on hold” debt.

Further details are available in Appendix C.

4.3      Savings Update 2017/18

4.3.1 Savings of £2.136m were approved at Budget Council February 2016 for 
2017/18.  Savings of £3.759m were approved at Budget Council March 2017 
for 2017/18 therefore the total savings target is £5.895m for 2017/18.  

4.3.2     Services have not identified any issues for their achievement.

4.3.3     See appendices D & E for an overview of Service Savings Achievement and 
further details of Services who are reporting mitigating actions >£0.200m.

4.4. Capital Budget 2017/18

The 2017/18 Current Capital Budget is £82.060m.  Table 1 below shows an 
overview of the movements:

£m £m £m
CAPITAL BUDGET REPORTED AT JULY CABINET 71.455 44.470 22.174
Budget Changes Agreed at July Cabinet 0.100
Commercial Investment Funding brought forward from 2018/19 agreed at July Council 20.000 -20.000
Other Budget Changes identified at the end of July 2017 0.304
Additional Budget Identified within Children's Service to Bring Forward from 2016/17 0.149
Rephasing Adjustment -1.168
Rephasing identified to the of end July 2017 -7.973 7.973
Underspend identified to the end of July 2017 -0.807 -0.800
CAPITAL BUDGET JULY 2017 82.060 31.643 22.174

2017/18 2019/202018/19

4.4.1 Capital Budget Adjustments

Page 30



Details of the Budget increases are listed below:

 £0.304m of other budget changes are:   
- Children’s Services £0.026m net adjustment to the budget for additional 

Grants received. 
- Adult Care £0.263m relating to use of unapplied Capital Grants.
- Resources have received £0.015m from the Transformation Fund to fund 

the purchase of e-payslips iTrent module. 

 A budget carry forward has been identified during the Closedown process 
of £0.149m due to a late receipt from St Cuthbert’s School as a 
contribution towards the cost of a multi-use games area.

4.4.2    Capital Scheme virement request 

 £0.013m from the Transfers from AMG scheme is proposed to be 
transferred back to the Asset Management Group scheme, within 
Neighbourhoods Directorate.

4.4.3 Capital Rephasing & Underspend

The Chief Finance Officer has approved £7.973m of rephasing. Rephasing of 
£2.342m relates to Prudential Borrowing. 

There is reported underspend of £0.807m 2017/18, detailed below

- £0.257m - Telegraph House Demolition
- £0.550m – Building School for the Future (BSF)

There is also a reported underspend of £0.800m in 2018/19 associated with 
the BSF scheme.

4.4.4 See Appendix F for the overall Capital Summary and Appendix G for Capital 
pro formas for Services with variances to report over £0.250m.

4.4.5     Capital Receipts

The table below shows the forecast movements in the Capital Receipts 
Reserve during 2017/18, and provisionally for 2018/19 to 2020/21.

Description 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

£m £m £m £m
Capital Receipts balance as at 1st April 2017 9.931 4.127 4.169 1.494
Use of Capital Receipts to fund 2017/18 Capital Programme, including prior year 
schemes rephased into 2017/18 and 2018/19 (6.263) (0.800) - -

Use of Capital Receipts to fund provisional 2018/19  and 2019/20 Capital Programmes - (1.800) (1.800) -

Earmarked use of receipts to fund other future commitments (3.400) (3.052) (1.902) -
Forecast Capital Receipts income 3.858 5.695 1.027 -
Forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts balance as at 31st March 2018 4.127 4.169 1.494 1.494

Page 31



The forecast unallocated Capital Receipts Reserve balance as at the end of 
2017/18 is £4.127m.

4.5. Alternatives considered

4.5.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 
are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. See Appendix A, B & C for the full Revenue breakdown, Appendix D & E for 
the Savings reports and Appendix F & G for Capital which provides an 
overview of budgets as detailed in the report.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no major legal implications arising as a result of this report except 
to note that debts that are recoverable can be enforced by court action in 
accordance with the civil procedure rules.

6.

Consultation

7. All services engage with the production of the service based financial 
information within this report. The Leadership Team, Cabinet Member for 
Corporate & Resources, and opposition Portfolio holder for Finance have 
been informed of the 2016/17 financial position of the Council and its 
implications for future years. The report will be presented to the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny on the 19th of September 2017.

Background Papers Place of Inspection
8. For further information about this 

report or access to any 
background papers contact Stuart 
Smith

No1 Riverside Floor 2 

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith, 
Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
Tel : 01706 924196

Page 32

mailto:Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


                                                                                                                                                                                    APPENDIX A

                                                                                                                                               

GENERAL FUND REVENUE ACCOUNT SUMMARY 2017/18
CURRENT POSITION AS AT END OF JULY 2017

TABLE 1

Directorate/ Detail
Budget 
Council

Virements/
Contingency Current Budget

Service and 
Corporate 

Uncontrollables

Current 
Controllable
Approved 

Net 
Budget

Revised 
Controllable Net 

Budget

Forecast Spend 
at 

period end

Forecast
In Year Saving/

(Overspend)

Previous 
Monitoring 

Report
Movement Since 

Last Report

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Adult Care 54,777 4,764 59,541 4,295 55,246 55,246 54,806 440 0 440
Children's 57,520 (291) 57,229 20,300 36,929 36,929 36,929 0 0 0
Economy 10,923 (190) 10,733 676 10,057 10,057 10,298 (241) (159) (82)
Neighbourhoods 54,168 1,564 55,732 568 55,164 55,164 55,276 (112) 0 (112)
Public Health and Wellbeing 22,215 51 22,266 2,092 20,174 20,174 20,174 0 0 0
Resources 5,562 742 6,304 (3,922) 10,226 10,226 9,931 295 0 295
TOTAL SERVICE SPENDING 205,165 6,640 211,805 24,009 187,796 187,796 187,414 382 (159) 541

Finance Control: Corporately Held Budgets (10,581) (1,919) (12,500) 1,375 (13,875) (13,875) (14,392) 517 381 136
Finance Control: Transformation Fund 1,250 (239) 1,011 0 1,011 1,011 1,011 0 0 0
Finance Control: Budget Pressures 197 572 769 0 769 769 769 0 0 0
TOTAL FINANCE CONTROL SPENDING (9,134) (1,586) (10,720) 1,375 (12,095) (12,095) (12,612) 517 381 136

NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 196,031 5,054 201,085 25,384 175,701 175,701 174,802 899 222 677

P
age 33



                                                                                                                                                           APPENDIX B

REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF JULY 2017

Service: ADULT CARE DIRECTORATE 
Overall Risk Rating:                    LOW

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk Area 
RAG rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
spend to 
year end

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Assessment and Care Management AMBER 3,296          6,010 (4,578) 1,432 1,398 34 34
Business Support & Commissioning GREEN 2,334        11,419 (616) 10,803 10,732 71 71
Housing and Careline Equipment AMBER 458          1,162 (695) 467 450 17 17
Intermediate Care and Reablement GREEN 287          1,857 (1,691) 166 113 53 53
Personal Budgets AMBER 25,841        31,336 (6,026) 25,310 25,257 53 53
Residential and Nursing RED 14,684        27,220 (12,651) 14,569 14,569 0 0
Safeguarding AMBER 524            461 (23) 438 432 6 6
Carers RED 534              55 0 55 55 0 0
Community Restart RED (171)            661 (592) 69 60 9 9
Prevention RED 2,692          3,454 (1,517) 1,937 1,740 197 197
SUB TOTAL 50,479 83,635 (28,389) 55,246 54,806 440 440

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 0
UNCONTROLLABLE 0

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges GREEN 4,298 6,742 (2,447) 4,295 4,295 0 0

SUB TOTAL 4,298 6,742 (2,447) 4,295 4,295 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 54,777 90,377 (30,836) 59,541 59,101 440 0

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000
34

71

17

53

53

6

9

197

TOTAL 440

Financial Management Update

Adult Care Services are forecasting an in-year saving of £0.440m due to a combination of staffing savings, mainly as a result of staff turnover; the 
renegotiation of contracts with external providers; and an increase in Government grant income to the Service. 

Prevention:- In-year savings due to the renegotiation of contracts.

Business Support and Commissioning:- In-year savings on staffing following a restructuring and short term vacancies.

Intermediate Care and Reablement:-  Staffing requirements for the Stars Plus service have been reviewed with in-year savings being 
shared with the Better Care Fund.

Assessment and Care Management :-  In-year savings due to staff turnover.

Personal Budgets:- Increase in Government Grant income in relation to allowed exemption for War Pensions in Community Care 
assessments.

Housing and Careline Equipment:- In-year savings due to staff turnover.

Safeguarding:- In-year savings due to staff turnover.

Community Restart:- In-year savings due to staff turnover.

Page 34



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF JULY 2017

Service: RESOURCES DIRECTORATE

Overall Risk Rating: LOW

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk 
Area RAG 

rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved     

Net        
Budget

Forecast 
spend to     
year end

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Finance Services AMBER 3,310 3,091 (301) 2,790 2,755 35 (133)
Other Managed Budgets GREEN 989 2,018 (50) 1,968 1,894 74 69
Revenues & Benefits RED 0 80,079 (79,462) 617 495 122 (34)
Legal & Democratic RED 3,046 3,395 (573) 2,822 2,822 0 (34)
Human Resources AMBER 1,560 2,109 (601) 1,508 1,444 64 (31)
Internal Audit GREEN 579 540 (19) 521 521 0 0
SUB TOTAL 9,484 91,232 (81,006) 10,226 9,931 295 (163)

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges

GREEN (3,922) 8,219 (12,141) (3,922) (3,922) 0 0

SUB TOTAL (3,922) 8,219 (12,141) (3,922) (3,922) 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 5,562 99,451 (93,147) 6,304 6,009 295 (163)

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

35

74

122

64
295

Financial Management Update
The Service is forecasting a £0.295m in-year saving, resulting from staff savings and additional funding from Central Government regarding 
New Burdens.

TOTAL
Human Resources:-  In-year savings mainly due to holding a vacancy.

Finance Services:- Small in-year savings due to staffing within the service.

Other Managed Budgets:- In-year savings mainly due to holding a vacancy.

Revenues and Benefits:- Additional Central Government funding re: New Burdens and savings achieved from auto enrolment.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

Page 35



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT APPENDIX C
AS AT END OF JULY 2017

Area : CORPORATE DEBT

Table 1. Age of Debt Outstanding at End of July 2017
Debt at 26th 

May 2017
Debt at 28th 

July 2017
Variance

£m £m £m
2.680 4.562 1.882

2.779 2.107 (0.672)
1.769 1.697 (0.072)
1.042 0.971 (0.071)
0.525 0.497 (0.028)
0.991 0.952 (0.039)

7.106 6.224 (0.882)

9.786 10.786 1.000

Table 2. Movement of Debt Outstanding by Recovery Stage
Debt at 26th 

May 2017
Debt at 28th 

July 2017
Variance

£m £m £m
Debt within minimum payment terms or on hold

2.549 2.689 0.140
Debt subject to recovery

1.693 2.808 1.115
2.734 2.801 0.067
1.709 1.312 (0.397)
0.398 0.380 (0.018)
0.703 0.796 0.093

7.237 8.097 0.860

9.786 10.786 1.000

£m

0.140

1.115

0.067

(0.397)

(0.018)

0.093
TOTAL VARIANCE 1.000

Sundry Debt Overview

2012/13 and prior years

Age of Debt
2017/18

2016/17
2015/16
2014/15
2013/14

Subtotal from previous years

Total

Debt recovery stage

New and on hold invoices

Notice and referrals
Payment arrangements
Referral and Debt Collection agency stages
Attachments to benefits/earnings
Legal
Total debt subject to recovery actions

Total Debt

Brief explanation of variance :- 

New invoices and debt on hold: make up 25% of debt outstanding. These invoices are within the initial 
payment period and not yet subject to formal recovery routes. Of the £2.689m over £0.9m relates to accounts 
on hold areas such as recovery of deferred payments for residential adult care costs.

Notice and referrals : This relates to debts which are actively being recovered through reminders and notices 
stages. The debt at this stage has increased by £0.572m and represents 26% of debt outstanding.

Payment arrangements : The majority of payment arrangements relate to Housing Benefit Overpayment 
debts deducted from housing benefits. There has been a slight net reduction in total arrears as new 
arrangements come in to the system and weekly payments are made to reduce the outstanding debt. Payment 
arrangements make up 26% of total debt but over half of the arrears relating to Housing Benefit overpayments 
total debt.
Referral and Debt Collection agency stages : Debt collected by the Councils debt collection agency has 
decreased by £87k since the last monitoring and accounts for 12% of total debt. The increase relates to year 
end invoices generated to other Public Bodies which are now at referral stage. These are being recovered by 
the Corporate Debt Team, since the report was produced the high value accounts have been cleared.
Attachments to benefits/earnings : 4% of the debt outstanding is in the process of or has an attachment to 
benefits or earning in place.
Legal : 7% of debt outstanding is subject to legal proceedings.

Bad Debts Provision: All debts which are due to the Council are subject to full recovery, collection and legal procedures, 
however, in certain circumstances debts become irrecoverable and are written off in line with the Council's Scheme of 
delegation.  A bad debts provision is maintained to provide for possible irrecoverable debts.  The sundry bad debt provision for 
2017/18 incorporates provisions for sundry debts and housing benefit overpayments.

Debt outstanding at the end of May was £9.786m, debt has increased by £1m to £10.786m on the July monitoring report, due in 
part to the issue of quarterly periodic invoices. Debt in recovery has increased by £0.860m. Aged debt analysis indicates that 
previous years debts has decreased by £0.882m since May.

Page 36



                                                                                                                                            APPENDIX D

Graph 1

£'000

Adult
Services

Children's 
Services Economy Neighbourhoods Resources Public Health Finance 

Control Total

Savings Target 34 805 - 54 - 1,243 - 2,136
Savings Achieved 
against Initial Proposal 34 462 - 34 - 1,243 - 1,773

On-Target - - - - - - - -

Mitigated - 343 - 20 - - - 363

Balance to address - - - - - - - -

Graph 2

£'000

Adult
Services

Children's 
Services Economy Neighbourhoods Resources Public Health Finance 

Control Total

Savings Target 756 1,511 62 1,062 318 50 - 3,759
Savings Achieved 
against Initial Proposal 756 1,511 - 526 318 50 - 3,161

On-Target - - 62 330 - - - 392

Mitigated - - - 206 - - - 206

Balance to address - - - - - - - -

2017/18 Savings Schemes, approved at Budget Council in February 2016

All figures are in £000's 

2017/18 Savings Schemes Approved at Budget Council in March 2017

All figures are in £000's 

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

Page 37



                                                                                                                               APPENDIX E

SAVINGS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF JULY 2017

Service: CHILDREN'S DIRECTORATE

SUMMARY

Savings Identified as part of 2016/17 Budget Process

Table 1. 2017/18 Saving Proposals approved at Budget Council February 2016
Savings 

Reference
Savings Target Achieved On-Target Mitigating 

Actions
Balance to 
Address

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

CS101 (7) (7) 0 0 0

CS102 (375) (375) 0 0 0

CS104 (70) (70) 0 0 0

CS111 (343) 0 0 (343) 0

CS105 (10) (10) 0 0 0

(805) (462) 0 (343) 0

Nature of Saving

Review of Residential Short break provision for children with 
disabilities

Sub Total

Reduction in Children's Residential Care costs

Review of SEN Home to School Transport

Review of Terms and Conditions

Reduction in the budget for the Contact Service

2017/18 Savings Proposals Approved at Budget Council March 2017

Achieved

On-Target

Mitigating
Actions

Balance to
Address

Achieved

On-Target

Mitigating
Actions

Balance to
Address

Page 38



Savings 
Reference

Savings Target Achieved On-Target Mitigating 
Actions

Balance to 
Address

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CS-2017-
004 (61) (61) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
015 (40) (40) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
016 (114) (114) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
017 (160) (160) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
018 (50) (50) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
021 (40) (40) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
022 (24) (24) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
055 (15) (15) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
303 (60) (60) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
304 (44) (44) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
305 (350) (350) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
306 (200) (200) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
307 (80) (80) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
308 (70) (70) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
309 (24) (24) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
317 (46) (46) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
318 (22) (22) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
319 (30) (30) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
018 (39) (39) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
346 (20) (20) 0 0 0

CS-2017-
347 (22) (22) 0 0 0

(1,511) (1,511) 0 0 0

TOTAL (2,316) (1,973) 0 (343) 0

Rationalise the staffing establishment of the 
Commissioning/Placement Team

Rationalisation of support to the Rochdale Borough Safeguarding 
Children Board (RBSCB) aligned to changes in legislation

Reduction in Edge of Care Budget provision

Review of Practice Improvement 

Restructure of Children's and Adult's Occupational Therapy Services

Reshape of Children's Social Care delivery

Restructure of  Youth Offending Service 

Remodel and Review the Contact Service

Review of funding for Play Schemes

Remodel of the Common Assessment Framework (CAF) Team

Reduction in Assistant Director support  budget

Reduction in Emergency Duty Team budget

Rationalisation of the  Adoption and Fostering Service

The saving for the review of special education needs home to school transport is to be mitigated in 2017/18 by in-year savings across the Service.  For future 
mitigation, the balance is Included in the Budget Gap from 2018/19.

Reduction in Business support

Reduction in Edge of Care Budget provision

Sub Total

Review of Fostering and Adoption Service

Safeguarding Unit reduction in staffing

workforce development staffing changes

Remodelling of the Education Welfare Service

Proposed cessation of Mobile Play Team

Update on achievement of savings, which were not achieved or have been mitigated

Rationalisation of the additional funding for Child & Adolescent Mental 
Health Service (CAMHS)

Nature of Saving

Table 2. 2017/18 Saving Proposals Approved at Budget Council March 2017

Page 39



SAVINGS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF JULY 2017

Service: NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE

SUMMARY

Savings Identified as part of 2016/17 Budget Process

Table 1. 2017/18 Saving Proposals approved at Budget Council February 2016
Savings 

Reference
Savings Target Achieved On-Target Mitigating 

Actions
Balance to 
Address

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

EE103-02WF (15) (15) 0 0 0

EE113-02WF (19) (19) 0 0 0

EE114-02WF (20) 0 0 (20) 0

(54) (34) 0 (20) 0

2017/18 Savings Proposals Approved at Budget Council March 2017

Sub Total

Nature of Saving

Joint Civil Parking Enforcement Contract 

Phased reduction in Mailroom Service provision

Restructure Highways Maintenance Team

Achieved

On-Target

Mitigating
Actions

Balance to
Address

Achieved

On-Target

Mitigating
Actions
Balance to
Address

Page 40



Savings 
Reference

Savings Target Achieved On-Target Mitigating 
Actions

Balance to 
Address

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

NH-2017-027 (29) (29) 0 0 0

NH-2017-032 (27) (27) 0 0 0

NH-2017-310 (85) 0 (85) 0 0

NH-2017-311 (60) 0 0 (60) 0

NH-2017-321 (83) 0 (83) 0 0

NH-2017-322 (15) (15) 0 0 0

NH-2017-323 (105) (81) 0 (24) 0

NH-2017-324 (50) (41) 0 (9) 0

NH-2017-325 (86) (86) 0 0 0

NH-2017-326 (128) 0 (96) (32) 0

NH-2017-327 (47) 0 (35) (12) 0

NH-2017-328 (49) (49) 0 0 0

NH-2017-329 (75) (39) 0 (36) 0

NH-2017-330 (41) 0 (31) (10) 0

NH-2017-032 (27) (27) 0 0 0

NH-2017-343 (28) (28) 0 0 0

NH-2017-345 (58) (58) 0 0 0

NH-2017-348 (69) (46) 0 (23) 0

(1,062) (526) (330) (206) 0

TOTAL (1,116) (560) (330) (226) 0

Street Lighting Team Restructure (Inc. Oldham)

Communications Team Restructure

Nature of Saving

Rationalisation of Enforcement activity across the Council

Neighbourhoods Business Support Team restructure and 
rationalisation

Proposal to review the Legal Advice: Welfare, Debt and Housing 
Support 

Table 2. 2017/18 Saving Proposals Approved at Budget Council March 2017

Review of Community Centre grant funding

Restructure of Strategic Housing Service

Facilities Management Restructure

Restructure of Environmental Management Service

Update on achievement of savings, which were not achieved or have been mitigated

Management Information Systems Team restructure

Restructure - Corporate Policy, Performance and Improvement 
Team

Rationalisation of Township staffing structure

Amalgamate and restructure Projects and Highways Teams

Restructure of the ICT Systems Team

Sub Total

Communications Team staffing reduction

Community Group subsidies

Review of Library Services

Review Library Service and Customer Services Management

All mitigated savings are being achieved across the Service and there are no on-going pressures being reported at this time. Majority of saving delays relate to 
staffing restructures taking longer than anticipated.

Page 41



                                                                                                                                                               APPENDIX F

Capital Current Budget & Forecast 2017/18 Spend

£0
00

Adult Care 
Directorate

Children's 
Directorate

Economy 
Directorate

Neighbourhoods 
Directorate

Public Health 
Directorate

Resources 
Directorate

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

4,735 14,892 39,591 22,540 287 15 82,060

- 5,631 2,342 - - - 7,973

- 550 257 - - - 807

4,735 21,073 42,190 22,540 287 15 90,840Total Budget

GRAPH 1 - Current Budget 2017/18

Forecast Spend

Rephasing

(Overspend)/ Underspend

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

 40,000

 45,000

Adults Children's Economy Neighbourhoods P Health Resources TOTAL
        Re-phased to Date - - - - - -
        Re-phase requested - 5,631 2,342 - - - 7,973
        Total Re-phasing - 5,631 2,342 - - - 7,973

Approved Budget @ July 
Cabinet

4,735 21,073 42,190 22,540 287 15 90,840

As % of July Approved Budget 0.00% 26.72% 5.55% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 8.78%

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

Analysis of Re-phasing by Directorate as at P4

£'000

Page 42



                                                          APPENDIX G

CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF JULY 2017

Service: CHILDREN'S DIRECTORATE

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2017/18

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend

2017/18

Variation 2018/19
Capital 

Programme

2019/20
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
65 0 65 65 0 0 0 65 588 588

1,350 (800) 550 0 550 800 0 1,350 30,161 30,571
19 0 19 19 0 0 0 19 150 150

878 7 885 885 0 498 498 1,881
32 19 51 51 0 0 0 51 512 493

14,728 0 14,728 10,397 4,331 5,200 2,792 22,720
139 0 139 139 0 0 0 139 1,366 1,368

4,636 0 4,636 3,336 1,300 1,966 1,966 8,568
21,847 (774) 21,073 14,892 6,181 8,464 5,256 34,793 32,777 33,170

Variation
2017/18 

Programme
2018/19 

Programme
2019/20
Onwards

Programme
 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

550 (550) (800)
4,331 (4,331) 4,331
1,300 (1,300) 1,300

6,181 (6,181) 4,831 0

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

TOTAL

Schools Cap Condition Programme External
New Place Planning External Rephase Request

New Place Planning : The building schemes to increase the number of pupil places at Moorhouse, St Andrew's and Boarshaw Primary Schools will be 
completed next financial year.

Schools Capital Condition Programme : There are schemes that are no longer going forward and schemes that have come in below tender that will 
be used as additional resource to fund the 2018/19 programme.

Explanation of Variance

BSF IT and Development Mixed

Table 2. Programme Changes Requested in Report

Capital Scheme

Project Ended

Aiming High For Disabled Child
BSF IT and Development
Childrens Social Care Infrastructure
Devolved Formula Capital

TOTAL

Funding
Source

Capital Scheme

New Place Planning
Schools Access
Schools Cap Condition Programme

Early Years Capital Grant

Rephase Request
TOTAL

4,331

1,300

6,181

550BSF IT and Development : The Building Schools for the Future scheme has now ended. 

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

P
age 43



CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF JULY 2017

Service: ECONOMY DIRECTORATE

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2017/18

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend

2017/18

Variation 2018/19
Capital 

Programme

2019/20
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
Definitive ROW Improvement 78 0 78 78 0 0 0 78 115 115

24 0 24 24 0 0 0 24 50 50
Middleton THI 100 0 100 100 0 0 0 100 566 566
P & R Capital Schemes 20 0 20 20 0 0 0 20 227 227

6,688 0 6,688 4,384 2,304 2,420 4,604 13,712 28,197 37,372
Renewable Energy 689 (689) 0 0 0 0 0 0 981 1,670
River Roch Flood Storage 1,627 0 1,627 1,627 0 1,600 1,600 4,827 1,750 3,350
Rochdale Gateways 60 0 60 60 0 0 0 60 60 60
Balderstone Park Development 131 0 131 131 0 0 0 131 136 136
Stakehill Industrial Estate 147 0 147 147 0 0 0 147 188 188
Town Centre Schemes - 2016/17 750 0 750 455 295 0 0 750 455 750
Asset Development Fund 1,965 0 1,965 1,965 0 1,000 1,000 3,965 1,998 4,000
Commercial Investment Fund 10,000 20,000 30,000 30,000 0 0 0 30,000 30,002 30,002
East Lancashire Railway 600 0 600 600 0 0 0 600 600 600

22,879 19,311 42,190 39,591 2,599 5,020 7,204 54,414 65,325 79,086

Variation
2017/18 

Programme
2018/19 

Programme
2019/20
Onwards

Programme
 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

2,304 (2,304) 2,047
Town Centre Schemes - 2016/17 295 (295) 295

2,599 (2,599) 2,342 0

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

TOTAL

Capital Scheme

Town Centre Schemes

TOTAL

Table 2. Programme Changes Requested in Report

Capital Scheme

Funding
Source

Explanation of Variance

Town Centre Schemes Mixed Rephase Request
Borrowing Rephase Request

TOTAL

2,304Town Centre Schemes - See Town Centre Schemes detailed sheet on the next page.

295Town Centre Schemes - 2016/17 - The project is currently in the design stage.  It is envisaged that an element of the main works will run into 
2018/19.

Greenspace Survey and Strategy

2,599

P
age 44



CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF JULY 2017

Service: TOWN CENTRE SCHEMES

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2017/18

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend

2017/18

Variation 2018/19
Capital 

Programme

2019/20
Capital 

Programme

Total 
Programme

Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

1 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 250 250
310 0 310 310 0 0 0 310 1,662 1,662
186 0 186 186 0 0 0 186 263 263
20 0 20 20 0 0 0 20 500 500
25 0 25 25 0 0 0 25 5,159 4,942

170 0 170 170 0 0 0 170 250 250
503 0 503 709 (206) 0 0 503 9,239 9,029
257 0 257 0 257 0 0 257 243 500

1,423 0 1,423 1,423 0 0 1,423 2,511 2,510
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 388 457

206 0 206 0 206 0 0 206 5,829 6,035
2,587 0 2,587 780 1,807 0 0 2,587 1,143 2,950

890 0 890 650 240 1,530 1,580 4,000 650 4,000
110 0 110 110 0 890 0 1,000 110 1,000

0 0 0 0 0 3,024 3,024 0 3,024
6,688 0 6,688 4,384 2,304 2,420 4,604 13,712 28,197 37,372

Annual allocations not included

Variation
2017/18 

Programme
2018/19 

Programme
2019/20
Onwards

Programme
 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

(206) 206
257 (257)
206 (206)

1,807 (1,807) 1,807
240 (240) 240

2,304 (2,304) 2,047 0

P2 TCMP - Middleton Gardens Phase 3
River Re-opening Site
Station Car Parking
Town Centre East Feasibility
Telegraph House Demolition
Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration

Capital Scheme

Drake Street Improvements (PIF)

P2 TCMP - Conservation area improvements
Middleton Town Centre Phase 3

Rochdale Town Hall Restoration

Town Hall Square
Wheatsheaf Entrance Work
Rochdale Market
Town Hall Square PH2
Drake Street Phase 2

TOTAL

Capital Scheme

Funding
Source

Table 2. Programme Changes Requested in Report
Explanation of Variance

Town Centre East Feasibility Mixed
Telegraph House Demolition External

Funding Switch
Project Ended

Wheatsheaf Entrance Work Mixed
Rochdale Market Borrowing

Funding Switch
Rephase Request

Town Hall Square PH2 Borrowing Rephase Request
TOTAL

P
age 45



Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000
(206)

257

206

1,807

240

2,304

Town Centre East Feasibility-  Transfer of budget back from the Wheatsheaf Entrance Work scheme (see below) as the project has now finished and the remaining 
budget that was transferred was surplus to requirements.

Telegraph House Demolition - The demolition of the building is now complete and no further costs are expected.  The unspent grant budget will have to be returned 
to the provider unless any additional spend within the Town Centre East programme is identified as meeting the grant criteria in future years.

Wheatsheaf Entrance Work - The scheme is complete and final retention payments made.  The remaining budget will be returned back to the Town Centre East 
Feasibility scheme as agreed as part of the original budget transfer that was processed to cover the pressure on the Wheatsheaf Entrance Work.

Rochdale Market - The Council is in the process of securing planning permissions and agreeing scope of works with the market operator.  Works are expected to run 
into 2018/19.

Town Hall Square PH2 - The project is currently in the design, consultation and procurement stage.  It is envisaged that an element of the main works will run into 
2018/19.
TOTAL

P
age 46



Page 47



FINANCE SERVICES

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\1\4\AI00025414$qxosbarb.xlsx

P4 2017/18 Finance Update Summary
Revenue Summary

Revenue Key Movements/Variances
Adult Care

£440k - due to a combination of staffing savings; mainly as a result of staff turnover; the renegotiation of contracts with
external providers; and an increase in Government grant income to the service

Economy
(£241k) - pressure associated with achievement of the Asset Rationalisation efficiency target carried forward from the

2016/17 Savings Programme.
Pressure funding has been requested to meet this pressure, which is subject to Cabinet member approval.

Neighbourhoods
(£112k) - The pressure predominantly relates to the Facilities Management and Environmental areas of Directorate.

Resources
£295k- due to a combination of staffing savings; mainly as a result of staff turnover and an increase in external grant income

to the service

Finance Control
£517k - in year saving associated with no additional borrowing to July and lower than forecast interest rates.

Collection Fund Update

The forecast Collection Fund Position for 2017/18 at P4 is a surplus of £1.436m, comprising £0.071m deficit relating to Business Rates and
£1.507m surplus relating to Council Tax.

The Council's share of the surplus is £1.237m .

Collection Fund Variance Explanation
Business Rates

£27k - Forecast increased Business Rates gross income, offset by increased empty/part occupied relief.

£44k - Actual deficit brought forward from 2016/17 is £44k higher than had been forecast as part of the 2017/18 Budget process. .

Council Tax
(£60k) - Forecast reduced Council Tax gross income, partially offset by reduced Single Person and Empty Property discounts.
(£502k)- Forecast reduced level of Local Council Tax Support Scheme discount/ Hardship Relief given.

(£979k) - Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt provision.
£34k - Actual surplus brought forward from 2016/17 is £34k lower than had been forecast as part of the 2017/18 Budget process.

Directorate/ Detail
Budget 
Council

Virements/
Contingency Current Budget

Service and 
Corporate 

Uncontrollables

Current 
Controllable
Approved 

Net 
Budget

Forecast Spend 
at 

period end

Forecast
In Year Saving/

(Overspend)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Adult Care 54,777 4,764 59,541 4,295 55,246 54,806 440
Children's 57,520 (291) 57,229 20,300 36,929 36,929 0
Economy 10,923 (190) 10,733 676 10,057 10,298 (241)
Neighbourhoods 54,168 1,564 55,732 568 55,164 55,276 (112)
Public Health and Wellbeing 22,215 51 22,266 2,092 20,174 20,174 0
Resources 5,562 742 6,304 (3,922) 10,226 9,931 295
TOTAL SERVICE SPENDING 205,165 6,640 211,805 24,009 187,796 187,414 382

Finance Control: Corporately Held Budgets (10,581) (1,919) (12,500) 1,375 (13,875) (14,392) 517
Finance Control: Transformation Fund 1,250 (239) 1,011 0 1,011 1,011 0
Finance Control: Budget Pressures 197 572 769 0 769 769 0
TOTAL FINANCE CONTROL SPENDING (9,134) (1,586) (10,720) 1,375 (12,095) (12,612) 517

NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 196,031 5,054 201,085 25,384 175,701 174,802 899

  Business Rates Council Tax Total 
  % £'000 % £'000 £'000 
            
Forecast Collection Fund (surplus)/deficit at 
31/03/18   71   (1,507) (1,436) 
            
Preceptors' Share of 2017/18 forecast 
outturn           

Rochdale BC 99 70 86.70 (1,307) (1,237) 

Police & Crime Commissioner for Greater 
Manchester -  -  9.71 (146) (146) 

Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Authority 1 1 3.59 (54) (53) 

Central Government -  -  -  -  -  
Total forecast (surplus)/deficit 100 71 100 (1,507) (1,436) 
 

Adults Children's Economy Neighbourhoods P Health Resources TOTAL
Actual Spend to Date 501               1,040              9,270              2,202               -             -                 13,013       
Re-phased to Date -               -                 -                 -                   -             -                 -             
Re-phase requested -               5,631              2,342              -                   -             -                 7,973         
Under / Overspend 550                 257                 807            
Forecasted Spend 4,234            13,852            30,321            20,338              287            15                  69,047       

Approved Budget 4,735            21,073            42,190            22,541              287            15                  90,840       

P
age 48



Report to Cabinet and Corporate O&S Committee

Date of Meeting 14th September 2017 
(CAB)
17th October 2017 (COS)

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Finance  

Report Author Julie Murphy  
Public/Private Document Public

Collection Fund 2017/18

Executive Summary

1. To update Cabinet and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 
Council’s forecast 2017/18 Collection Fund position as at the end of July 
2017.

Recommendation

2. Note the forecast 2017/18 Collection Fund position as at the end of July 2017.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Collection Fund update report for 2017/18 is presented to Cabinet for 
noting as part of the budget monitoring process.

Key Points for Consideration

4. Introduction

4.1.1 The Collection Fund Account reflects the statutory requirement for the Council to 
maintain a separate fund in relation to the billing and collection of Business Rates 
and Council Tax. 

4.1.2 This report focuses on the forecast Collection Fund position for 2017/18 covering:
 the summary position, and the Council’s share of the Collection Fund position;
 the Business Rates income position compared to budget, an update relating to 

rateable value appeals, 2017/18 collection performance and current level of 
arrears;

 the Council Tax income position compared to budget, detail of the Local 
Council Tax Support Scheme, 2017/18 collection performance and current 
level of arrears.

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



4.2      Summary

4.2.1 The forecast Collection Fund Position for 2017/18 is a surplus of £1.436m, 
comprising:
 £0.071m deficit relating to Business Rates;
 £1.507m surplus relating to Council Tax.

4.2.2 Table 1 following shows the forecast 2017/18 position on the Collection Fund as at 
31st July 2017, and the allocation of the forecast surplus between precepting 
authorities.

Table 1 - Collection Fund surplus 2017/18

 
Business 

Rates Council Tax Total

 % £'000 % £'000 £'000
      
Forecast Collection Fund 
(surplus)/deficit at 31/03/18  71  

(1,507
) (1,436)

      
Preceptors' Share of 2017/18 forecast 
outturn      

Rochdale BC 99 70
86.7

0
(1,307

) (1,237)

Police & Crime Commissioner for 
Greater Manchester - - 9.71 (146) (146)
Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue 
Authority 1 1 3.59 (54) (53)

Central Government - - - - - 

Total forecast (surplus)/deficit 100 71 100
(1,507

) (1,436)

4.2.3 The Council’s share of the forecast 2017/18 Collection Fund surplus as at 31st July 
2017 is £1.237m. 

4.2.4 The Local Government Finance Settlement 2017/18 included the introduction of 
the 100% retention of Business Rates for various regional pilot authorities, 
including Greater Manchester. The pilot authorities will each retain 100% of locally-
raised Business Rates, of which 99% is retained by the local authority, and 1% 
retained by Greater Manchester Combined Authority in respect of GM Fire and 
Rescue Authority.

4.2.5 The Council continues to be part of a Business Rates pool, which for 2017/18 
includes the 10 Greater Manchester local authorities, Cheshire East Council and 
Cheshire West & Chester Council. Any sum gained, after applying the agreed 
allocation to levy authorities, will be retained by the pool for investment within 
Greater Manchester and other non-Greater Manchester Authorities involved in the 
pool.

Page 50



4.2.6 The Council continues to be involved in a pilot scheme for the full retention of 
Business Rates growth for 2017/18. Discussions are on-going with DCLG 
regarding the financial arrangements.

4.3 Business Rates 

4.3.1 Net Income Raised

4.3.1.1 The 2017/18 outturn position relating to Business Rates is a deficit of £0.071m.

4.3.1.2  The Government’s 2017 Spring Budget included additional initiatives, in the form 
of discretionary reliefs, to support businesses that have been significantly 
affected by the 2017 Business Rates revaluation. Approximately £0.360m has 
been included in the forecast outturn to reflect the possible relief that will be 
given. This was not known about when the 2017/18 Budget was set, so has 
impacted on the outturn position forecast. The Council will receive Section 31 
grant to compensate for this loss of income, and this will be credited to the 
General Fund.

4.3.1.3 Table 2 following provides detail of the current 2017/18 Business Rates position:

Page 51



Table 2 – 2017/18 Business Rates income

Description Budget 2017/18 
forecast

(Surplus
)/ Deficit

(Surplus)/Defi
cit movement 

from July 
Cabinet 
Finance 
Update

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gross income (77,592) (79,000) (1,408) (392)
Net Small Business Rate relief 5,969 6,200 231 300
Mandatory Charitable relief 4,179 4,300 121 121
Discretionary relief 911 1,294 383 388
Empties & Part Occupied relief 5,150 5,850 700 - 
Net Income (61,383) (61,356) 27 417
Less:     
Charge re bad debt provision 1,048 1,048 - - 
Allowance for cost of collection 281 281 - - 
Provision for rateable value 
revaluations 3,578 3,578 - - 
Renewable energy schemes 496 496 - - 
Net yield (55,980) (55,953) 27 417
2017/18 payments to 
preceptors/billing authority 55,980 55,980 - - 

In year surplus - 27 27  
(Surplus)/deficit brought 
forward from 2016/17 57 101 44 - 
Payments from 
preceptors/billing authority re 
2016/17 deficit per the 2017/18 
Budget process (57) (57) - - 
Forecast deficit as at 31/3/18 - 71 71 - 

Page 52



4.3.1.4 The main areas of overall variance to the budget are:      

Explanation of variance

Variation to 
budget, 

£000
Forecast increased Business Rates gross income, 
offset by increased Small Business Rates Relief, 
charitable relief, discretionary relief, and empty/part 
occupied relief.

27

Actual deficit brought forward from 2016/17 is £44k 
higher than had been forecast as part of the 2017/18 
Budget process. 

44

2017/18 forecast deficit 71

4.4.2 Valuation Office Agency (VOA) appeals 

4.4.2.1Since 1st April 2013 local authorities have been responsible for providing for future 
potential losses of income for successful appeals against revaluations which have 
taken place in 2005, 2010 and 2017. There is still a backlog of appeals that require 
review by the VOA, mostly dating back to the 2010 RV list.

4.4.2.2 The outstanding number of appeals includes new appeals which have been 
submitted during the year, offset by cases that have been agreed, withdrawn, or 
dismissed.

4.4.2.3 The number of property revaluation appeals outstanding at the end of July 2017, 
relating to Rochdale’s 2005 and 2010 valuation lists, was 538 cases, with a 
rateable value (RV) of £47.9m (equating to approximately £23.8m in annual 
Business Rates income). 

4.4.2.4 The level of provision for appeals relating to the 2005 and 2010 revaluations is 
£9.4m. 

 
Outstanding 

appeals list date
Number of 

appeals 
outstanding

Rateable 
value (RV)

£’000

March 2017 566 48,721

July 2017 538 47,910

4.4.2.5 New appeals against the 2010 RV list will cease after September 2017. An 
additional amount of provision has been included in respect of appeals that may be 
raised to the end of September 2017.  

4.4.2.6 There is currently no information available concerning the level of appeals relating 

Page 53



to the 2017 RV list, therefore it is currently unclear what the financial impact may 
be.

           The Government has amended the Business Rates Appeals system, with effect 
from 1st April 2017. There is a new three-stage approach to Business Rates 
Appeals: 
 Check stage, in which facts concerning the property are agreed between the 

Valuation Office Agency (VOA) and the ratepayer. 
 Challenge stage, during which the great majority of cases are resolved between 

the VOA and the ratepayer. 
 Appeal stage which focuses on issues which remain outstanding and which are 

material, on the basis of arguments and evidence which have already been 
established.

4.4.2.7 The level and outcome of appeals is a volatile area. The 2017/18 charge to the 
Collection Fund for appeals is currently £3.578m which reflects the need to offset 
the impact of appeals relating to the 2017 RV list, and any shortfall in provision 
relating to the 2005 and 2010 lists.

4.4.3 Business rates 2017/18 collection performance 

4.4.3.1 The year to date collection rate for Business Rates income that has been billed in 
2017/18 is 35.6%, which is 0.4% lower than that at the equivalent period in 
2016/17.Collection performance is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that 
debt is recovered as efficiently and effectively as possible, and so that any trends 
may be highlighted and action taken as necessary. 

4.4.3.2 Table 3 shows the aged debt analysis of Business Rates arrears, excluding legal 
costs, as at 31st March 2017 and 31st July 2017. Pre 2017/18 arrears are £3.104m 
as at 31st July 2017, which is a net increase of £1.296m from 31st March 2017 
position.

Table 3 – Business Rates arrears (excluding legal costs) 

Year
Arrears as 

at 31st 
March 2017

Arrears as 
at 31st 

July2017

Decrease/ 
(increase) 

in debt
 £'000 £'000 £'000
Pre 2017/18 debt    
2016/17 885 1,635 (750)
2015/16 210 881 (671)
2014/15 243 167 76
2013/14 165 122 43
2012/13 112 109 3
2011/12 98 96 2
Prior to 2011 95 94 1
Total arrears 1,808 3,104 (1,296)

4.4.3.3 There has been a significant change to one RV assessment which has now been 
split into 19 different assessments. This has affected prior year income relating to 
2015/16 and 2016/17, which has had the effect of increasing the levels of arrears 

Page 54



in 2015/16 and 2016/17 by £2m, and created a credit balance relating to the 
original assessment of approximately £1.5m. 

4.4.3.4 The forecast 2017/18 charge to the Collection Fund for bad and doubtful debts is 
£1.048m, which is in line with budget. 

4.6 Council Tax 

4.6.1 Net Income Raised

4.6.1.1 The 2017/18 current forecast position relating to Council Tax is a surplus of 
£1.507m. Table 4 provides details of the forecast position for Council Tax

Table 4 – 2017/18 Council Tax Income

Description Budget 2017/18 
forecast

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

movement 
from July 
Cabinet 
Finance 
Update

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INCOME     

Income from Council Tax
(121,33

7)
(121,40

0) (63) (400)
Income from premium on empty 
properties (157) (160) (3) (5)
Council Tax discounts 12,227 12,158 (69) 100
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 17,802 17,300 (502) (252)
Hardship Relief 50 25 (25) - 
Prior year adjustments 50 150 100 - 
Total income (91,365) (91,927) (562) (557)
EXPENDITURE     
Charge re bad debt provision 2,741 1,762 (979) - 
Total expenditure 2,741 1,762 (979) - 
Net income to be raised for 
precept/ billing authority after 
LCTSS awarded (88,624) (90,165) (1,541) (557)
2017/18 payments to Preceptors 88,624 88,624 - - 
In year surplus - (1,541) (1,541) (557)
(Surplus)/deficit brought forward 
from 2016/17 (5,075) (5,041) 34 - 
Payments to preceptors re 2016/17 
surplus as per the 2017/18 Budget 
process 5,075 5,075 - - 
Forecast surplus as at 31/3/18 - (1,507) (1,507) (557)

Page 55



4.6.1.2 The main areas of overall variance from the budget are:

Explanation of variance

Variation to 
budget, 

£000
Forecast increased Council Tax gross income, 
partially offset by reduced Single Person and Empty 
Property discounts.

(60)

Forecast reduced level of Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme discount/ Hardship Relief given. (502)

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt 
provision. (979)

Actual surplus brought forward from 2016/17 is £34k 
lower than had been forecast as part of the 2017/18 
Budget process. 

34

2017/18 forecast surplus (1,507)

4.6.2 Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTSS)

4.6.2.1 The award of Local Council Tax Support to a Council Tax payer is deducted from 
Council Tax bills at the start of the year as a discount. This will remain the same 
unless there is a change of circumstances within the household. Local Council Tax 
Support relief given for 2017/18 is forecast to be £17.300m which is £0.502m 
(2.8%) less than the budget of £17.802m. 

Table 5 - LCTSS - Comparison of estimate to forecast  as at the end of July 2017

 

Estimated 
number of 
claimants

Number of 
claimants per 
actual data at 
end July 2017

Increase/ 
(reduction) in 

claimant 
numbers

% 
reduction 

in 
claimants

Working age 
total 14,132 14,048 (84) (0.59%)
Pension credit 
age total 8,866 8,525 (341) (3.85%)
Total 22,998 22,573 (425) (1.85%)
 

 

Estimate  2017/18 
forecast

(Surplus)/defici
t Variation

% 
reduction 

in discount 
given

 £'000 £'000 £'000 %
Working age 
total 9,778 9,895 117 1.20%
Pension credit 
age total 8,024 7,405 (619) (7.71%)
Total 17,802 17,300 (502) (2.82%)

Page 56



4.6.2.2 Whilst the current number of claimants has reduced by 1.85% compared to 
budget, the reduction in discount given is 2.82%, meaning that the average level of 
support per claimant is slightly lower than that anticipated when the 2017/18 
scheme was agreed.

4.6.3 Council Tax 2017/18 collection performance

4.6.3.1 The year to date collection rate for Council Tax income that has been billed in 
2017/18 is 37%, which is the same as that at the equivalent period in 2016/17. 
Collection performance is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that debt is 
recovered as efficiently and effectively as possible, and so that any trends may be 
highlighted and action taken as necessary. 

4.6.3.2 Table 6 shows the age debt analysis of pre 2017/18 Council Tax debt, excluding 
legal costs, as at 31st March 2017 and 31st July 2017. Pre 2017/18 arrears as at 
31st July 2017 were £11.220m, which is a net decrease of £1.654m from 31st 
March 2017 position.

Table 6 – Council Tax arrears, excluding legal costs

Year

Arrears as at 
31st March 

2017

Arrears as at 
31st July 

2017

Decrease/ 
(increase) in 

debt
 £'000 £'000 £'000
Pre 2017/18 
debt    
2016/17 4,703 3,882 821
2015/16 2,865 2,560 305
2014/15 1,973 1,747 226
2013/14 1,319 1,187 132
2012/13 674 625 49
2011/12 576 533 43
Prior to 2011 764 686 78
Total arrears 12,874 11,220 1,654

4.6.3.3 The forecast 2017/18 charge to revenue for bad and doubtful debts is 
£1.762m, which is £0.979m below the budget. This is due to the continued on-
going improvement in the collection of debt, both in year and prior years, and 
reduced levels of write off of debt, which has led to the level of provision required 
being reduced.

4.6.4 Council Tax Premium Waivers

4.6.4.1 Residential properties that have been empty for more than two years are, with 
specific exemptions, charged a Council Tax premium of a further 50% of the usual 
charge.  To support the local housing market, the Head of Revenues & Benefits, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance, has delegated authority to 
waive part or all of the premium charge in exceptional circumstances. In 2017/18 
there have been 4 cases in which discretion has been exercised, totalling £3,736. 

Page 57



4.7 Alternatives considered

Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Authority’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. Effective financial management is 
critical to ensuring that financial resources are received in line with the budget, 
which enables them to be targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring 
enables the early identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely 
corrective action.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Financial Implications

5.1     The main body of the report provides a detailed analysis of the 2017/18 Collection 
Fund current forecast position.

5.2 The Council’s 2017/18 General Fund budget set at Budget Council in March 2017 
included an estimated 2016/17 Collection Fund surplus of £4.359m. The difference 
between this estimate and the Council’s share of the actual 2016/17 outturn of 
£4.321m is held within the Collection Fund for 2017/18.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1      Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2005, 2010 and 2017 
cause uncertainty   and financial risk for the Business Rates income retained by 
the Council. The situation is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that any 
changes in the trend for successful appeals are recognised due to the future 
impact on Business Rates income and the impact for the provision for any 
backdated elements.

6.2 The VOA alters rating assessments if new information comes to light indicating that 
the valuation is inaccurate. These could relate to a demolition, new property builds 
or other physical changes to a property. The number of alterations, financial impact 
and timing of the revaluations are not within the control of the Council.

6.3 The future level of collection of both Business Rates and Council Tax debt is a 
potential financial risk. Collection performance is being monitored on a monthly 
basis to ensure that debt is recovered as efficiently and effectively as possible, and 
so that any trends may be highlighted and action taken as necessary.

6.4 There is an on-going potential Business Rates risk concerning a request to cancel 
a backdated business rates liability. The rates liability amounts to £1.74m and 
including interest may amount to £2m. The initial request was refused, but further 
challenge has been received. A letter has been issued to the agent for the 
organisation confirming that the council does not intend to cancel the liability and 
explaining the rationale. A response has been received recently from the agent 
requesting further clarification. Before responding further, Legal Counsel’s opinion 
has been sought. This confirms the Council’s decision to refuse the request to 
cancel the liability. A further letter will be issued to the rating agent concerned. No 

Page 58



assumption around this risk has been built into the appeals provision at this stage.

6.5 On 31st March 2015 the Council was informed by the VOA that they had received 
a proposal to alter the rating list and to merge a telecommunications network that 
currently appears in the Council’s rating list into part of a single national 
assessment, backdated to 1st April 2010. The rateable value of the hereditament 
is £368k; the Council’s share of the annual business rates income being £89k. The 
VOA is considering this proposal. The issue will potentially affect any local 
authority within which the company concerned has a property relevant to their 
proposal, including Rochdale BC. A provision for the whole of the potential impact 
has been made in relation to this issue.

6.6 Agents for some NHS health trusts are in the process of applying for business rate 
relief due to charitable status, with backdated effect. DCLG are aware of the issue 
and are currently assessing the legal grounds for the submission. No provision has 
been made for this issue This has the potential to impact upon business rates 
income.

6.7 There is an on-going risk that issues decided nationally by the VOA could 
potentially impact on Rochdale BC’s business rates income.

6.8      The Government amended the Business Rates Appeals system with effect from 1st 
April 2017, and there is a new three-stage approach to Business Rates Appeals: 
Check, Challenge and Appeal.
It is currently unclear what the financial impact of the new system will be. 

Consultation

7. The Leadership Team, Cabinet Member for Corporate & Resources and 
Opposition Portfolio Holder for Corporate & Resources have been informed 
of the 2017/18 Collection Fund current forecast position and its implications 
for future years. The report will be presented to the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 19th September 2017. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. For further information about this 
report or access to any 
background papers contact Stuart 
Smith

No1 Riverside Floor 2 

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith, 
Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
Tel : 01706 924196

Page 59

mailto:Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


Report to Corporate Overview & Scrutiny

Date of Meeting 17th October 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate & Resources
Report Author Tracey Bland
Public/Private Document Public

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) provides a robust, consistent 
and sustainable approach to establishing and maintaining a stable and 
prudent financial basis on which the Council’s services are delivered.

The MTFS is one of the key strategic plans of the Council and is a five year 
plan which sets out the Council’s commitment to provide services that meet 
the needs of people locally and that represent good value for money.

This report provides  Members with an update of the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23.

Recommendation

2.1 Consider the updated Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2018/19 to 
2022/23.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced Revenue Budget 
and Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2020/21 to Budget Council. The Council is 
required to set a balanced budget for 2018/19 by the by 11th March 2018. The 
Medium Term Financial Strategy provides a key part of the budget setting 
process 

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.1.1

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) links the Council’s vision and 
priorities with its financial budgets and details how the Council’s finances will 

Page 60

Agenda Item 10



4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

4.1.7

4.2.

be structured and managed to ensure that this fits with, and supports, the 
priorities of the Council and its partners.

The MTFS is aligned to the Borough’s Place Plan and the Council’s Corporate 
Plan to ensure that our resources are directed to delivering the priorities for the 
Borough.

Medium term financial planning is critical to ensuring that the Council has a 
clear understanding of the level of available resources, the costs of delivering 
existing services and plans for new services. Financial planning facilitates 
strategic choices around service delivery, efficiency and service reductions.

Local authorities have faced unprecedented reductions in Government funding 
since the Government Spending Review 2010, coupled with rising costs and 
increased demand for services by local residents has meant that our Council 
has had to make significant budget savings. 

The period covered by this financial strategy will continue to present to Local 
Government some of the most significant operational and financial challenges 
ever experienced by those leading and managing the delivery of local services. 
Managing our money well is now more important than it has ever been. The 
funding outlook for local authorities will remain challenging into the medium-
term.

There are numerous issues which impact on the Council’s budget. Budget 
assumptions contained in this Strategy will be regularly reviewed and updated 
to ensure that the medium term forecasts provide an early indication of any 
changes, both as a result of Government changes and local pressures 
affecting the medium term financial plan. 

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/18 to 2021/22 was 
approved at Budget Council March 2017. Appendix 1 provides an updated 
MTFS for 2018/19 to 2022/23 reflecting current budget assumptions. The 
MTFS for 2018/19 to 2022/23 will be updated throughout the budget process 
and will be formally presented for approval at Budget Council March 2018.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. Whilst 
budgets are prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines a number of 
alternative options relating to savings proposals and budget pressures are 
considered as part of the overall budget setting process.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 There are numerous issues which impact on the Council’s budget. Budget 
assumptions contained in this Strategy will be regularly reviewed and updated 
to ensure that the medium term forecasts provide an early indication of any 
changes, both as a result of Government changes and local pressures 
affecting the medium term financial plan. The MTFS will be reviewed and 

Page 61



5.2

updated during the year to reflect the latest position in regard to the Council’s 
financial position, priorities and future plans. 

The financial implications are detailed in the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
attached at Appendix 1.

Risk and Policy Implications

Risks to the revenue budget are detailed in the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy attached at Appendix 1

The Council is under a duty to calculate the budget in accordance with 
Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and must make three 
calculations namely: an estimate of the Council’s gross revenue expenditure; 
an estimate of anticipated income; and a calculation of the difference between 
the two. The amount of the budget requirement must be sufficient to meet the 
Council’s budget commitments and ensure a balanced budget. The amount of 
the budget requirement must leave the Council with adequate financial 
reserves. The level of budget requirement must not be unreasonable having 
regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its Council Tax payers and non-
domestic rate payers.

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on local 
authorities to make arrangements for ‘the proper administration of their 
financial affairs’, the details of which are set out in the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy

6.1

6.2

6.3

Consultation

7.1 Consultation is to be undertaken with the, stakeholder groups, staff and 
service users as appropriate throughout the budget process. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background N/A

For Further Information Contact: Tracey Bland, Tel: 01706 925405, 
tracey.bland@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 62



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 1

Medium Term Financial Strategy
2018/19 to 2022/23

Introduction

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a five year plan which sets out the 
Council’s commitment to provide services that meet the needs of people locally and 
that represent good value for money within the overall resources available to it. 

The MTFS is what links our Council’s vision and priorities with forecasted resources 
and budgets and shows how our Council’s finances will be structured and managed to 
ensure that this fits with, and supports, the priorities of our Council and its partners. 

The strategy considers: 
 international and national economic influences on our Council 
 the influence of Central Government policy and strategy 
 local factors which influence policy within our Council include the commitment to  

regenerate the borough and create jobs 
 key Council policy areas 

The strategy brings together the key issues affecting the:
 Revenue Budget
 Capital Strategy and Capital Programme, and 
 Treasury Management Strategy. 

A key part of the strategy is to highlight the budget issues that will need to be 
addressed by our Council over the coming financial years, by forecasting the level of 
available resources from all sources and budget pressures relating to both capital and 
revenue spending. 

Page 63



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 2

CONTENTS

Part 1: Executive Summary - The Financial Challenge for our Council

Page No.
1. Key objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy
2. Financial savings generated by our Council since 2010/11
3. Changes to the Council’s Spending Power since 2010
4. Changes to Central Government funding since 2013/14
5. Our demographics
6. Forecast gap between resources and spend 2018/19 to 

2022/23
7. Principles of Rochdale’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 

3
4
4
6
7
8
9

Part 2: The Factors Influencing the MTFS

1. Overall Economic Forecasts &  Influences
2. Regional Influences
3. Resources
4. Budget Pressures and increased costs
5. Budget Position for 2018/19 and 2019/20

12
15
16
31
32

Part 3: How will the Council meet the Financial Challenge

1. Revenue Budget Plan
2. Savings Programme
3. Balances , Reserves and Provisions Strategy

39
42
44

Part 4: Financial Assurance 49

Part 5: Efficiency Plan 52

Part 6: Strategies which the MTFS Supports

1.  Borough’s Place Plan 
2.  Corporate Plan 2016/17
3.  Locality Plan

54
55
56

Part 7: Value for Money and Assurance around Financial Management 57

Part 8: Asset Management Strategy 62

Page 64



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 3

Part 9: Treasury Management Strategy 63

Part 10: Linked Strategies 67

Part 11: Conclusion 70

Page 65



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 4

Part 1: Executive Summary – The Finance Challenge for Our Council

1. Rochdale is the birthplace of co-operation, and the Council is committed to retaining 
this distinction by working with partners, local people and communities to improve the 
lives of local people. Our vision is to be a Council which builds success and prosperity 
with our citizens and partners, while protecting vulnerable people.

2. Each year there is a legal requirement to prepare an annual budget and set the 
Council Tax for the borough of Rochdale. Alongside the annual budget our Council 
reviews the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) to take into account the latest 
financial forecasts for future levels of resources for the next 5 years and aligns these 
to service plans. The strategy sets the financial context for how the Council’s 
resources are received and allocated through the budget setting over a rolling five 
year timeframe, for this Strategy that is from 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

3. The MTFS is aligned to the Borough’s Place Plan and the Council’s Corporate Plan to 
ensure that our resources are directed to delivering the vision and priorities for the 
Borough. The key Corporate Plan priorities which the MTFS supports are shown 
below

Our vision : to be a  Council which builds 
success and prosperity with our citizens and 
partners, while protecting vulnerable people

Three key drivers of the Corporate Plan over the next 3 years:
                            People       -    Improving education
                            Place         -    Our local environment
                            Prosperity  -    Our local economy

Improving performance is our fourth priority – Focusing on managing our 
resources effectively to achieve our ambitions – supported by the MTFS

4. Key objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy

The key objectives of the MTFS are as follows:

 To ensure that effective financial planning and management contributes to the 
Council achieving the priorities in the Corporate Plan;

 To direct resources to the Council's priorities to support the achievement of the 
Corporate Plan;

 To maximise the income from Council Tax and Business Rates revenue to support 
the priorities of the council;

 To analyse budget performance to assess the effectiveness of resource allocation.
 To continue to improve value for money - managing people and our money more 

efficiently, streamlining processes and systems, getting better value from 
commissioning and procurement, whilst seeking to minimise the impact of budget 
savings on priority services. 

 To ensure the Council's financial standing is prudent, robust, stable and 
sustainable.

Page 66



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 5

5. Local authorities have faced unprecedented reductions in Government funding since 
the Government Spending Review 2010, coupled with rising costs and increased 
demand for services by local residents has meant that our Council has had to make 
significant budget savings. The Council is now working with partners to transform 
services to enable efficiencies and value for money to be achieved by reducing 
duplication through the integration of services, such as health and social care.

6. Integration of Health & Social Care

Greater Manchester is moving towards taking full control and responsibility of the 
£6bn Health & Social Care Budget with the creation of its own sustainable Health & 
Social Care system by 2021. The Council and local health partners have developed 
a Locality Plan to support the regional delivery of the integration of health and social 
care, public health and prevention. Integration is key to protecting social care and 
providing services to people in the Community. Without investment in social care the 
financial pressure within health will not be sustainable and may lead to a full system 
failure. The pooling of resources across the locality is felt will provide more 
opportunities to explore value for money, economies of scale , reduce duplication 
and streamline processes. From 2018/19 the Local Authority will be moving into a 
formal pooled budget arrangement for health and social care. The MTFS includes 
budgets for Council service areas covered by the pool within existing Directorates 
until the development of the Pool Budget reporting arrangements are confirmed. The 
2018/19 – 2020/21 savings proposals include a number of savings proposals which 
are to be delivered through the efficiencies of integration. There is a risk that delivery 
of the planned benefits may not arise within the timescale forecasts which could 
provide a risk to the Council’s budget.

7. Financial savings generated by our Council since 2010/11

Over the last eight years our Council has approved £176.4m of ongoing savings to 
bridge the gap between falling resources, rising costs and increasing local demands. 
This has led to transformations and changes within our Council as we look to meet 
the changing needs of local residents within the funds we have available. Table 1 
below illustrates the savings agreed between 2010/11 to 2017/18 based on the year 
they were approved.

Page 67



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 6

Table 1 – Our Council’s Revenue Savings approved 2010/11 to 2017/18

8. The continuing need to make budget savings since 2010 is an increasingly difficult 
financial challenge for our Council. Central Government have been clear that the 
approach to reducing the public sector deficit, “so Britain lives within its means”, will 
result in further funding reductions for local authorities. 

9. Changes to the Council’s Spending Power since 2010

Changes in local government funding streams have obscured the true reduction in the 
funding available to councils since 2010. However, using the Government’s own 
measure of “Core Spending Power”1 it can be seen that local government has 
undergone a sustained and significant reduction in total funding. Furthermore the cuts 
have not been borne evenly across the country, with some authorities bearing a much 
higher burden of cuts than the national average.

The heat map in Table 2 illustrates the real term cuts in Core Spending Power per 
head 2010-11 to 2016/172. Rochdale’s cut of £355.84 per head is the 19th highest out 
of 151 upper-tier local authorities.

1 Core Spending Power is the measure used by the Government to demonstrate the maximum funding deemed available to Councils to deliver services 
from Central Government support and locally raised taxes, business rates and council tax.
2 Based on SIGOMA analysis of Core Spending Power since 2010.

Page 68



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 7

Table 2 - Heat map of real term cuts in Core Spending Power per head3

© Crown copyright and database rights (2013) Ordnance Survey licence number 100022264

Table 3 compares the cumulative percentage cut in Core Spending Power since 
2010/11, showing that Rochdale’s reduction of 31% is above the reduction in overall 
funding for England of 22%.

3. Based on SIGOMA analysis of Core Spending Power since 2010. The map calculates the real term value of cuts, at 2016 prices, at district level.

Rochdale 
£355.84 
per head

Page 69



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 8

Table 3 Core Spending Power – Cumulative percentage cut since 2010/11

10. Changes to Central Government Funding since 2013/144

Core spending power identifies the central government resources allocated to a Local 
Authority plus the local sources of revenue from council tax and business rates that 
Central Government forecast could be raised locally. The Council’s core spending 
power has reduced mainly due to the reduction in central government resources in 
particularly Revenue Support Grant.

Funding has fallen by over 50% in five years from £80.57m in 2013/14 to £29.8m in 
2017/18, a reduction of £50.77m, as highlighted at Table 4. This equates to over £238 
per person or £545 per residential dwelling. Our Medium Term Financial Strategy 
forecasts that this will reduce steadily to nil by 2020/21 as part of the Central 
Government move to allowing local authorities to retain business rates to fund local 
services and Central Government’s pledge to reduce levels of public sector deficit by 
the end of the Parliament. 

The Queen’s Speech 2017 did not include the changes expected to bring forward 
legislation to move to 100% business rates retention. Central Government are still 
committed to the move to localism of business rates , however it is currently unclear 

4 Revenue support grant allocations changed significantly from 2013/14, with the introducing of council tax benefits and revised needs formulas. 
Comparisons prior to 2013/14 do not provide a comparable basis.

Page 70



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 9

how this will progress in the next two years. The MFTS, therefore, reflects 100% 
retention of business rates as a pilot authority until further details are provided.

Table 4 shows the reduction in Central Government funding our Council receives, 
which is known as Revenue Support Grant.

Table 4 – Reduction in Revenue Support Grant 2013/14 to 2022/23

11. Resources allocated from Central Government to Rochdale Council and those 
generated locally from council tax and business rates each year will not be enough to 
meet the current spending requirement to deliver local services in the way they are 
now. Our need is greater than the resources that we can generate which is due to a 
combination of  :

 the reduced levels of Central Government funding, 
 the inability to raise funds locally above the level set by Central Government for 

Council Tax above the  referendum limits , which are currently 2% for general 
services and 6% over three years (2017/18 to 2019/20) for Adult Social Care.

 the inability to raise additional business rates above the increases set by 
Central Government.

 rising costs and increases in demand from the changing needs of our Borough 
and its residents. 

12. Our Demographics

Some of the main financial challenges affecting how we balance our budget relate to 
the changing profile of our Council’s residents. These include:

Page 71



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 10

a. Adult Social Care 

Between 2001 and 2014 there has been an increase in residents aged over 75s5 
and over 80s and this is expected to rise by a further 25% by 2024. The pressure 
on rising costs from the national living wage and local pressures as demands for 
services to support vulnerable older people grow are reflected in the MTFS. The 
MTFS assumes an increase in the precept of 3% for 2018/19 with no further 
increase for the remaining 4 years of the Strategy.

b. Adult Social Care and Health

Our Council’s Place Plan highlights that residents are living longer but compared 
to the rest of England and Wales we live shorter and less healthy lives. In some 
parts of our borough there is a 10 year6 difference in life expectancy when 
comparing our most deprived areas to our more affluent. A key pressure on 
services is the increasing demands for adult social care and health services for 
the most vulnerable and deprived residents. Improvements in delivery of these 
services are a priority for the integration of social care and health services 
through the Better Care Fund. It is, however, unclear whether resources 
allocated to our Council will be sufficient to cover additional burdens and 
pressures in future years.

c. Welfare Reform

The Welfare Reform agenda is likely to continue to place additional demands on 
our Council’s services as well as impacting on local authority finances. 
Deprivation is becoming more widespread across our borough with an increased 
proportion of the population living in the most deprived 10% of the country7. This 
increasing level of deprivation affects delivery for a number of services, including 
housing, benefits, adult skills, children’s and adult social care. The MTFS for 
2018/19 recognises a budget pressure for the continuation of the Discretionary 
Crisis Fund following the removal of grant funding. The Discretionary Crisis Fund 
provides funding to support residents in crisis.

d. Children and Young People

Our Council has a relatively young population profile; growing the economy to 
provide skilled and good quality jobs is key to the longer term success of our 
young people. We also have an increasing pressure on the provision of children’s 
and education services due to the increase in children of school age which is 
projected to grow from 33,000 to 35,000 by 2019/208. The 2018/19 MTFS 
recognises budget pressures for Special Educational Needs Transport, due to 
increased need for SEN services.

13. Forecast gap between resources and service spend

The MTFS forecasts that over the next five years from 2018/19 to 2022/23 there will 
be a shortfall between the resources we can raise from local taxes and government 

5 Place Plan (for the Borough) 2016-21
6 Place Plan (for the Borough) 2016-21
7 Place Plan (for the Borough) 2016-21
8 Place Plan (for the Borough) 2016-21

Page 72



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 11

funding (resources available)  compared to the amount we need to spend on local 
services (budget requirement). 

The estimated impact is shown in Table 5 and recognises increasing costs for national 
living wage and service pressures for local need. From 2020/21 resources are 
forecast assuming local authorities take on new responsibilities as part of the move to 
retaining 100% business rates. The Council is part of the pilot for the 100% retention 
of business rates from 2017/18 announced in the Autumn Statement 2016, and this is 
expected to continue in 2018/19. 

Over the five years the gap in resources and budget rises from a balanced position in 
2017/18 to £48.0m in 2022/23, as shown at Table 5. This forecast gap will need to be 
addressed by the Council as part of balancing the budget each year. 

Table 5 – Forecast gap in resources allocated compared to projected spend on 
current service delivery  

14. In order to strengthen our financial position and to move to a more self-financing 
position our Council will have to consider other ways to:
 maximise economic growth to bring in more business rate income
 consider how the strategies around house building can support an increase in  

council tax income and New Homes Bonus
 explore alternative ways to deliver services which support priorities within the 

context of smaller budgets.
 explore opportunities working with partners and working with other local authorities 

to deliver efficiencies in the way we deliver services including harnessing the 
potential of the Devolution agenda

The  Council’s Corporate Plan recognises the significant financial challenges and 
sets out how this will be addressed by six key corporate enabling work programmes.

Our Council will ensure that it supports priority services in line with the Corporate and 
Place Plans. 

Page 73

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/corporate-plan.aspx


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 12

15. Principles of Rochdale’s Medium Term Financial Strategy

The principles which provide the basis for our Medium Term Financial Strategy for 
2018/19 to 2022/23 include the following:

a. To ensure that our Council’s resources are directed to achieving the priorities in 
the Borough’s Place Plan delivered by the Council through the Corporate Plan for 
2016 to 2019.

b. Medium Term Financial Strategy includes as a central theme the incorporation of 
the remaining 2 years of the four year funding allocation, provided by Central 
Government as part of the 2015 Autumn Statement. This provides greater 
assurance as to the level of efficiencies required to balance the budget over the 
coming years. This has been reconfirmed as part of the Local Government 
Finance Settlement 2017/18 for the remaining years to 2019/20.

c. An assumption that Central Government funding will reduce in line with the 
funding allocations published in the Local Government Finance Settlement 
2017/18 and that by 2020/21 our Council will therefore generate the majority of 
its resources from local taxation and income.

d. A move to self-sufficiency, as part of Central Government’s vision for local 
authorities to move away from central government grant resources to funding 
local services from income generated locally.

e. Collecting as much council tax, business rates and other monies rightfully owed 
to us as we can to ensure that we have the resources we need to deliver service 
priorities.

f. Our Council will continue to improve value for money - managing people and our 
money more efficiently, streamlining processes and systems, getting better value 
from commissioning and procurement, whilst seeking to minimise the impact of 
budget savings on priority services. 

g. Opportunities for working in collaboration and partnership and working differently 
will be identified and developed where this supports the priorities in the Place 
Plan and Corporate Plan and improves service delivery. This may include the 
development of trading opportunities, different service delivery models and 
sourcing and securing external funding.

h. Our Council will maintain general balances at a level to mitigate risks, the level of 
general balances will be reviewed annually as part of setting the revenue budget 
and council tax in February /March. It will also maintain earmarked reserves for 
specific purposes which are consistent with achieving its key priorities. The use 
and level of earmarked reserves will be reviewed at least annually.

i. Our Council will seek in the first instance to balance its revenue budget over the 
period of the MTFS without reliance on the use of general balances and contain 
overall Council spending within original estimates. However, the Council will 

Page 74



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 13

utilise funds from the Equalisation Reserve to smooth the impact of the savings 
requirement throughout this period.

j. The Financial Strategy includes assumptions for cost pressures based on Spring 
Budget 2017, known national agreements and local demographic and cost 
pressures. How we set our assumptions is detailed at 3.1.

k. During the period of this MTFS consideration will be explored for the use of 
borrowing to support capital investment to deliver on the Place and Corporate 
Plan outcomes. The Financial Strategy will ensure that the full costs of borrowing 
are taken into account when investment decisions are taken.

l. Our Council will aim to develop our economy and promote our Borough leading 
to wellbeing and prosperity for residents, businesses and communities. This will 
be supported by a planned approach to strategic investment managed through 
our Council’s capital programme.

16. In summary the forecast budget position for the Council shows an ongoing challenge, 
where our financial resources are currently not enough to meet the budget 
requirement to deliver our current service provision. The period covered by this 
financial strategy will continue to present our Council with some of the most significant 
operational and financial challenges ever experienced by those leading and managing 
the delivery of local services.  Managing our money well is now more important than it 
has ever been.

17. In part 2 and 3 of the Medium Term Financial Strategy the forecasts for resources and 
budget pressures over the next five years are outlined in depth, taking into account 
national, regional and local issues which have been reflected in the MTFS. Ways to 
bridge the budget gap, risks and linked strategies are explored which are key 
components of the MTFS for our Council.  

Page 75



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 14

Part 2: The Factors Influencing the Medium Term Financial Strategy

1. Financial Strategy

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is designed to ensure that the 
Council’s resources are prioritised to meet the needs of our residents; the Council is 
able to operate as a going concern and is able to set a balanced budget each year. 
The MTFS ensures that:

 The Council maintains a prudent approach in regard to our finances over 5 years 
of the MTFS;

 The savings programme focuses on the achievement of ongoing savings, but 
recognises the value of one off savings to support both the implementation of 
savings and one off investment.

In compiling the MTFS our Council has considered a number of factors which 
influence the resources and expenditure for the Council. These have been reviewed 
and take into consideration. International, national, regional and local issues have 
been examined to ensure that the MTFS reflects the most up to date financial 
position for the Council.

2. Factors Influencing the Medium Term Financial Strategy   

Local authority funding is subject to both national and international influences, which 
can have a significant impact on the level of services to be provided and our 
Council’s ability to provide them. A strong economy with growth increases revenues 
which supports the Government’s ability to reduce public sector debt as the gap 
between finances raised and spend on public services is reduced. This section will 
briefly outline some of the key national and global issues affecting our Council’s 
forecasts over the next few years.

2.1 Overall Economic Forecasts and Influences

The Autumn Statement 2016 set out the government’s strategy to return the public 
finances to balance as soon as possible in the next Parliament. 

In the Spring Budget 2017 the Chancellor stated that the Budget takes forward the 
Government plans to prepare Britain “for a brighter future” providing:

 A strong and stable platform for Brexit negotiations
 Extending the opportunities to all young people
 further investment in our public services
 the task of getting Britain back to living within its means

whilst still seeking to balance the public finances in the next Parliament.

Page 76



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 15

2.1.1   GDP growth

Public Sector net borrowing per year is the funding gap or deficit between money 
coming into Central Government compared to what it spends on public services
One of the financial performance indicators for Central Government is the level of 
public sector debt compared to gross domestic product (GDP). GDP measures the 
total value of goods and services produced by the UK in a year. The success of the 
economy is therefore also key to the measure of financial performance of Central 
Government. If the economy is not growing the measure of net public sector debt 
compared to GDP can quickly underperform even if all of the austerity measures for 
public sector spending are delivered.
Growth in the UK economy picked up through 2016. Britain’s growth was second 
only to Germany. The Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) now forecasts that the 
UK economy will grow by 2% in 2017.

GDP Growth Forecasts
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Spring Budget 
2017 2.0% 1.6% 1.7% 1.9% 2%

    
Autumn 
Statement 2016 1.40% 1.7% 2.1% 2.1% 2%
    
Change in GDP 
growth forecast 0.60% -0.1% -0.4% -0.2% -

 Latest independent surreys for August 2017 indicate that the economy is growing 
below the forecast set in the Spring Budget 2017. Growth currently being 1.6%, 
0.4% below the forecasts. It is also expected that growth will decline in 2018/19 from 
the level set at Spring Budget 2017 by 0.2% to 1.4%.It it felt that the slower growth is 
in the main due to the uncertainty caused by the Brexit negotiations causing a lack of 
long term investment impacting on productivity.

2.1.2. Public Sector borrowing

The Government has been committed to reducing borrowing ( annual deficit) to seek 
to reduce the overall debt. The UK debt is currently almost £1.7 trillion – around 
£62,000 for every household in the country. In 2009-10 the UK borrowed £1 in every 
£5 that was spent. In 2017/18 it is set to be £1 in every £15.

The level of borrowing is projected to reduce however the level of overall debt as a 
share of GDP is set to peak at 88.8% of GDP in 2017/18 before falling to 79.8% by 
2021/22. The deficit as a percentage of GDP is forecast as :

Page 77



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 16

Deficit as a percentage of GDP:

Spring 
Budget 
2017

Autumn 
Statement  
2016

2016/17 2.6% 2.9%
2017/18 2.9% 1.9%
2018/19 1.9% 1.0%
2019/20 1% (0.5%)
2020/21 0.9% (0.5%)
2021/22 0.7%

The Office of Budget Responsibility will update these forecasts at Autumn Statement 
2017 which are expected to be revised downwards given the current slowing of 
growth in the economy.

2.1.3. Inflation 

The Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) forecast indicated a 0.5% rise in 
Retail Price Index above that set out in the Budget 2016 for 2017/18 and 
0.1% for 2018/19. The latest economic surveys indicate Iinflation continuing to 
rise, currently forecast at 2.6% and likely to rise to 3% by the end of 2017/18.  
On this basis the Bank of England has updated its forecast for inflation from 
2% in 2017 to 3% by the end of the year. 

The Council has during periods of low inflation only provided inflationary increases 
linked to contractual requirements. Should inflation begin to rise as a greater rate 
this strategy will need to be reviewed and will be considered as part of the 2018/19 
budget process following the Autumn Statement 2017 announcements.

For Business Rates income, the Council’s MTFS currently assumes a 3.6% rise for 
2018/19, any change from this once the actual inflation is known will be considered 
as part of the 2018/19 budget setting alongside the impact on top up grant.

2.1.4  Employment 

Spring 
Budget 

2017

Autumn 
Statement  

2016
2016/17 1.7% 1.8%
2017/18 3.7% 3.2%
2018/19 3.6% 3.5%
2019/20 3.1% 3.2%
2020/21 3.1% 3.2%
2021/22 3.2% 3.2%

Page 78



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 17

Employment at Spring Budget 2017 reached a record high of 31.8 million 
people with the employment rate rising from 70.2% to 74.6%. Pay rises, 
however, continue to lag behind inflation at less than 2%. 

2.1.5   International and National risks to current assumptions

The latest projections provided by the Office of Budget Responsibility project that 
there will now be a period of economic uncertainty as the UK negotiates its 
departure from the EU. There is an expectation that this will lead to lower business 
investment with productivity growth to be weaker than previously envisaged. A 
downturn in economic growth may impact on central government revenues which 
could have implications for Local Government funding settlements particularly if the 
demands for increased funding for Health services remain a priority for the 
Government.
Household income growth is expected to slow down as the decline in the value of 
sterling is expected to put pressure on inflation over the next two years therefore 
affecting income growth. At a local level these economic indicators highlight a 
continuation in the gap between the cost of living and pay rises as inflation and 
energy costs continue to grow faster than wages. This is likely to continue the trend 
of rising household debt levels and additional pressures on local welfare services.

This impact on household incomes may place increased pressures on Council 
services and could affect collection rates for areas such as council tax if household 
incomes are squeezed due to the slowdown in the economy, higher inflation and 
the weaker pound.

The assumptions contained in the MTFS currently forecast that the Chancellor of 
the Exchequer will continue with his deficit reduction measures, reflecting the 
remaining two years of the four year funding settlement received in the Local 
Government Finance Settlement.

We estimate that the level of financial resource that we receive in the form of 
Central Government grant will continue to reduce significantly due to Central 
Government’s commitment to devolve powers to local authorities. 

2.2  Regional Influences

2.2.1 Devolution General

The Greater Manchester Devolution Agreement was signed with the Government in 
November 20149 which brings both the decision making powers and greater control 
of financial budgets far closer to the people of Greater Manchester. This gives them 
and their local representatives control over decisions which have until now been 
taken at a national or regional level by providing the legal framework for the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority to assume responsibilities currently performed and 
delivered by other public bodies.

9 Cities and Local Government Devolution Act.

Page 79



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 18

The elected Mayor has now taken up post and from 2018/19 a GM Combined 
Authority Budget will operate including, the precept authorities: GM Police & Crime 
Commissioner, Gm Fire & Rescue Authority and level authorities: GM Waste 
Disposal Authority and GM Passenger Transport Executive. 

From a financial perspective the key change anticipated is the move to 100% 
Business Rate retention. The Local Government Finance Bill, which provided the 
legislative framework for reform, fell due to the general election and was not re-
introduced in the Queen’s Speech 2017. This means it will not be in the 
Government's legislative programme for the next two years, however Central 
Government remain committed to localising business rates , further details are 
expected in the Autumn Statement 2017.

However, Rochdale is part of a Greater Manchester pilot for 100% business rates 
retention, which commenced in 2017/18 and is anticipated to continue into 2018/19.  
The 100% business rates retention pilot provides the pathway for the retention of 
100% business rates by all local authorities. The pilots will be without detriment to 
the resources that would have been available to individual authorities under the 
current local government finance regime (with any “detriment” payments funded from 
outside the Settlement). This assumption is contained within the MTFS throughout 
the five years.

Alongside the move to localising business rates there is work underway at 
Government level to set a new baseline to determine how relative needs are 
assessed. This review seeks to recognise the current and future needs of each local 
authority taking into account each local authority’s ability to raise income from 
council tax/business rates and other forms of income such as fees and charges and 
commercial income.

There is a risk that the central government funding projections, business rates 
income and needs based assessment on which the income included in the MTFS 
will need to be revisited if central government funding is reduced or updated as a 
result of the new methodology for quantifying need. 

2.2.2    Health and Social Care Devolution 

The 10 Local Authorities in Greater Manchester, all Greater Manchester Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and NHS England (NHSE) have signed a 
Memorandum of Understanding as part of Greater Manchester moving towards 
taking full control and responsibility of the £6bn Health & Social Care Budget and the 
creation of its own sustainable Health & Social Care system by 2021. To deliver the 
devolved health and social care initiative, a Greater Manchester Strategic Plan has 
been developed and each local area sets out a Locality plan to support this Strategic 
Plan focussing on the integration of health, social care and public health/prevention. 

The integration of services is key to improving the quality of care and outcomes for 
people     within the funding available. The pooling of resources across the locality is 
felt will provide more opportunities to explore value for money, economies of scale , 
reduce duplication and streamline processes. 

Page 80



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 19

The pooled budget brings together resources from a range of organisations including 
the Clinical Commissioning Group and the Local Authority, Better Care Funds and 
GM level resources to invest in transformation of service delivery, (known as 
Transformation Funding). 

The Pooled Budget is required to be operational by 2018/19. The MTFS includes 
budgets for Council service areas covered by the pool within existing Directorates 
until the development of the Pool Budget reporting arrangements are confirmed. The 
2018/19 – 2020/21 savings proposals include a number of savings proposals which 
are to be delivered through the efficiencies of integration. There is a risk that delivery 
of the planned benefits may not arise within the timescale forecasts which could 
provide a risk to the Council’s budget.

2.3 Resources received by our Council

The anticipated resources to be received by the Council are included in the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). The resource forecasts are based on a number of 
assumptions, which are detailed in the following sections:

The Final Local Government Finance Settlement for 2017/18 confirmed the funding 
set out in the provisional settlement. The Spring Budget 2017 announced additional 
Improvement Better Care Funding of £5.168m for Adult Social Care. Table 6 
summarises changes in funding for 2017/18 resulting from the final settlement and 
Spring Budget.

Table 6 Funding 2017/18

Provisional 
Settlement 

2017/18

Final 
Settlement 

2017/18
Difference 

£m £m £m
Locally Generated Funding
Business Rates 27.673 52.200 24.527
Council Tax 76.840 76.840 0.000

104.513 129.040 24.527

Government Grants
Revenue Support Grant 29.812 0.000 -29.812
Business Rates Top-up Grant 30.135 49.401 19.266
New Homes Bonus 3.710 3.710 0.000
Adult Social Care Support Grant 1.113 1.113 0.000
Improved Better Care Fund 0.969 6.137 5.168
Section 31 Grants 2.353 5.546 3.193
Education Services Grant 1.218 1.218 0.000
Public Health Grant 17.174 0.000 -17.174

86.484 67.125 -19.359

Total 190.997 196.165 5.168

Page 81



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 20

The Final Settlement set out the move to 100% business rates for designated 
regional authorities in 2017/18, including Greater Manchester. In order to account for 
the Council retaining 99% of the business rates it collects the following assumptions 
have been applied;

 RSG and Public Health Grant removed as sources of funding
 Any business rates losses resulting from the reduction in rateable value 

will   be offset by increased business rates top up grant
 All other business rate relief grants will remain 

The underlying assumption of the move to 100% business rates is that it will be 
fiscally neutral and this has been applied for the whole of the 5 year MTFS.

The impact of this change, in terms of loss of grants compared to retaining all 
business rates, is shown in Table 7.

Table 7 – Change in resources as part of the 100% Business Rates retention 
pilot 2017/18

2017/18 
Funding            

50% 
Retention

2017/18 
Funding            

100% 
Retention 

£m £m

Revenue Support Grant 29.812 0

Public Health Grant 17.174 0

Business Rates Income 27.673 52.200

Business Rates Top-up 30.135 49.401

Section 31 Grants 2.353 5.546

Total 107.147 107.147

2.3.1 Core Spending Power

Core Spending Power is the measure used by the Government to demonstrate the 
maximum funding deemed available to Councils to deliver services from Central 
Government support and locally raised taxes, business rates and council tax. 

The Local Government Finance Settlement for 2017/18 revisited the funding and 
spending power for local authorities originally set for four years in the 2016/17 
Settlement. The core spending power analyses what will be provided by the 
Government and also what the Government assumes can be raised locally from 
council tax powers and business rates. The core spending power figures for 
Rochdale are detailed in Table 8.

Page 82



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 21

Table 8:  Core Spending Power Rochdale 

100% Business Rate Retention Pilot
Illustrative Core Spending Power of Local Government;

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
£ millions £ millions £ millions £ millions £ millions

Settlement Funding Assessment 106.762 95.426 87.112 82.554 78.193
Council Tax of which; 67.508 71.930 75.768 79.809 84.067

Council Tax Requirement excluding parish precepts (including base and levels 
growth) 67.508 70.544 72.878 75.289 77.781
Potential additional revenue from referendum principle for social care 0.000 1.387 2.890 4.520 6.286
Potential additional Council Tax from £5 referendum principle for all Districts 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Improved Better Care Fund 0.000 0.000 6.137 8.530 10.809
New Homes Bonus 3.437 4.115 3.707 2.730 2.619
Rural Services Delivery Grant 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Transition Grant 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
The 2017-18 Adult Social Care Support Grant 0.000 0.000 1.113 0.000 0.000
Core Spending Power 177.707 171.471 173.837 173.623 175.7
Change over the Spending Review period (£ millions) -2.0
Change over the Spending Review period (% change) -1.1%

Rochdale

This shows a decrease in Rochdale’s Core Spending Power of £2.0m (1.1%) over 
the Spending Review period (2015/16 to 2019/20). This was originally set at a 
reduction of £8.2m (4.6%). The major changes being:

 the one off Adult Social Care Support grant in 2017/18 of £1.1m;
 the additional Improved Better Care Funding of £5.168m in 2017/18 for 

Adult Social Care;
 and the Government’s assessment as to what can be generated from 

council tax has been increased based on the most recent council tax 
base information and their forecasts of how that will grow over the 
remaining three years.

Council Tax figures for 2017-18 to 2019-20 have been estimated by Central 
Government by: 

 Applying each local authority’s average annual growth in the council 
tax base between 2013-14 and 2016-17 throughout the period to 2019-
20.

 Assuming that local authorities increase their band D council tax in line 
with the 2% referendum limit throughout the period to 2019-20. 

 Assuming all eligible local authorities also continue to take up the 2% 
adult social care flexibility.

These figures are lower than those currently assumed in the budget gap as the level 
of growth in the Council Tax base forecast is greater than that estimated by the 
Government.

Page 83



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 22

The core spending power assumes that our income from business rates and council 
tax will each grow by 10% over this period and that we will continue with the Adult 
Social Care precept of 2% each year to raise additional funds to support rising Adult 
social care pressures. 

The following paragraphs detail the assumptions used for the resources included 
within the core spending power and the risks affecting these assumptions.

2.3.2   Revenue Support Grant assumptions

The risks to economic growth and the current Central Government pledge to reduce 
public sector net borrowing (deficit) affects the Council as we will receive less 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG), provided by Central Government. Simply put the 
basis of the RSG is a range of data such as free school meals, age of residents, 
benefits received by our residents, etc. from which a calculation is done on what we 
need to spend on services. The formula looks at what we generate locally from 
council tax to then determine what level of support our Council should receive.

As part of the Local Government Finance Settlement 2016/17, Central Government 
offered councils the opportunity to accept a four year funding offer. This would 
provide a council that wishes to take it up, a four-year funding settlement to 2019-20. 
For our Council this meant that we would know for four years how much RSG we 
would receive. 

RSG is not directly paid to the Council from 2017/18, the reduced RSG included in 
the four-year settlement has been replaced by the retention of 100% business rates 
under the Business Rates. Retention pilot.

Table 9 shows what the four-year settlement would provide in RSG funding for our 
Council for 2016/17 to 2019/20. 

Table 9 Revenue Support Grant 

RSG
£m £m %

2017-18 29.8 -9.5 -24.1%
2018-19 23.4 -6.4 -21.5%
2019-20 16.9 -6.5 -27.6%

Decrease

Table 9 highlights the significant reduction in Central Government funding from 
£29.8m in 2017/18 to £16.9m in 2019/20, a reduction of £12.9m.  By 2019/20 RSG 
will have reduced by 56.8% from the level of grant received in 2016/17. It is 
expected that by 2020/21 this will reduce to zero should the changes proposed to 
business rates take place. 

Revenue Support Grant is based on a set of formulas to identify the needs of each 
local authority which are complex and out of date. RSG is proposed to be phased 
out by the end of the four year settlement - 2019/20, however an update is 

Page 84



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 23

anticipated when the Local Government Finance Settlement 2018 is announced. 
Central Government are therefore seeking to bring proposals forward for a fairer and 
simpler method of determining “relative needs” for local government finance 
settlements. The principles will:

 Seek to measure need in a less complex way
 Focus on current key cost pressures for local authorities
 Reflect future need
 Have a transparent approach as to how the ability to generate resources 

locally is taken into account

The MTFS currently assumes that the changes to the calculation of relative need will 
have no detriment to the Local Authority. This will continually be reviewed as the 
Technical consultation papers are released to update the potential financial risks and 
assumptions for the MTFS.

2.3.3 Income generated locally -   Business Rates

Our Business Rates tax base represents the value of Business Rates income we 
estimate will be collected from businesses. Each business rate tax payer account 
has a rateable valuation provided by the Valuation Office which is multiplied by a 
business rates multiplier, this increases each year and is set by the Government in 
line with the Retail Price Index at September each year Autumn Statement.

The Council’s share of Business Rates income - the 99%, equates to £52.2m in 
2017/18, after applying business rates discounts such as charitable relief, empty 
property relief and small business rates relief.

The MTFS assumes a 3.2% increase in 2018/19, 3.6% in 2019/20 and 2% in future 
years in respect of the level of Business Rates income received. These increases 
are based on the increases provided in the Local Government Finance Settlement 
2017 for business rates and likely to be updated as part of the Autumn Statement 
2017 based on current levels of inflation as the increase reflects the Retail Price 
Index at September each year.

Business Rates Pooling

The ten Greater Manchester authorities are part of the GM Business Rates Pool 
which also incorporates Cheshire East and Cheshire West and Chester local 
authorities.

The  purpose  of  pooling  business rates  across  the individual  Authorities  is  not  
intended  to  alter  individual  Authorities income levels  but to retain any levy that 
might be payable by certain of the Authorities to  Central Government. Any growth 
retained, after applying the agreed allocation to the levy authorities, would be used 
for investment within Greater Manchester (GM) and other non-Greater Manchester 
Authorities involved in the pool.

Business Rate Revaluation 2017

Page 85



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 24

The revaluation of business rates took affect from 1 April 2017. The revaluation is a 
revenue neutral exercise, therefore the total business rates bill will stay the same at 
a National level, after allowing for appeals. At the local authority level, overall bills 
have increased or fallen depending upon revised rateable values. The overall 
rateable value for properties within Rochdale borough reduced by 1.4% from the 
previous RV list.

The variation in the overall level of business rates income as a result of the 
Revaluation was adjusted via the level of top-up grants and had a neutral impact on 
the Council’s resources. There are, however, risks that the income from business 
rates will continue to be volatile due to the likely number of appeals submitted by 
businesses. As these appeals are dealt with, the business rates income received 
may go down but may not be reimbursed through the top up grant once this is fixed 
for the remainder of the business rates valuation period. 

Business Rate 100% Retention 

Central Government previously announced that Revenue Support Grant will be 
phased out and councils will retain 100% of business rates generated locally. 
Currently the Council is part of the Greater Manchester pilot to retain 100% of 
business rates which is anticipated to continue until 2019/20 at which point localism 
of business rates was originally planned to take place across all local authorities. In 
return Greater Manchester has forgone Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and the 
Public Health Grant in lieu of the retained business rates. 

Authorities’ tariffs and top-ups will be adjusted to ensure these changes are cost 
neutral. The pilots are also testing a number of potential elements of the 100% 
business rates retention scheme, including revised safety net arrangements. 

The pilots are “without detriment” to the resources that would have been available to 
individual authorities under the current local government finance regime (with any 
“detriment” payments funded from outside the Settlement). 

As part of the move to 100% Business Rates Retention local government will also 
take on additional responsibilities and the consultation document laid out potential 
areas of responsibility that could be transferred to councils.

The Local Government Finance Bill, which provided the legislative framework for 
reform, fell due to the general election and was not re-introduced in the Queen’s 
Speech 2017. This means it will not be in the Government's legislative programme 
for the next two years, although Central Government is still committed to the move to 
localism of business rates.

Local Government funding by 2020/21 could be significantly different. At this stage it 
is difficult to forecast the longer-term impact on the Council’s funding of the move to 
100% business rates retention, the following assumptions have been included in the 
MTFS when forecasting business rates for future years:
 

Page 86



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 25

 The council will retain 99% of business rates income generated (the 
remaining 1% to be provided to the GM Fire & Rescue Authority) under the 
Pilot arrangements until further information becomes available.

 Funding to be removed - Revenue Support Grant and Public Health. 
Although eligibility to the grants remains until primary legislation changes 
this position.

 Business rates top-up grant adjusted to bridge the gap between resources 
and the current needs assessment formulas provided by Central 
Government. This assumption will be updated once it is clear as to the 
arrangements for “fixing” top up which is anticipated as part of the Local 
Government Finance Settlement 2017 and the Technical consultation on 
the new “relative needs formula”.

Table 10 shows the estimates for Business Rates income and Top-up Grant to be 
received by Rochdale Council. 

Table 10 Estimated Business Rates Income and Top-up Grant 

The current estimated income for business rates, based on 100% business rates 
retention include:

 Council share 99% (remaining 1% to GM Fire & Rescue Authority);
 Increase in business rates charge 2018/19 3.2%, 2019/20 3.6%, 2020/21 

to 2022/23 2%;
 Top-up Grant increased to match assumed funding removed as part of the 

move to 100% business rates retention;
 No change in business rates tax base;
 RSG phased out;
 Existing needs formulae increased for inflation but reduced in line with the 

current tapering experienced since 2015/16 including the additional 
responsibility for public health.

Page 87



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 26

On this basis the business rates top up grant would decrease from £49.4m in 
2017/18 to £19.3m in 2022/23 due to the reductions anticipated in need delivered via 
the Revenue Support Grant resources between 2017/18 to 2021/22. 

Business Rates Top-up 

Some local authorities collect and retain a lot more business rates than others, so 
the business rates retention scheme includes a system of top-ups and tariffs. 
Whether a local authority is a tariff or a top-up authority is determined by comparing 
the amount of funding required by an authority via the business rates retention 
system (its baseline funding level) and the amount it can raise in business rates 
locally (its business rate baseline). 

If an authority’s business rates baseline is less than its baseline funding level, it 
receives a top-up grant from the government. If an authority’s business rates 
baseline is greater than its baseline funding level it pays a tariff to the government.

The tariff and top-up amounts were set in 2013/14 and in previous years have been 
increased in line with the business rates multiplier. However, in 2017/18 the tariff and 
top-up amounts have been adjusted to take account of the business rates 
revaluation 2017, provisionally until the revaluation process has had an opportunity 
to settle down. However, there is a risk for local authorities that the top up will not 
adequately compensate for appeals after this date, nor will it reimburse local 
authorities where large increases in rateable values are offset by reliefs such as in 
the case of Academy schools.

The increase in the Top-up Grant assumed in the MTFS is 3.2% in 2018/19 3.6% in 
2019/20 3.6% and 2% in 2020/21 to 2022/23, based on the Retail Price Index 
announced in September each year.

2.3.4 Income generated locally -   Council Tax

Council tax is charged by local authorities on residential properties. The Valuation 
Office Agency decides the correct band based on the value of your property at 1 
April 1991.Local authorities set the charge based on a Band D property each year. 

The approved bands for our Council are shown in Table 11a, which include an 
increase for the GM Police precept of £5 and a 1.99% increase for the GM Fire & 
Rescue precept. Table 10b highlights the approved Council Tax bands for the 
Council.

Page 88



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 27

Table 11a – Rochdale Council - Council Tax bands 2017/18, including 
precepting authorities 

Band 2016/17 2017/18
£ £ £ %

Band A 1,064.22 1,114.25 50.03 4.70%
Band B 1,241.58 1,299.95 58.37 4.70%
Band C 1,418.95 1,485.67 66.72 4.70%
Band D 1,596.33 1,671.37 75.04 4.70%
Band E 1,951.07 2,042.79 91.72 4.70%
Band F 2,305.81 2,414.19 108.38 4.70%
Band G 2,660.55 2,785.62 125.07 4.70%
Band H 3,192.66 3,342.74 150.08 4.70%

Increase

Council Tax Levels

Table 11b - Rochdale Council - Council Tax bands 2017/18 – District only

Band 2016/17 2017/18
£ £ £ %

Band A 920.17 966.08 45.91 4.99%
Band B 1,073.53 1,127.09 53.56 4.99%
Band C 1,226.89 1,288.11 61.22 4.99%
Band D 1,380.25 1,449.12 68.87 4.99%
Band E 1,686.97 1,771.15 84.18 4.99%
Band F 1,993.69 2,093.17 99.48 4.99%
Band G 2,300.42 2,415.20 114.78 4.99%
Band H 2,760.50 2,898.24 137.74 4.99%

Council Tax Levels for District Purposes

Increase

There has been a move in the Government’s financial strategy away from rewarding 
local authorities who have frozen council tax in the past, to encouraging the 
increasing of council tax to raise resources locally by introducing an amendment to 
the referendum threshold level.10  

Our Council has to balance between the needs of service users, who are often some 
of the most vulnerable people in our borough and the burden of the council tax on 
local council tax payers. With the Government placing severe reductions in the level 

10 This is the statutory level by which Council Tax can be raised in a year without holding a local referendum 

Page 89



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 28

of general grant support, the burden of financing increasing service demand falls 
primarily upon the level of council tax.

 
Our Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is to maximise income generated 
locally and therefore, assumes, for planning purposes, an increase in Council Tax 
of 1.99% for each year 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

A Council Tax referendum limit of below 2.0% will be maintained for lower tier 
councils (those which do not provide Children’s & Adult Care Services). As in 
2016/17 councils with responsibility for Adult Social Care will have the flexibility to 
charge a precept on their Council Tax to fund Adult Social Care Services.

Adult Social Care Precept

The 2017/18 settlement offered the flexibility to charge an Adult Social Care Precept 
of up to an additional 3% on council tax for the next 2 years. The budget for 2017/18 
– 2019/20 included a 3% precept in 2017/18 and 2018/19 and no additional precept 
in 2019/20.

Section 151 officers have been required to confirm that this additional council tax 
continues to be allocated to adult social care. The guidance sets out the process for 
identifying resources and expenditure attributable to social care if the precept 
powers are evoked. Authorities who do not increase council tax for the social care 
precept will be asked to outline how funds will be found for adult social care services 
from any increase made in council tax. 

The 2017/18 Local Government Finance settlement assumed that:

 Each local authority’s annual growth in their council tax base throughout 
the period to 2019-20 will be in line with the average increase in their 
council tax between 2013-14 and 2016-17. Currently the MTFS assumes 
no net growth and is included in the resources at the 2017/18 council tax 
base level. However, as part of the proposals to bridge the budget gap for 
2018/19 additional growth for 2018/19 has been included based on the 
latest dwelling information. The council tax base for the MTFS resources 
will be refreshed as part of the MTFS update at Budget Council in February 
2018.

 Local authorities will increase their band D council tax in line with the 2% 
referendum limit throughout the period to 2019-20. The MTFS includes 2% 
throughout the five years for planning purposes only.

 All eligible local authorities will also continue to take up the 2% adult social 
care flexibility over the next three years, although local authorities will have 
the flexibility to charge the 6% increase over two years (2017/18 to 2018/19 
at 3% with no increase in year 3. As stated above the MTFS assumes 3% 
in 2018/19 and zero increase for 2019/20.

Council Tax Base

Page 90



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 29

The forecast for income from council tax is calculated by multiplying the adjusted 
council tax base by the charge for a Band D council tax property. The estimated 
2018/19 Rochdale Council Tax base for planning purposes is 53,593, representing 
the number of Band D equivalent properties that we collect Council Tax from. This is 
an increase of 568 from the 2017/18 tax base of 53,025. The Council Tax base is 
reviewed and will formally be considered by Council in December 2017. The level of 
Council tax base is a key component in the calculation of resources available to the 
Council. 

The more Band D equivalent properties the council has allows the local authority to 
generate more income for the council from council tax.  Properties valued at Band A 
generate less income for the council as the charge is 70% of the charge for a band D 
property. 

In the Rochdale Borough over 55% of properties are valued Band A see Table 12 
and over 70% are Band A or B. The housing stock in the borough has a direct 
impact on the income Rochdale Council can raise from Council Tax. The National 
average for a Local Authorities housing stock of Band A properties in 25%11.   

Table 12 Council Tax - % of Bands in each category for Rochdale council tax 
valuations compared to the national average

11 DCLG Council tax valuation list 2014https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/380868/140925-AllTables.xls

Page 91

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/380868/140925-AllTables.xls


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 30

Table 13 shows the estimated Council Tax income our Council is estimated to 
receive in 2017/18 as £76.8m (£73.2m basic council tax and £3.6m Adult Social 
Care precept) rising to £86.3m (£82.3m basic council tax and £6.0m Adult Social 
Care precept) in 2022/23. 

The MTFS assumes for planning purposes that in:

2018/19 council tax will increase by 4.99%.

2019/20 council tax will increase by 1.99% with no increase for adult social 
care, as the total increase of 6% will have been applied in 2017/18 (3%) 
and 2018/19 (3%).

2020/21 to 2022/23 council tax will increase by 1.99% with no further 
additional precepts, for adult social care as the current legislation provided 
the powers for this precept until the end of 2019/20.

Table 13 Estimated Council Tax Income 2017/18 – 2022/23 
 

2.3.5 Income generated locally -   Other Government Grants

2.3.5.1 Improved Better Care Fund

Page 92



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 31

The Better Care Fund (BCF) brings together elements of the Clinical Commissioning 
Group and Local Authority budgets into a pooled arrangement. This is to encompass 
integrated commissioning which will support the transformation and integration of 
health and social care services. 

The Grant is allocated using the 2013 social care relative needs formula and 
allocates funding against resources available. The allocation method takes into 
consideration the amount that can be raised by a local authority from the social care 
precept. 

The calculation of the Improved Better Care Fund assumes that councils will 
increase council tax for the 2% social care precept and does not take into account 
the additional flexibility to increase council tax by 3% for the social care precept

Better Care Funding provided by the Government is not increased if an authority 
does not choose to increase its Council Tax by the adult social care precept.

In 2017/18 an initial allocation was announced for three years as part of the Local 
Government Finance Settlement. The grant allocation was subsequently increased 
as part of the Spring Budget 2017.

The Spring Budget 2017 outlined the growing demographic issues affecting adult 
social care in that today we have more than half a million people over 75 years of 
age and this is projected to increase to 2million in the next 10 years as set out in the 
OBR Fiscal Sustainability report 2017. An additional £2.011bn was announced to 
help local authorities provide high quality social care to more people and to ease the 
pressure on the NHS. The £2.011bn is to be paid over 3 years, £1bn in 2017/18, 
£0.674m in 2018/19 and £0.337m in 2019/20 to ensure local authorities can take 
immediate action to fund care packages for more people, support social care 
providers and relieve pressure on the NHS locally. The funds are to build on the 
Improved Better Care Fund approach with local authorities working closely with NHS 
colleagues to consider how the funds can be spent effectively. 

The allocations for Rochdale are £6.137m in 2017/18, £8.530m in 2018/19 rising to 
£10.808m in 2019/20.

Table 14 shows the indicative Improved Better Care Fund allocations as per 2017/18 
Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement and the additional adult social 
care funding announced in the Spring Budget 2017. 

Table 14 Improved Better Care Fund

Page 93



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 32

2.3.5.2.Public Health Grant

It is anticipated that the level of Public Health Funding will reduce in 2017/18 by 
£434k and £442k each year until 2020/21. The reduction in funding has been 
recognised as a budget pressure for council services. The Public Health Grant is one 
of the funding streams under consideration as part of the move to 100% retention of 
business rates. The method of allocation of Public Health grant to local authorities is 
currently under review. Changes are being considered by the ACRA12, initial 
forecasts suggest that this will reduce the grant, from 2018/19, from what is currently 
included in the MTFS. The MTFS will be updated once the revised ACRA formula is 
known.

2.3.5.3 New Homes Bonus

The New Homes Bonus (NHB) Scheme is designed to provide incentives and 
rewards for Local Authorities who have a net increase in new homes and empty 
properties brought back into use in their areas. The scheme commenced in April 
2011 with funding for a net increase in a given year was guaranteed for a 6 year 
period. 

Central government revised the scheme from 2017/18 as follows :

 The number of years that the NHB is paid was reduced from the 6 years to 5 
years in 2017/18 and is to be further reduced to 4 years from 2018/19. 

 the NHB calculation of the 2017/18 NHB was amended to introduce a 
baseline for housing growth, set for 2017/18 as 0.4% of the previous year’s 

12 ACRA Advisory Committee on Resource Allocation for Health

Page 94



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 33

dwelling stock (total stock less long-term empty properties). Housing growth 
below this level in each authority will not receive NHB allocations. 

Savings from the NHB at a national level were used to fund a new Adult Social Care 
Support Grant in 2017/18 only.

The 2018/19 NHB will be based on movement in total stock and long-term empty 
properties between October 2016 and October 2017. During this period a large 
number of demolitions have been undertaken as part of the regeneration masterplan 
for social housing which will reduce the grant available in 2018/19. The number of 
long-term empty properties is also forecast not to significantly reduce during this 
period. 

This has significantly reduced the forecast NHB for 2018/19 and future years. Table 
15 shows the estimated NHB for 21018/19 to 2022/23, including returned funding13.

Table 15 Estimated New Homes Bonus 

2018.19 2019.20 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

5 2015.16 626
6 2016.17 731 731
7 2017.18 527 527 527
8 2018.19 22 22 22 22
9 2019.20 0 0 0 0
10 2020.21 300 300 300
11 2021.22 300 300
12 2022.23 300

Total 1,906 1,280 849 622 900
Returned Funding 0 82 67 67 67
Total NHB 1,906 1,362 916 689 967

Scheme Year Grant Received in Year

2.3.5.4 Education & Schools Funding

Funding provided by Central Government for Local Authority Education duties was 
previously provided by the Education Services Grant. From 2018/19 the MTFS 
reflects the removal of these resources from the Council as the retained duties now 
fall within the Dedicated Schools Grant. 

The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is a separate ring-fenced grant which funds 

13 Returned funding relates to funding that the Government originally top-sliced from the Local Government Finance Settlement to fund 
the NHB. If the total actual NHB paid out to all local authorities is less than the amount top-sliced, the balance of unused funding is 
returned to local authorities pro rata to the Settlement Funding Assessment.

Page 95



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 34

schools and education related issues.  Central Government are committed to moving 
to a national funding formula for DSG from 2018/19. The amount of DSG received 
will be the cumulative of an individual schools formula in its area calculated under a 
national based formula funding approach. Details as to how this will operate are 
expected in the Autumn 2017.Central Government have confirmed that there will be 
an additional £1.3bn for schools and high needs pressures across 2018/19 and 
2019/20, although no information has been provided at local authority level at the 
current time.

From 2018/19 DSG will be received in four blocks which are:

 Early Years – funds provision of the early years free entitlement 
through a local formula together with support to providers.

 Schools – this funds primary and secondary schools Within the 
Schools Block the government will provide for at least a 0.5% per 
pupil increase in 2018/19 through the national funding formula.  In 
addition the formula will provide per pupil funding for secondary 
school pupils in years 10 and 11 of at least £4,800 by 2019/20.  
Rochdale’s per pupil funding for all secondary schools is currently 
above this level. It is envisaged that a transition period will operate.

 High Needs – funds both pre and post 16 pupils with special 
educational needs from a range of providers. The government is 
expected to provide for at least a 0.5% increase overall in the High 
Needs Block funding in 2018-19.  

 Central Schools Services Block – Funding for Local Authority 
services for retained duties will be provided within this block .

Until the revised formula and indicative allocations are received at local authority 
level it is difficult to assess the implications for Education and Schools funding in 
Rochdale. The MTFS will be updated once this information becomes available. The 
MTFS does not provide forecasts for the DSG due to the current changes to the 
funding methodology. The funding for 2017/18 was £190.980m as shown at Table 
16.

Table 16 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Funding for 2017/18

Total
£m

Schools Block (final) 155.260
Early Years Block (indicative) 14.820
High Needs Block (indicative) 19.950
Schools Central  Block ** 0.950

Total DSG 2017/18 190.980

** includes £0.530m funding from former ESG 

Page 96



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 35

2.4 Budget Pressures and costs increasing our spend – 2018/19 to 2022/23 

2.4.1 Regional Budget Pressures

GM Waste Disposal Levy

The waste disposal levy is calculated by a formula across Greater Manchester which 
takes account of recycling levels. If Rochdale Borough did not increase recycling at 
the same level as other GM Authorities there would be an impact on the waste 
disposal levy charged to our Council thus leading to an increased cost to our 
Council’s budget.
The Waste Disposal Levy assumed for in the MTFS is based on the latest 
projections provided by GM Waste Disposal Authority (GMWDA), 

The MTFS assumes that the levy will rise by 12.2% in 2018/19 reducing by 9.9% in 
2019/20 and 2.9% in 2020/21 as the assumed efficiencies and costs reductions 
come on stream . 

GM Passenger Transport Levy

The MTFS assumes that the Passenger Transport Levy (PTL) will not increase 
across the five years.

2.4.2 Local Budget Pressures

1. Living Wage

From April 2016 Central Government announced an increase to the National 
Minimum Wage to £7.20 per hour for those workers aged 25 and over, this is 
known as the National Living Wage. Central Government’s ambition is for the 
National Living wage to increase to over £9.00 per hour by 2020. The MTFS 
includes an assumed rise over the five years to £9.20 per hour by 2020. 

Rochdale Council pays a local living wage, which is above the National Living 
Wage level. This is considered on an annual basis and was set at £8.45 per 
hour for 2017/18, corresponding to the increase in the Rowntree National 
Living Wage Rate. The MTFS assumes that this will continue to be 
maintained throughout the five years for planning purposes only.

2. Pay and Price Inflation

The MTFS assumes for planning purposes that the pay award will be 1% for 
2018/19 to 2022/23. The budget assumes 0% inflation across the majority of 
the Council’s non-pay expenditure budgets. Contractual arrangements and 
other significant inflation issues will be considered on a case by case basis. 

Page 97



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 36

3. Discretionary Fees and Charges

Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis within agreed overall 
budget requirements. For this Strategy the budget assumes an increase of 
2% each year, although some fees and charges are proposed to increase 
above this level as part of the savings programme proposals 2018/19 to 
2020/21.

4. Superannuation Rates 

The Pension Fund Contribution Rates payable to the Greater Manchester 
Pension Fund (GMPF) have been assumed in the budget for budget planning 
purposes to remain static with no increase in 2018/19 and 2019/20. The 
Pension agreement will be reviewed in 2020/21 and for planning purposes it 
has been assumed that there will be an increase of 0.9% from 2021/22.

2.5 Budget Position for 2018/19 and 2019/20

2.5.1 Movement in Budget Gap since Budget Council 2017

At Budget Council in March 2017 a three year budget was approved which included 
provisional budgets for 2018/19 and 2019/20.  

The assumptions considered in the MTFS have been reviewed to include the latest 
information available on Central Government policy and local service pressures and 
costs. The updated MTFS forecast provides the assumptions on which the latest 
budget updates for 2018/19 – 2019/20 have been based. 

The forecasts for the Budget 2018/19 to 2019/20 shows a gap of £24.0m rising to 
£48.0m by 2022/23. Table 17 provides the analysis of the movement from the 
£15.9m budget gap for 2018/19 and 2019/20 to the current forecast assumed budget 
gap of £48.0m by 2022/23.

Table 17 – Movement in Budget Gap since Budget Council 2017

Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget Gap at Budget Council 9,850 -400 5,531 0 8,912 0 6,831 0 6,212 0

Increased Resources
Changes in Budget Assumptions -864 -1,237 -17 0 -18 0 -18 0 -18 0

Decreased Resources
Government Changes 278 0 300 0 0 0 0 0 -278 0

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Resources -586 -1,237 283 0 -18 0 -18 0 -296 0

Increase in Budget Requirements
Local Decisions 5,275 1,000 1,280 0 -248 0 -244 0 500 0
Service Specific Pressures 1,377 0 954 0 945 0 750 0 750 0

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Budget Requirements 6,652 1,000 2,234 0 697 0 506 0 1,250 0

Revised Budget Gap 15,916 -637 8,048 0 9,591 0 7,319 0 7,166 0
Ongoing Gap from previous year 0 15,916 23,964 33,555 40,874
Ongoing Gap 15,916 23,964 33,555 40,874 48,040

2022/232018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Page 98



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 37

The financial challenge for our Council over the next five years is to make savings to 
enable a balanced budget to be set. Our Council has an increase year on year on 
what we need to spend (budget requirement) compared to the reduced resources 
the Council will receive. Although the resources we receive will increase over this 
period the cost of providing current levels of service provision is greater.

The latest Budget update has been revised following the final settlement for 2017/18 
being announced, the Spring Budget 2017, the estimated council tax and business 
rates tax bases for 2018/19, and other updated budget assumptions. All these 
changes have impacted on the budget gap estimated for Rochdale Council as 
shown in Table 17. 

The Savings Programme 2018/19 and 2019/20 have identified savings proposals 
which, where necessary will be consulted on from 18th September to 1st November 
2017.

Updated budget assumptions, changes from the local government finance 
settlement and Spring Budget and the Savings Programme have reduced the budget 
gap to £2.7m in 2018/19. The majority of the savings, £11.7m,in 2018/19 are of a 
one off nature which will need to be addressed in 2019/20. Over the coming month’s 
further work will be undertaken to identify and update the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 to propose alternatives to bridge the gap, 
as part of the budget to Cabinet/Council in February 2017.

Table 18 shows the budget gap and how this has been projected to be met in 
2018/19.

Table 18 Revenue Budget Gap

Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Updated Gap before Savings Proposals 15,916 -637 8,048 0 9,591 0 7,319 0 7,166 0

Service Savings Proposals not requiring consultation -1,301 -11,111 -401 -14,317 0 -25,260 0 0 0 0

Service Savings Proposals requiring consultation
Workforce -140 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total -140 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Gap after Savings Proposals 14,475 -11,748 7,647 -14,317 9,591 -25,260 7,319 0 7,166 0
Ongoing Gap from previous year 0 14,475 22,122 31,713 39,032
Ongoing Gap after Savings Proposals 14,475 22,122 31,713 39,032 46,198

In-year Gap after Savings Proposals 2,727 7,805 6,453 39,032 46,198

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

2.5.2 Resources available 2018/19 to 2022/23   

The Council has approved savings of £176.4m since 2010/11, which equates to 
£1,896 per household or £815 per head of population. 

Over the next five years the MTFS includes assumptions reflecting Central 
Government policy of moving to “self-sufficiency” for local authorities. Table 19 

Page 99



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 38

shows a breakdown of the estimated resources available to our Council 2018/19 to 
2022/23. 

By 2020/21, 79% of our Council’s resources will come from the income we raise 
locally from council tax and business rates, compared to 66% in 2017/18. The 
change will increase the risks around income collection for our Council as the 
collection of business rates and council tax is volatile. Central Government grants 
provide certainty as to what you will receive for the year unlike council tax and 
business rates. This can be due to empty properties, discounts and reliefs, and 
changes in valuations of business properties. 

Table 19 - Breakdown of Estimated Resources Available

Page 100



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 39

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Locally Generated Income
Council  Tax 76.8 81.5 83.2 84.8 86.5 88.2
Business Rates 52.2 53.2 54.1 54.5 54.9 56.0

129.0 134.7 137.3 139.3 141.4 144.2

Government Grants
Revenue Support Grant 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Business Rates Top-up Grant 49.4 42.6 35.9 30.1 24.6 19.3
New Homes Bonus 3.7 1.9 1.4 0.9 0.7 1.0
Adult Social Care Support Grant 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Improved Better Care Fund 6.1 8.5 10.8 10.8 10.8 10.8
Other General Grants 7.0 6.7 6.7 6.8 6.9 7.0

67.3 59.7 54.8 48.6 43.0 38.1

Total Resources 197.4 194.4 192.1 187.9 184.4 182.3

% Resources Locally Generated 66% 69% 71% 74% 77% 79%

2.5.3 Budget required for local services

The MTFS has forecast that from 2018/19 to 2022/23 the amount our Council will 
need to spend to maintain the current level of service provision will rise to £228.6m 
by 2022/23, an increase of £30.2m over the five years of the MTFS. 

This assumes the continuation of the GM pilot for 100% business rates retention,

The projected budget requirement by Directorate is identified at Table 20.

Table 20 projected budget requirements and resources 2018/19 to 2022/23
 

Page 101



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 40

SERVICE 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

1 Adult Care 59,978 61,206 64,018 66,865 69,747

2 Children's Services 56,882 56,097 56,735 57,380 58,031

3 Economy 16,501 16,675 16,680 16,684 16,689

4 Neighbourhoods 49,071 49,868 50,212 50,363 51,252

5 Resources 5,745 5,845 5,989 6,134 6,281

6 Public Health and Wellbeing 22,057 22,081 22,107 22,132 22,158

7 TOTAL 210,234 211,772 215,741 219,558 224,158

8 Finance Control 15,859 16,547 16,522 16,501 16,514

9 Contingency 3,883 3,565 4,643 4,106 4,133

10 SERVICES SUB TOTAL 229,976 231,884 236,906 240,165 244,805

11 Budget Pressures Fund 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500

12 Saving Proposals -12,552 -16,159 -27,102 -1,842 -1,842 

13 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 217,924 216,725 211,304 240,323 245,463

14 Contribution To/(From) Reserves/Balances 1,160 1,236 1,236 1,236 1,236

15 Contribution To/ (From) Unusable Reserves -20,607 -18,147 -18,147 -18,147 -18,147 

16 NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 198,477 199,814 194,393 223,412 228,552

17 BUDGET REQUIREMENT 198,477 199,814 194,393 223,412 228,552
RESOURCES
Locally Generated Funding

18 Council Tax -81,538 -83,160 -84,816 -86,504 -88,225 

19 Business Rates Retained -53,164 -54,148 -54,463 -54,900 -55,998 

20 Collection Fund Surplus -1,237 0 0 0 0

21 TOTAL LOCALLY GENERATED FUNDING -135,939 -137,308 -139,279 -141,404 -144,223 

Government Grants
22 Revenue Support Grant 0 0 0 0 0
23 General Grants -17,163 -18,848 -18,519 -18,411 -18,811 
24 Business Rates Top-Up Grant -42,648 -35,853 -30,142 -24,636 -19,320 
25 TOTAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS -59,811 -54,701 -48,661 -43,047 -38,131 

26 TOTAL RESOURCES -195,750 -192,009 -187,940 -184,451 -182,354 

27 BUDGET REQUIREMENTS 2,727 7,805 6,453 38,961 46,198
28 Less funding from one year only savings 11,748 14,317 25,260 0 0
29 UNFUNDED ONGOING REQUIREMENT 14,475 22,122 31,713 38,961 46,198

Subject to approval of Savings Proposals submitted for consultation purposes

The financial information contained in the MTFS is based on current assumptions 
and published updates provided from Government departments at this point.  As 
further information is made available from Central Government the assumptions and 
forecast will be update for both the resources available and the budget requirements 
needed to deliver services. During the budget setting process regular updates are 
provided to Cabinet Members. 

Page 102



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 41

Members of Cabinet and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny will be updated on the 
Budget position for 2018/19 and 2019/20 in September/October and a number of 
public engagement initiatives have been undertaken to raise awareness across the 
Council of the financial challenges faced when prioritising service provision and use 
of resources.

 
2.6 Capital Programme

The Capital Programme aims to:

 Provide investment in the Borough to support the Borough wide priorities 
including that of prosperity and economic resilience

 Provide investment to deliver future savings – invest to save

 Maintain and enhance the Council’s assets

 Meet Statutory provision

 Provide Value for Money
The Capital budget is funded from a number of sources; borrowing, capital receipts, 
and external funding & contributions. Borrowing has an implication for the Council’s 
revenue budget as the Council has to make provision to repay the cost of borrowing.

When a scheme is approved and the proposed spend is profiled across financial 
years, the scheme funding will be approved across these financial years and will 
therefore be considered as a priority in future years. Any reduction in the funding of 
these schemes will only be considered where contracts have not been entered into. 

The Capital Programme for 2018/19 to 2020/21 takes into consideration the priorities
of the Council and the resources available. The approach for setting the 2018/19
capital budget has followed the steps below: 

 Initial budget as provisionally approved at Budget Council on 1st March 2017.

 Review of 2017/18 and 2018/19 schemes – Finance Service has worked with 
services to review 2017/18 and 2018/19 schemes taking into account spend 
to date and previous re-phasing of budget on the schemes.

 Consideration of new schemes.

The Capital budget has been created in line with the Council’s priorities:

 Place Plan – aligning capital investment to support the borough’s economic 
growth potential and continue to regenerate our town centres.

 Corporate Plan – ensuring the borough maintains its high standard of quality 
building and public space.

 Asset Strategy – aiming to hold fewer but more efficient assets, realising 
maximum value from the estate whilst safeguarding its staff, customer and 
other building users.

Page 103



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 42

Schemes totalling £52.6m have been proposed to be included in the 2018/19 Capital 
Programme. Table 21 shows the total proposed Capital expenditure by service for 
2018/19 to 2020/21, and how the expenditure will be funded. 

Table 21 – Summary of Capital programme

 
2018/19  2019/20  2020/21Services

£'000 £'000 £'000
Adult Care 2,243 2,243 2,243
Children's Services 7,739 12,569 7,738
Economy 28,770 30,354 2,150
Neighbourhoods 13,501 9,910 8,289
Public Health 360 0 676
Total requirement 52,613 55,076 21,096
Funding    
Borrowing 15,008 14,997 8,472
External Grant and 
contributions 12,550 16,779 11,948

Invest to Save 21,755 20,000 676
Capital Receipts 3,300 3,300 0
Total funding 52,613 55,076 21,096

The Capital schemes can be categorised as follows:

 Annual Allocation - these schemes receive annual allocations either as a 
result of external funding, or because the Capital investment is essential for 
the Council to maintain current Service delivery or to meet statutory 
responsibilities.

 Scheme started in previous years - these schemes are multi-year schemes 
that commenced prior to 2018/19.

 New Scheme - these are new schemes or schemes requiring additional 
funding for the 2018/19 capital programme.

The Council is able to borrow resources for capital schemes. The revenue 
implications of this option are that for every £1m of capital expenditure there is 
approximately £61k per annum of revenue cost to repay borrowing, over a 40 year 
period. If borrowing is required over a shorter period, the annual cost is greater but 
the overall cost is less. 

Borrowing of £15m is required to fund expenditure relating to specific schemes in 
2018/19. The revenue cost of this is approximately £1.6m per annum, which has 
been included in the MTFS.

Page 104



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 43

The detailed report for the Capital Programme for 2018/19 to 2020/212 is provided 
as a separate report :

Agenda for Cabinet on Thursday, 14th September, 2017, 6.15 pm

Page 105

http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=4379&Ver=4


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 44

Part 3:  How will the Council meet the Financial Challenge?

The Council will meet the financial challenge contained within this MTFS by having a robust 
Revenue Budget Plan and Savings Programme.

3.1 Revenue Budget Plan

3.1.1 Budget Timetable

The Council’s annual budget must be approved by full Council before 11th March 
each year. This is a statutory requirement. The Council is legally obliged to set a 
balanced budget for the following financial year. The Council has in place an 
embedded budget setting process which begins in June with approval being sought 
for the assumptions and principles on which the budget is to be based. These will be 
used as a part of the determination of the overall budget position.

Reports are provided to Cabinet and reviewed by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny, 
regularly throughout the financial year which set out the timetable, assumptions on 
both funding and spending changes, based on realistic projections, for example, 
about pay and inflation.

These assumptions are then applied to current service budgets and once funding 
has been estimated this gives an understanding of any potential budget gap. From 
this the savings programmes is determined and reports are provided to members 
through Cabinet, Corporate Overview & Scrutiny, Townships and  Joint Consultative 
Negotiation Group to provide savings proposals for consultation to meet the budget 
gap.

Feedback following consultation is reported to Cabinet and proposals which affect 
the public will be submitted to full Council as part of the Budget Council in 
February/March.

Budget updates are reviewed and assumptions updated throughout the year based 
upon latest information available e.g. the Government’s Autumn Budget, new 
legislation, etc. 

Implications of the capital programme are included in these budgets as are service 
growth and pressures.  

Final recommendations are then made by Cabinet to Budget Council. 

Services are notified of their approved budgets following Budget Council in 
February/March. 

Table 22 summarises the key timetable dates

Page 106



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 45

Table 22 Key Budget Setting Timetable Dates

Date Meeting Report

2017
September Budget Cabinet 14th September

1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19
2. Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2020/21   }
3. Revenue Budget 2018/19 - 2020/21         } For Consultation
4. Savings Programme 2018/19 - 2019/20   }                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
5. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 - 2022/23

November  Cabinet 28th November 1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19 - Post Consultation
2. Savings programme 2018/19 - 2019/20 - Post Consultation

December Council 13th December Approval of:
Council Tax base setting 2018/19
Business Rates baseline 2018/19

2018
January Budget Cabinet ( January) 1. Budget update 2018/19 - 2020/21 following Autumn 

Budget/Provisional Settlement

February Budget Cabinet (20th February)

February Budget Council (28th February)
March

1. Local Government Act 2013 - 
2. Budget 2018/19 including:
- Council Tax setting 2018/19
- Revenue Budget 2018/19 and forecast 2019/20 and 2020/21
- Capital Budget 2018/19 and forecast 2019/20 and 2020/21
-Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19
- Pay Policy 2018/19
- Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 - 2022/23 (Review)

Statutory Deadline to set Budget 11th March

3.1.2 Budget Guidelines

Detailed guidelines are provided to all relevant staff to ensure that revenue budgets 
for individual services are prepared consistently. These guidelines contain details of 
the assumptions that are to be made in setting the revenue budget and also set out 
broad principles that are to be adhered to. 

3.1.3  Revenue Budget Assumptions for 2018/19 – 2022/23

The budget setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It 
is equally important that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are 
agreed, reasonable and consistently applied. The budget assumptions are applied 
corporately to service budgets, with individual exceptions on a case by case basis 
for specific contracts. 

The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known levels of 
expenditure and anticipated levels of resources, which are summarised in Table 23. 

Page 107



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 46

Table 23a Summary of Key Budget Assumptions

Budget 
assumption for the 
MTFS

Assumption applied

Council Tax  Maximum level as allowed by the referendum limit, including 
Adult Social Care precept for financial planning purposes. 

Business Rates / 
Top up grant

Increased in line with RPI inflationary increases to the 
business rates multiplier at September each year.

Revenue Support 
Grant

In line with four year offer provided in Local Government 
Finance Settlement 2016/17.

Pay awards In with the National Pay Settlement Agreement for 2017/18 
and 2018/19. The MTFS assumes that this will continue at 
the same level until the end of this period.

Superannuation 
contribution rates

In line with the three year pension re-valuation undertaken 
by the Greater Manchester Pension Fund.

Inflation non pay 
(Prices)

MTFS assumes no increase in non-pay budgets in line with 
budget guidelines. Contractual arrangements and other 
significant inflation issues will be considered on a case by 
case basis. 

Discretionary Fees 
& Charges

MTFS assumes 2% per year in line with budget guidelines

Waste Disposal 
Levy

The Waste Disposal Levy assumed for in the MTFS is based 
on the latest projections provided by GM Waste Disposal 
Authority (GMWDA).

PTA Levy The levy is based on current information provided by the 
Passenger Transport Authority.

Page 108



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 47

Table 23b Key Budget Assumptions 2018/19 to 2022/23

3.2 Savings Programme 2018/19 and 2019/20

The Savings Programme for 2018/19 and 2019/20 is designed to bridge the budget 
gap for 2018/19, to enable a legally balanced budget to be set by 11th March 2018, 
and consider savings which can contribute to the 2019/20 gap. 

3.2.1 Savings programme milestones

For 2018/19 and 2019/20 savings proposals will be considered in order to meet the 
budget gap of £22.122m. 

Before considering changes that affect the workforce or front line services we review 
the whole of the budget to:

 Identify alternative financial resources to continue providing the service;
 Realign budgets to reflect operational activity;
 Review Corporate Budgets
 Look for savings through commissioning and procurement activity

Page 109



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 48

Table 24 shows the timetables for consultation for the 2018/19 -2019/20 Savings 
Programme:

Table 24 Consultation Timetable

Start - 18th September 2017

End - 1st November 2017 WF

Consultation Timetable 

WF – Workforce; savings proposals which affect staff employed by the 
Council

Changes to budget assumptions and the revised council tax base forecast has increased 
the original gap of £15.381m to £23.964m for 2018/19 and 2019/20, as shown in Table 25 :

Table 25 Changes to the Budget Gap before Savings

Page 110



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 49

Ongoing savings proposals have been identified totalling £1.842m over the two years. The 
ongoing budget gap in 2019/20 is £23.964m. Over the coming months further work will be 
undertaken to identify and update the Medium Term Financial Strategy and Budget 
2018/19 to 2020/21 to propose alternatives to bridge the gap, as part of the budget to 
Cabinet/Council in February 2017.

Table 26 summarises the savings proposals for 2018/19 to 2019/20.

Table 26 – Summary of Savings Proposals 2018/19 to 2019/20

Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Updated Gap before Savings Proposals 15,916 -637 8,048 0

Service Savings Proposals not requiring consultation -1,301 -11,111 -401 -14,317

Service Savings Proposals requiring consultation
Workforce -140 0 0 0
Total -140 0 0 0

 Gap after Savings Proposals 14,475 -11,748 7,647 -14,317
Ongoing Gap from previous year 0 14,475
Ongoing Gap after Savings Proposals 14,475 22,122

2018/19 2019/20

3.3 Balances and Reserves Strategy 

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance Officer to report to 
Council for consideration immediately prior to setting the Budget and Council Tax. 
The report aims to ensure that Council is aware of the opinion of the Chief Finance 
Officer regarding the robustness of the budget as proposed and the adequacy of 
general balances and reserves. This includes general balances and amounts held 
as specific reserves and contingencies. 

3.3.1   General Fund Balances 

General fund balances are amounts set aside to cushion the impact of unexpected 
events and emergencies.  In order to assess their adequacy, a systematic approach 
has been adopted.  This approach is based on the identification of the key financial 
risks following which an amount of ‘potential’ exposure is calculated based on the 
impact of the risk and the possibility of its occurrence.  It should however be noted 
that this is not a precise science and that local circumstances, the strength of 
financial reporting arrangements and the Council’s track record in financial 
management will also be a key influence on the actual potential of any individual risk 
materialising.  The net value of the potential exposure is currently estimated at 
£17.728m.

Page 111



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 50

Table 27 identifies the key financial risks projected leading to the projected 
requirement of £17.728m general fund balances. The level of balances is currently 
provided at £12m, however there are potential financial risks associated with the 
timing of the delivery of the health and social care integration benefits/efficiencies. 
On this basis it if felt prudent to identify this as a risk at this stage. The risks will be 
reviewed during the Autumn/Winter as part of the Budget process. 

Table 27 – General Fund Balance – Projected level of risks 
    
Key Risks Details Total Comments / Risk 

Reductions

Potential 
Exposure

 

Le
ve

l o
f 

R
is

k   £'m  £'m

1

H
ig

h

Health and 
Social Care 
Integration. 
Achievement 
of Benefits.

Health & 
Social Care 
Integration – 
The Pooled 
Fund

Integration is looking 
to bring together the 
Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
and Local Authorities 
to deliver clinical and 
financial stability.   

The formal Pooled 
Fund is to be in 
operation from the 1st 
April 2018 and will 
bring together 
resources from the 
Local Authority and 
Clinical 
Commissioning Group

13.892 The Pooled Budget is 
required to be operational by 
2018/19. The MTFS 
includes budgets for Council 
service areas covered by the 
pool within existing 
Directorates until the 
development of the Pool 
Budget reporting 
arrangements are 
confirmed. The 2018/19 – 
2020/21 savings proposals 
include a number of savings 
proposals which are to be 
delivered through the 
efficiencies of integration. 
There is a risk that delivery 
of the planned benefits may 
not arise.  

The Formal Pool was to 
have a deficit position with 
the Council. The Section 75 
agreement has been evoked 
,with the Council picking up 
a share of the deficit.

6.00

3.74

2

H
ig

h

Local 
Government 
Collection 
Rates

Local Authorities 
receive the majority of 
their funding from 
Business Rates and 
Council Tax. The 
amount the Council 
receives from these 
sources of funding is 
based on the taxbase. 

134.702 The Council has a risk of 
non-Collection of Business 
Rates for 99% of the 
estimated total business 
rates and 100% for Council 
Tax. Non- collection of the 
assumed level of Business 
Rates / council Tax maybe 
due to people not paying, 
businesses leaving the 
borough or the assumptions 

1.34

Page 112



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 51

contained with the estimates 
for growth in the taxbases 
not materialising.

3

H
ig

h

Funding of 
Local 
Authorities

Local Authority 
Funding is reducing 
year on year due to 
Central Government's 
Economic Plan. The 
Chancellor during the 
current parliament will 
make a number of 
statements where the 
level of resources 
available to Local 
Authorities may 
reduce.  

23.4 The MTFS for 2018/19 to 
2022/23 includes the level of 
funding available to the 
Council from the finance 
settlement.  There is a risk 
to the Council that the 
provisional funding 
announced will reduce 
further if the current 
economic forecasts for the 
Country worsen putting the 
Chancellors Economic Plan 
in jeopardy (Exceptional 
Circumstance). This will 
impact on the level of 
balances for 2018/19 and 
therefore will be considered 
as part of the budget setting 
process.

0.700

4

M
ed

iu
m

Pension Fund 
Guarantee

The Council 
guarantees to the 
Greater Manchester 
Pension Fund the 
pension contributions 
of a number of 
organisations where 
previous employees of 
the Council have 
tuped over. There is a 
risk to the Council if 
these organisations 
default on their 
contributions. 

12.000 The Council currently 
guarantees 31 organisations 

1.260

5

M
ed

iu
m

Litigation 
Claims

As the Council 
reduces the level of 
funding available for 
the future provision of 
services there is an 
increased risk of 
litigation. 

12.000 The Council mitigates 
against the risk of mitigation 
through robust risk 
assessment procedures and 
insurance 

1.200

6

M
ed

iu
m

Invest to Save 
Schemes - 
Capital

The Council is looking 
to approve a Capital 
Programme where a 
number of schemes 
are invest to save. 
The Schemes are 
forecast to generate 
future revenue income 
for the Council which 
will be used to repay 
interest and borrowing 

21.755 The risk to the Council is 
that the income from these 
invest to save schemes 
does not materialise in line 
with the Business Plans

1.088

Page 113



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 52

and to subsidise future 
Council Service

7

M
ed

iu
m

Welfare 
Reform - 
Administration 
of Universal 
Credit and 
implications

Central Government 
previously announced 
that they are 
simplifying and 
reforming the Welfare 
System over the next 
few years to make 
sure that working is 
more beneficial than 
claiming benefits

2.000 The impact to the Council of 
these changes is difficult to 
estimate and therefore as 
each initiative is 
implemented there is a risk 
to the Balances if services 
overspend.

0.200

8

M
ed

iu
m

Demand for 
serices

In times of austerity 
demand for Local 
Authority Services 
increase, this may 
impact on the cost of 
providing these 
services. The Budget 
for 2018/19 to 2020/21 
does include a small 
provision for Budget 
Pressures however 
this may not be 
enough to cover the 
pressures in the 
future. 

2.000 The risk to the Council is 
that services cannot manage 
any unforeseen increase 
demand for services

1.500

9

M
ed

iu
m

Prices Inflation 
Provision 

The budget does not 
include a provision for 
price increases except 
for contracts

33.211 Services have agreed to 
manage any inflationary 
increases in prices within 
their service budgets. There 
is a risk that services will not 
be able to fulfil this 
commitment

0.498

Saving 
Proposals 

The savings 
programme includes a 
number of saving 
proposals where 
implementation maybe 
delayed or the 
proposal may not be 
achieved

2.024 The risks to the Council of 
not achieving the savings 
proposals is managed 
through budget 
management, Political 
monitoring and performance 
indicators

0.20210

M
ed

iu
m

Total 256.984 Net Potential Exposure 17.728

Page 114



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 53

3.3.2 Earmarked Reserves

In addition to general balances, the Council holds a number of earmarked reserves.  
These are resources that have been set aside to fund specific issues that may arise 
in the future. It is important that the Council makes best uses of all the resources it 
has and therefore where it is clear that a reserve is no longer required then the 
resources can be released to provide one-off support to the Revenue Budget. 

The Council’s budget setting process includes an annual review of amounts held in 
earmarked reserves. This ensures that resources continue to be set aside only 
where there is a clear continuing need to do so. 
Some of the key reserves are referred to below:

 Equalisation Reserve - This reserve has been established to assist the Authority 
in managing its budget requirement for future years and smoothing the impact of 
savings requirement through the commitment of one off funds that become 
available, e.g. from in year underspends.  The level of the reserve is reviewed as 
part of the budget process with contributions increased or decreased as 
necessary. 

 Insurance Reserve - this is required to cover potential liabilities arising from the 
need to finance costs (e.g. claims and premium payments) associated with 
insurable risk and the self-funding of general corporate risks. The level of the 
reserve is reviewed as part of the budget process with contributions increased or 
decreased as necessary. 

 Schools Reserves – school balances are reviewed on an annual basis.  The 
current policy of the Schools Forum provides for balances above agreed limits to 
be clawed back and redistributed to all schools. This is a ring fenced reserve.

 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Reserves - This reserve is the cumulative amount 
of unapplied funding received to date which will be utilised to finance the schools 
and street lighting PFI schemes over the whole life of the projects. This is a ring 
fenced reserve.

A detailed analysis of the Council’s balances and reserves is carried out as part of 
the budget setting process and the report provided to Budget Council each 
February/March under the Local Government Act 2003 to provide assurance that the 
level of reserves and balances are appropriate, report available at:

Local Government Act Report

3.3.3 Reserves Policy

The Council’s policy on balances and reserves is outlined within the MTFS principles 
as follows:

 Our Council will maintain general balances at a level to mitigate risks to 
cover any major unforeseen expenditure. The approach to be adopted to 

Page 115

http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/g4174/Public%20reports%20pack%2001st-Mar-2017%2018.15%20Council.pdf?T=10


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 54

be based on the identification of the key financial risks following which an 
amount of ‘potential’ exposure is calculated based on the impact of the 
risk and the possibility of its occurrence 

 Our Council will maintain earmarked reserves for specific purposes which 
are consistent with achieving key priorities. To ensure the Council makes  
best uses of all the resources it has if a reserve is no longer required then 
the resources can be released to provide one-off support to the Revenue 
Budget

 The use and level of general balances and earmarked reserves will be 
reviewed at least annually.

 Our Council will seek to balance its revenue budget over the period of the 
MTFS without reliance on the use of general reserves and contain overall 
Council spending within original estimates. However, the Council will 
utilise funds from the Equalisation Reserve, see 3.3.2 for further details, to 
smooth the impact of one off savings, long term cost pressures and 
transformational efficiencies agreed as part of the Savings Programme 
proposals.

3.3.4   Provisions

Provisions are amounts set aside by the Council to meet the cost of a future liability, 
for which the timing of the payment is uncertain. The amounts represent the best 
estimate of that liability where an exact cost is not able to be determined. In line with 
the Code of Practice, the provision is charged to service revenue accounts in the 
year it is established. When the liability falls due, the costs are charged directly to 
the provision. The three material provisions are:

 Insurances – This represents amounts set aside by the Council to meet 
obligations arising in respect of Employers Public Liability and motor 
vehicle claims. 

 Business Rates Rateable Value – This is for potential backdated liability 
of refunding ratepayers who appeal successfully against the rateable 
value on the Business Rates hereditaments rating list. 

Page 116



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 55

Part 4:  Financial Assurance

Each year as part of the annual accounts process our Council must demonstrate that 
it is a going concern. This means it must show that it is financially sound in this time 
of austerity and changing local authority structures. Our Council is scrutinised by 
external audit who will review and comment on whether we have put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion. This can be 
demonstrated in a number of ways:

a. Through the Medium Term Financial Strategy document

b. Having a balanced Budget and an efficiency programme to deliver a 
balanced budget through savings proposals by Budget Council.

c.      Having a robust Budget Process as outlined at 3.1.

d.      Clear links between Corporate and Directorate plans and the MTFS, as 
detailed at    section 4.

e.     Adequate levels of balances and reserves to mitigate financial risks, as 
outlined at 3.3. 

f.     Consistent and regular monitoring, reported to officers and members.

A Corporate Peer Review undertaken independently by the Local Government 
Association for the Council considered, as part of a range of key questions.” does  
the council have a financial plan in place to ensure long term viability and is there 
evidence that it is being implemented successfully? “

The findings of the Peer Review, Peer Challenge report confirmed that:

“The council has been prudent with its approach to financial management. There is a 
clear understanding of the scale of financial savings required over the next few 
years, with senior members being well involved in these debates and decisions. The 
council has managed its financial challenges well so far. For a number of years it 
has taken action on tackling funding reductions and delivered substantial savings to 
ensure it has a balanced budget.”

“There is a well-established and effective approach to financial management with 
regular monitoring and scrutiny of budget reports.”

The external audit review of the Council’s Value for Money arrangements as part of 
the Annual Accounts 2016/17 concluded:

“The Council has a strong track record of delivering its financial commitments each
year. The financial statements and outturn reports confirm the Council has achieved
financial targets for the 2016-17 financial year.

Page 117

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2015-11-30-Peer-Challenge-Report.pdf


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 56

The Council has set a balanced budget for 2017-18 which includes a savings target 
of
£17m to be delivered, £15.2m in 2017-18 and £1.8m in 2018-19. The Council is
progressing the savings programme through engagement with the wider leadership
team and will report an update to Cabinet in September 2017.
General reserve levels are set at a similar level to previous years and the Council 
has
extensive earmarked reserves to draw on should the need arise. Overall the Council 
is
sufficiently managing it financial challenges at present.”

Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we concluded
that:

• the Council had proper arrangements in all significant respects to ensure it
delivered value for money in its use of resources. 

Link to Audit report 

Agenda for Audit and Governance Committee on Wednesday, 26th July, 2017, 6.15 
pm

The Medium Term Financial Strategy, the budget setting process and the monitoring 
of the budgets ensure that expenditure and income are managed robustly within the 
available resources ensuring that the Council is a going concern for the foreseeable 
future. The external confirmation from both the Peer Review and the External Audit 
findings demonstrate that our Council is taking positive measures to ensure the 
Council remains a going concern

Financial Resilience

CIPFA has recently published a paper: ‘Building financial resilience: managing 
financial stress in local authorities14’ intended to help chief financial officers and their 
authorities build financial resilience into all aspects of their planning and operations. 
It identifies the warning signs of financial stress, and explains the pillars on which 
financial resilience depends.

CIPFA has outlined the warning signs of financial stress exhibited by local 
authorities. Table 28 shows how the Council is performing against these warning 
signs.

14 CIPFA Insights - Building financial resilience: managing financial stress in local authorities (http://www.cipfa.org/cipfa-thinks/insight)

Page 118

http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=675&MId=4370&Ver=4
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=675&MId=4370&Ver=4
http://www.cipfa.org/cipfa-thinks/insight


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 57

Table 28 Financial Stress Warning Signs

CIPFA has identified four key pillars of financial resilience:

 Getting routine financial management right;
 Benchmarking;
 Clear plans for delivering savings;
 Managing reserves.

The Council identifies how it achieves financial resilience via the annual Value for 
Money Assessment and Going Concern letter. These form part of the annual 
external audit of the Council’s accounts.

Warning Sign Council Performance
Running down reserves The Council reviews its balances and reserves on an 

annual basis in accordance with the requirements of the 
Local Government Act 2003. The Reserves Policy states 
that the Council will seek to balance its revenue budget 
over the period of the MTFS without reliance on the use 
of general reserves (see section 3.3).

A failure to plan and deliver savings in 
service provision to ensure the council 
lives within its resources

The Council has undertaken a robust annual savings 
programme designed to bridge the budget gap, to enable 
a legally balanced budget to be set each year (see section 
3.2).

Shortening medium-term financial 
planning horizons

The Council has extended the period covered by its MTFS 
to 5 years.

Greater ‘still to be found’ gaps in 
saving plans, where authorities have 
only specified how savings will be 
achieved for the next financial year 
and even then there may be some 
with targets rather than firm plans

The savings programme identifies specific savings to 
bridge the budget gap for the next financial year, and 
also identifies savings to help meet the budget gap in the 
following year. Savings proposals are all risk assessed.

A growing tendency for departments 
to have unplanned overspends and/or 
carrying forward undelivered saving 
into the following year

A composite financial report is produced four times per 
year  at scheduled meetings of the Cabinet, providing:
 an overall financial update, identifying major 

variations and the required corrective action;  
 a separate report monitoring the performance of  

Savings proposals approved for the year with any 
mitigating actions should delivery of the savings 
proposals have changed.

Page 119



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 58

Part 5: Efficiency Plan

As part of the Local Government Finance Settlement 2016/17, Central Government 
offered councils the opportunity to accept a four year funding offer. This would 
provide a council that wishes to take it up, a four-year funding settlement to 2019-20. 
For our Council this means that we would know for four years how much Revenue 
Support Grant we would receive. 

The offer allows our Council to plan ahead with an indication of the level of 
resources which will be available to the Council over the four years. The MTFS 
incorporates the multiyear offer and has supported the production of financial 
projections for five years from 2018/19 to 2022/23. This has allowed informed 
financial planning and budget savings to be identified in line with the Council’s 
priorities. 

The Council’s Corporate Plan 2016 – 2019 recognises the significant financial 
challenges faced by the Council which will be addressed by working differently. To 
help to do this our Council has identified a number of “key corporate enabling work 
programmes” which will ensure we have the capacity to achieve the outcomes the 
Council is seeking for its residents and local communities.

The work programme includes:

 Capitalising as a Borough on the benefits arising from Devolution to Greater 
Manchester.

 Integration and Transformation of health and social care – working closely 
across organisational boundaries, and sharing budgets and staff to commission 
high-quality joined up care at the right time and in the right place.

 Behaviour change – encouraging and supporting people and communities to be 
independent and resilient, developing a culture of social responsibility where 
people help themselves and each other.

 Volunteering – building capacity by encouraging and supporting volunteers and 
voluntary, community and faith groups to work alongside us to achieve our 
vision.

 New service delivery models - looking for ways to save money by exploring 
opportunities to do things differently, for example by sharing some of our 
services with other councils and public sector bodies.

 Improving value for money – managing our people and our money, seeking out 
best practice, making better use of data and intelligence and streamlining 
decision-making.

Page 120



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 59

Since 2010/11 the Council has made £176.4m of savings. Our Council continues to 
face significant financial challenges due to ongoing reductions in Government 
funding, more demand and increasing costs of services. 

At the start of the 2017/18 budget process the gap for 2017/18 was £15.9m. Given 
this the budget process would be just as challenging as it was in 2015/16 and 
2016/17, requiring further reductions in expenditure, whilst still aiming to deliver on 
priority issues for the Council. Following a range of savings proposals the budget for 
2017/18 was approved at Council on 1st March 2017 as set out below:- 

 The total net budget for Council services for 2017/18 was set at £196.03m. 
 Council Tax was increased by 4.99%, including a 3% Adult Care precept. 
 Saving proposals with no impact on service delivery and workforce of £11.4m on 

going and £0.3m one-off. 
 Saving proposals of £3.8m on going. 

Early work has been undertaken on projecting the budget position for the next three 
years 2018/19 to 2020/21, using the four year settlement offer and revised budget 
assumptions following Government funding announcements. Provisional budgets for 
2018/19 to 2019/20 indicated at Budget Council March 2017 that a further £15.4m of 
savings were required to balance the budget for these years. This has been updated 
as further information has become available and has been revised to £23.9m over 
the period 2018/19 – 2019/20, rising to £33.6m in 2020/21.

Plans have been approved for consultation to bridge the gap, which have identified 
alternative ways of working and reductions in provisions. Together with revised 
budget assumptions and changes in local government financing these have reduced 
the gap to £2.7m in 2018/19. Over the coming months further work will be 
undertaken to identify and update the Medium Term Financial Strategy and the 
Revenue Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 to propose alternatives to bridge the gap, as 
part of the budget being recommended to Cabinet/Council in February 2018.

A number of the savings proposals to reduce the revenue budget gap (£11.445m) 
are to be achieved through the integration of Health and Social Care. The savings 
(benefits) will be achieved by pooling the resources of the Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) and the Local Authority (Children’s services, Adult Social Care and 
elements of Public Health) and investing these pooled resources in less costly 
service provision which has greater benefits for the patient/resident receiving the 
support/care.

The Council accepted the four-year funding settlement on the basis that if any 
additional funding is made available to local authorities through future local 
government finance settlements, a share of this additional funding will be allocated 
to those authorities that have accepted the four-year funding offer. It is also on the 
basis that any new burdens and extra responsibilities will be fully funded. The Local 
Government Funding Settlement for 2017/18 recognised the Council’s acceptance of 
the offer and has confirmed the remaining three years funding 2017/18 to 2019/20 at 
the same levels as previously notified in 2016/17.

Page 121



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 60

Part 6: Strategies which the MTFS supports

6.1 Borough’s Place Plan

The Borough’s Place Plan 2016 -2021 sets out the Borough’s ambitions for the next 
five years which is to be delivered through partnership working. There are three 
priorities: People, Place and Prosperity set out in the Borough’s Place Plan Place 
Plan for the Borough, and within this context, the focus for our Council over the next 
three years will be on improving education (people), our local environment (place) 
and our local economy (prosperity). 

How we will achieve these outcomes is contained in 5 key partnership plans, 
namely:
 Borough Master Plan – In development
 Safer Communities Plan Safer Communities Plan 2015 -2018
 Co-operating for Better Health and Well-being Greater Manchester Health & 

Social Care Devolution Taking Charge
 Housing Statement – In development
 Economic Plan Economy Directorate Plan

The Place Plan ambition will be monitored and delivered through partners at a 
regional level as part of the Greater Manchester Devolution , through our Council’s 
local strategies and delivered at an operational level by Service Directorates. The 
MTFS, Capital Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy support the Place Plan 
and in particularly work with the key drivers outlined in the Council’s Corporate Plan

Regional Strategies

 Greater Manchester 
Devolution Agreement 
& Work Programme

 GM Spatial Framework
 GM “Stronger 

Together”
 GM Growth & Reform 

Plan
 GM Health & Social 

Care Plan – Taking 
Charge

 GM Strategic Land Use 
& Transport Strategies 
2016

Local Strategies

 Borough Master 
Plan 2016

 Safer 
Communities 
Plan

 Corporate Plan 
2016 -2019

 Housing 
Statement 2016

 Economic Plan 
2016

 Townships Plans
 Locality Health & 

Social Care Plan

Operational

 Directorate Plans
 Performance & Risk
 Asset Management
 Procurement Strategy
 ICT Strategy
 People Strategy
 Equality & Diversity  

Policy“ No matter 
who”

 Capital Strategy
 Treasury 

Management Strategy

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Page 122

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/place-plan.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/place-plan.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2015-03-16-Safer-Partnerships-Plan-2015-18.pdf
http://www.gmhsc.org.uk/gmhsc-downloads/
http://www.gmhsc.org.uk/gmhsc-downloads/
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/economy-directorate-plan.aspx


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 61

6.2 Corporate Plan 2016/17 – 2018/19

The Corporate Plan 2016-19 is how the Council plays its part in meeting the 
ambition outlined in the Place Plan , and also includes a fourth priority performance. 
The MTFS and Corporate Plan are aligned to ensure that our resources are aligned 
to the priorities of the Council. 

The key Corporate Plan priorities which the MTFS supports are shown below

Our vision: to be a  Council which builds 
success and prosperity with our 
citizens and partners, while 
protecting vulnerable people

Three key drivers of the Corporate Plan over the next 3 years:
                            People       -    Improving education
                            Place         -    Our local environment
                            Prosperity  -    Our local economy
Improving performance is our fourth priority – Focusing on managing 

our resources effectively to achieve our ambitions – supported by 
the MTFS

Our vision and priorities as set out in our Corporate Plan 2016-19 can be seen by 
clicking on the following link, Corporate Plan for Rochdale Borough Council

Our values are at the heart of everything we do. We will:
 Value our people.
 Focus on our customers.
 Act with integrity.
 Use time and money wisely.
 Work together.
 Always learn and improve.

In common with other areas, we face significant financial challenges, which we will 
address by working differently. We have identified a number of key corporate 
principles that will help us to do this, ensuring that we have the capacity to achieve 
the outcomes we are seeking.

 Capitalising as a Borough on the benefits arising from Devolution to Greater 
Manchester.

 Integration and Transformation of health and social care – working closely 
across organisational boundaries, and sharing budgets and staff to commission 
high-quality joined up care at the right time and in the right place.

 Behaviour change – encouraging and supporting people and communities to be 
independent and resilient, developing a culture of social responsibility where 
people help themselves and each other.

Page 123

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/corporate-plan.aspx


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 62

 Volunteering – building capacity by encouraging and supporting volunteers and 
voluntary, community and faith groups to work alongside us to achieve our 
vision.

 New service delivery models - looking for ways to save money by exploring 
opportunities to do things differently, for example by sharing some of our 
services with other councils and public sector bodies.

 Improving value for money – managing our people and our money, seeking out 
best practice, making better use of data and intelligence and streamlining 
decision-making.

6.3 Locality Plan

Our vision for health and social care and wellbeing by 2021 is set out in Rochdale 
GM
Devolution Locality Plan ‘Co-operating for better Health and Wellbeing: A plan for 
2016-21’.

In order to achieve our vision our Council will prioritise the following:

1. Extending lifestyle and behaviour change programmes – aiming to have an 
impact at the earliest possible time.

2. Strengthening community engagements and ownership of health and wellbeing, 
building more opportunities for community and peer support, developing new 
solutions and support mechanisms alongside public services.

3. Growing early years and early intervention support, targeting children and adults 
at risk before problems take root.

4. Extending local mental health and wellbeing services, with individuals and 
community groups becoming a strong part of the support available.

5. Integrated the commissioning of health, care and wellbeing so that services are 
put in place to meet the needs of the person.

To achieve this transformation resource will be brought together and services jointly 
commissioned across health and social care, concentrating on the needs of the 
whole person in the design of services, using co-production as our default way of 
working.

The Rochdale Borough Locality Plan sets out where we are now and the case for 
change describing the opportunities to improve quality and reduce costs. The 
Locality Plan is continually updated and monitored by the Integrated Commissioning 
Board whose membership consists of representatives from our Council, Clinical 

Page 124



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 63

Commissioning Group and Public Health, Governing Body members and Cabinet 
portfolio holders.

Locality Plan Cooperating for Better Health and Wellbeing a plan for 2016-21

Page 125

http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=697&MId=4194&Ver=4


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 64

Part 7: Value for Money and Assurance around Financial Management

7.1 Governance and Internal Controls 

7.1.1 Systems of Internal Control

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 places a requirement on all local 
authorities to ensure that the Authority has a sound system of internal control which 
facilitates the effective exercise of the Authority’s functions and which includes the 
arrangements for the management of risk.  Our system of internal control is based 
upon an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of the Authority’s policies, aims and objectives.  It is followed by 
evaluation of the likelihood of those risks being realised, their impact should they be 
realised and how to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

7.1.2 The Internal Control Environment

The framework for the system of internal control forms the overall control 
environment. Its key elements are as follows: -

 Establishing and monitoring the achievement of our Council’s objectives;
 Facilitating policy and decision-making;
 Ensure delivery of the savings proposals to achieve a balanced budget;
 Ensuring compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations 

including how risk management is embedded in the activities of Rochdale BC, 
how leadership is given to the risk management process and how staff are 
trained to manage risk in a way appropriate to their authority and duties;

 Ensuring the economic, effective and efficient use of resources, and for securing 
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness;

 The financial management of Rochdale BC and the reporting of financial 
management; and

 The performance management of Rochdale BC and the reporting of 
performance management.

The description of the system of internal control at Rochdale BC is covered in detail 
in the Annual Governance Statement which is accessible on the Annual Accounts 
Section of the Authority’s website, at the link below:

www.rochdale.gov.uk/annual-accounts

Detailed here are the aspects of the system that are particularly relevant to the 
achievement of the medium term plan and financial strategy. 

Page 126

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/budgets-and-spending/annual-accounts/pages/default.aspx


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 65

7.1.3 The Planning Framework

Establishing Objectives: Our priorities and objectives are informed by the 
Rochdale Borough Sustainable Community Strategy 2011-2021 (SCS). Whilst the 
vision and priorities contained within the SCS are for 20 years, the SCS itself is a 
four-year delivery plan which has recently been refreshed under the leadership of 
the Transformational Leaders Group. The refresh has brought together the SCS 
and a number of thematic strategic plans that have been developed by key 
strategic partnerships into a single Place Plan for the Borough. From this, the 
Council developed its own vision to build success and prosperity with our citizens 
and partners, whilst protecting our vulnerable people. The key priorities were 
established as being People, Place, Prosperity and Corporate Health. These 
priorities are directing the Council’s work through the enabling work programmes 
set out in the Corporate Plan, delivered by Directorate Plans and underpinned by 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  

Leadership Team Monitoring: Rochdale BC’s Leadership Team (LT) 
monitors our progress in achieving Corporate Plan’s outcomes. In addition, 
LT take collective responsibility for ensuring effective financial management is 
in place and have a leading role in respect of the savings proposals. 

The Budget Plan: The medium term financial strategy is implemented 
through a detailed budget plan which is subject to annual review and update.  
The latest forecast of income and expenditure are considered alongside any 
implications for the achievement of Corporate and Directorate plan objectives.  
Consultation on the budget is undertaken with Township Committees, Trade 
Unions, the Voluntary Sector, staff, the public and other key stakeholders.  In 
February/ March each year, the Budget Council makes the decision to 
formally set the budget, on recommendation from the Cabinet.  That budget is 
set on the basis of robust, three-year financial forecasts, with a fully detailed 
budget for the year ahead. When Government settlements are available for 
future years an indicative Council tax is also set.

Directorate Planning:  Directorate plans are developed in the context of the 
Corporate Plan.  Led by Directors in conjunction with their Portfolio Holder, 
they set out an annual plan of service delivery. The plans take account of the 
Service’s budget, structure, details of workforce planning, performance 
information, assets, and risks. The Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
consider the Plans produced for each of the council’s Directorates as they 
apply to their particular terms of reference. As well as informing Members of 
the work programmes for the various services covered by the Directorates, 
the Plans also set the indicators to be reported to the Committee as part of 
the performance management framework

7.1.4 Budget management & monitoring 

The Budget management framework: Delivery of the budget plan is monitored 
through the budget management framework that seeks to ensure: 

Page 127



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 66

 All managers fully understand their budget and the relationship between 
activity and costs;

 Services maximise the use of the available resources and minimise the risk of 
overspending;

 The Council has assurance that individual service budgets and the overall 
Council budget are being managed effectively; and

 Budget problems and risks are identified at an early stage to enable corrective 
action to be taken.

Budget management meetings: Regular meetings are held between Directors 
and representatives of the Chief Finance Officer. These seek to ensure that 
Directors fully understand their budgets, are aware of areas of risk and have 
appropriate plans in place to manage pressures and savings. Specific focus is 
given to identified budget risks and the implementation of budget savings. Directors 
sign off their service budgets as part of the budget setting process.

Revenue Budget monitoring: Budget monitoring seeks to continuously identify 
and explain actual income and expenditure variations against established budgets.  
Budget monitoring is the responsibility of budget managers with the support of 
Finance Services, each budget has a named budget manager and responsibilities 
are clarified.  Financial reports are produced on a monthly basis and regular 
meetings held to discuss the financial forecasts.  A Financial Update Report is 
presented quarterly to the Council’s Cabinet. Significant variations are investigated 
and the Director agrees the corrective action to be taken.  Directors are also 
required to monitor the implementation of approved savings and advise of any 
slippage or variation.  

7.1.5 Performance Management Framework

Performance management:  Directors are responsible for managing the 
performance of the service against the Directorate plan through a structure of team 
plans and individual staff performance and development reviews.  These plans 
focus clearly on specific tasks and performance indicators so that all staff know 
what they have to achieve, and show how the team will contribute towards the 
targets detailed in the Directorate Plan and the overall aims of the Council. Service 
and Team plan objectives are tied back into the Corporate Plan objectives.  

7.1.6 Political Leadership

Portfolio Holders: Each portfolio holder works closely with the appropriate Director 
to develop and sign off the Directorate plan, to consider savings proposals and 
throughout the year they receive regular budget/ service delivery updates on the 
services within their portfolio. The portfolio holder has a Cabinet Assistant 
identified. The opposition portfolio holders are also in place. There is a single 
portfolio holder role covering all aspects of Finance, who provides the lead on 
finance matters at Cabinet and committees where required.

Budget Management – The Cabinet: A composite financial report is produced 
quarterly at scheduled meetings of the Cabinet, providing:

Page 128



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 67

 an overall financial update, identifying major variations and the required 
corrective action.  

 a separate report monitoring the performance of  Savings proposals approved 
for the year with any mitigating actions should delivery of the savings 
proposals have changed

 an update on the performance of the Collection Fund which accounts for the 
collection of income from council tax and business rates in year.

Adverse variations are accompanied by corrective action with specific 
recommendations made to Cabinet to approve the service delivery implications of 
that action where appropriate.  

Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee:  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee plays an effective role in supporting sound budget performance.  
Services with in-year overspend forecasts above an agreed limit of £250k are 
required to discuss their planned action to bring the budget back into balance. 

Audit & Governance Committee: The terms of reference of this Committee include 
responsibility for overseeing RBC governance arrangements and the approval of 
the Annual Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement, Annual Internal 
Audit Plan and Risk Management Strategy. The Committee also provides Members 
with the ability to challenge senior officers on any areas where weaknesses are 
identified within the internal control framework and risk management arrangements 
and seek assurances that actions are being completed within agreed timescales.

7.2. Risk & Control

7.2.1 What is Risk Management?

Risk management is the structure, processes and culture that contribute to the 
effective management of threats to the Council that may prevent us from achieving 
our policies, aims, and objectives.  It affects all of us in the Council as well as our 
partners and citizens. 

The challenges that we face and the rate of change puts us under increasing pressure 
to continually improve the quality of our risk management processes. This means that 
we need to make sure that our risk management processes are structured, as well as 
being instinctive and intuitive. If we are to meet these challenges, high quality risk 
management needs to be at the core of our decision making at all levels of the 
Council. 

Risk management should not be a process that stifles innovation and prevents 
opportunism but rather one in which risks can, and should, be taken, providing they 
are actively managed and justified. The dynamically changing environment for Local 
Government means that we must ensure that we are risk aware rather than risk 
averse. It is acceptable to have a high risk initiative providing it is managed 
appropriately. The focus should be on the action taken to manage the risk and not 
simply on reducing the risk status.  

Page 129



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 68

The current Risk Management Strategy for the Council, detailing how the Council 
manages risks in achieving our strategies, policies, aims, and objectives, can be 
found at the link below:

www.rochdale.gov.uk/risk-management-strategy

Code of Corporate Governance: Rochdale BC is responsible for ensuring that its 
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that 
public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively. In discharging this accountability, Members and senior 
officers are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance 
of the Authority’s affairs and the stewardship of the resources at its disposal.  To this 
end, the Authority has previously approved and adopted a Code of Corporate 
Governance, which is consistent with the principles and reflects the requirements of 
the CIPFA/ SOLACE Framework setting out best practice in this area.  The Code is 
approved by the Audit and Governance Committee and refreshed annually.  The 
Governance Board is an officer led body chaired by the Monitoring Officer which 
oversees the governance arrangements within the Council and communicates with 
key managers. Membership includes Internal Audit and senior officers across the 
Council with responsibilities for governance and risk.  

Risk Management:  Our approach to risk management plays an important role in 
supporting effective financial and service management practices.  Section four of the 
strategy provides more detail on this area.

Internal Audit: The scope of the Internal Audit team, an independent assurance 
function, includes examining and evaluating the whole system of internal controls 
established by management, which is not confined to the financial control system.  It 
involves an evaluation of the controls against an assessment of the risks facing the 
Authority to determine their adequacy, reliability and effectiveness and how well the 
responsibilities assigned to managers are being carried out in practice.

Training & Awareness: The regular training provided is intended to ensure that staff 
within Finance Services, elected members and non-finance officers are supported in 
understanding their financial responsibilities and have the necessary knowledge and 
skills to undertake them. 

External Audit: External audit provides independent audit and inspection covering 
two elements: the audit of the financial statements and the assessment of the 
Council’s arrangements for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (Value for Money).

7.2.2 Significant Internal Control Issues

The ongoing operational changes within all areas of the Council continue to have 
potential implications for the internal control environment. However this is something 
that is kept under constant review by Internal Audit which provides assurance on the 
effectiveness of controls in all key areas.  Any significant issues which may have an 
impact on overall governance within the Council are summarised within our Annual 
Governance Statement Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 which includes an 

Page 130

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/risk-management-strategy.aspx
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s56118/Append.%202%20for%20Annual%20Governance%20Statement%20Year%20Ending%2031st%20March%202017.pdf


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 69

action plan to address these issues within an agreed timeframe, these feed through to 
the Directorate Plans.  Through implementation of this plan, Rochdale BC is confident 
that these issues will not have a significant negative influence on the internal control 
mechanisms and systems.

7.2.3 Risk Management & Business Continuity 

The Council considers Risk Management to be a key priority in achieving the 
strategies, policies, and objectives of the Borough.

The vision for the Council is to embed the identification and management of risk to 
support the achievement of Rochdale Council’s objectives.

7.2.4 What is a Business Continuity Plan?

Business Continuity Plans set out how the business will operate following a significant 
incident and how it expects to return to “business as usual” as soon as possible. The 
plan sets out the agreed arrangement for bringing events under control; the necessary 
resources for maintaining critical business functions; and the staff required for 
coordinating actions.

Business Continuity ensures that the Council can still deliver high priority services to 
the residents of Rochdale.

Page 131



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 70

Part 8:  Asset Management Strategy

Asset Management Strategy

Our assets are resources the Council’s owns.  In financial terms they cost money to 
run and maintain and have a market value that on sale would provide a receipt to fund 
other assets or reduce debt/ the costs of borrowing.  The quality of our assets, their 
fitness for purpose, location and condition has a significant impact on customer 
access and the customer experience.  Public realm and infrastructure assets 
influence our sense of place and how people feel about the Borough.  Assets can also 
help transform how we work.  

The Council’s Asset Strategy for 2016/19 focuses on the following Strategic 
Objectives:

 To improve front-line service delivery and to maintain a high profile presence 
within the community.

 To contribute to the borough’s economic growth, and to its social and 
environmental well-being.

 To develop a more efficient property portfolio, increasingly fit for purpose.

 To realise asset values through capital receipts and maximising rental income.

 To deliver revenue savings and to reduce property owner’s liability from a 
programme of asset rationalisation.

The Council’s Asset Strategy is available at Council's Asset Strategy 2016 -2019

Page 132

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2016-06-27-asset-strategy-plan.pdf


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 71

Section 9 : Treasury Management Strategy

9.1. Introduction

This section of the financial plan sets out the strategy for treasury management 
activity.  The most recent Treasury Management Strategy was approved by Council 
on 1st March 2017.  An effective approach to treasury management can make a 
significant contribution to the Council’s overall financial position.  

Our treasury management practices are strictly regulated by statutory requirements.  
We operate within the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management and adhere 
to Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) guidance.  

Treasury management can be defined as:
‘The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows , its banking , 
money market and capital transactions ; the effective control of the risks associated 
with these activities and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks.’

9.2.  Treasury Management Strategy

The main purpose of the treasury management strategy is to: 

Proactively manage the Council’s Debt and Investment portfolios and cash flows to 
achieve budgets and targets whilst ensuring the Council is not placed at undue 
financial risk.

To help us achieve this, we have developed a number of aims, which are:

 The effective management and control of risks being the prime objective of the 
Council’s Treasury Management activities

 Effectively managing the Council’s cash flow requirements 
 Managing the security and liquidity risk of investments whilst taking opportunities 

to optimise returns on investments 
 Undertaking new borrowing at or below budgeted rates
 Seeking opportunities to reduce the cost of servicing existing debt
 Managing exposure to interest rate risk and volatility
 Reviewing our Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy to ensure that future 

debt repayments can be made with costs aligned to the useful life of assets. 
 Reviewing current practices and introducing improvements where possible
 Monitoring economic and market developments and assessing the implications 

on the debt and/or investment portfolio
 Investigating new products and opportunities, understanding their risks and 

benefits.
 Considering and mitigating any risks created by changes or developments in 

Accounting Standards as they apply to Local Authorities.

Page 133



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 72

 Operating within the agreed Treasury Management Practices
 Ensuring the Council’s approved Treasury Management Strategy is followed and 

that the Council acts within the appropriate legislation

We plan to achieve our aims through the implementation of a number of objectives for 
how we manage our investment activity and how we manage our debt portfolio.  
These objectives are:

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

OBJECTIVE 1: Ensure maximum security of capital.

OBJECTIVE 2: To achieve the investment budgets and targets set, whilst seeking 
opportunities to outperform them.  

BORROWING ACTIVITY

OBJECTIVE 3: To achieve the debt related budgets and targets set, whilst seeking 
opportunities to outperform them. 

OBJECTIVE 4: Give due consideration to the impact of new borrowing or debt 
restructuring on the Council’s debt maturity profile and the associated implications for 
interest rate risk and the Council’s Balance Sheet.  

ACHIEVING OUR OBJECTIVES & MEASURING SUCCESS

OBJECTIVE 1: We will:
Ensure that all investment activity is undertaken within the relevant legislation and 
prudential limits. 
Only use those counterparties which meet the Council’s investment criteria 
Continually keep under review the investment criteria, duration and limits of these 
investments and give priority to security and liquidity rather than yield.

OBJECTIVE 2: We will 
Accurately model cash flow, interest rates and economic conditions alongside 
accessing specialist advice.
Recognise and manage the Council’s surplus cash as two separate portfolios (cash 
flow and core cash).
Continue to be proactive in the way in which cash is invested, seeking out new 
products, critically analysing relevant economic data and investing at optimum rates.  

OBJECTIVE 3 & 4:  We will:
Continue to undertake new borrowing activity on the basis of targeted rates and take 
advantage of money market movements to time the raising of new loans from the 
Public Works Loan Board and the wider market.
Give greater emphasis to re-balancing our debt maturity profile.
 Increase the use of direct dealing with counterparties in relation to debt where this 
approach reduces brokerage costs and/or secures lower interest charges. 

Page 134



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 73

Seek out new products that may become available in the debt market that are 
suitable for Local Authority purposes.
Seek opportunities to undertake restructuring activity where it creates a financial 
benefit and/or allows for better management of interest rate risk within the debt 
portfolio.

OUTCOMES AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

OBJECTIVE 1: No loss of capital. 100% of investments made within the agreed 
criteria.

OBJECTIVE 2: – Investment activity to generate £0.4m income in 2017/18. Average 
rate of interest achieved to be higher than average 7 day LIBID plus two basis points.

OBJECTIVE 3: External interest charges of £10.8m or less in 2017/18 on RBC 
managed debt (net of contributions).

OBJECTIVE 4:  Debt restructuring results in either a net financial benefit or a 
reduction in interest rate risk.

MONITORING AND REPORTING

The Cabinet and Overview & Scrutiny Committee approve and review the strategy 
annually.  A full half yearly update on the Council’s Treasury Management activities to 
the end of September is included in the period 6 Budget Monitoring Report.

Treasury management indicators and limits are set out below

Treasury Management Indicators and Limits 2017/18 to 2019/20

Operational Boundary for External Debt

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
£M £M £M

Borrowing 312.875 342.585 354.017
Other long term 
liabilities

107.468 103.267 98.949

Total 420.343 445.852 452.966

Authorised Limit for External Debt

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
£M £M £M

Borrowing 412.672 449.982 421.769
Other long term 
liabilities

107.468 103.267 98.949

Total 520.140 553.249 520.718

Page 135



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 74

Debt Portfolio Fixed and Variable Interest Rate Exposure

Loan type 2017/18- 2019/20
%

Fixed rate - upper limit 125
Fixed rate – lower limit 40
Variable rate - upper 
limit

55

Variable rate – lower 
limit

(25)

Debt Portfolio Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing

Period Upper limit Lower limit
% %

Under 12 months 60 0
12 months and within 24 
months

60 0

24 months and within 5 
years

60 0

5 years and within 10 
years

70 0

10 years and above 100 25

Page 136



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 75

Part 10: Linked Strategies

10.1 Corporate Procurement

In February 2014 Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale Councils established a shared 
procurement service – STAR Procurement. STAR provides an effective procurement 
function which supports commissioning and procurement processes. 

The Procurement Strategy that exists across the three councils sets out the strategic 
direction and priorities for procurement for the participating partners.

The STAR Procurement Strategy can be found at the link: 

http://www.star-procurement.gov.uk/About-us/Docs/STaR-Procurement-Strategy.pdf

10.2  Information Technology – The Connected Council Programme

The Connected Council Programme has also been born out of the Council's 
significant cost challenge, the need to improve the services we offer and how we 
interact with customers, our Public Sector Reform requirements and also to 
anticipate future channel shift that is desirable to both the Council and its Citizens.

This is not only about increasing customer choice by making all services available 
online, it is also about using the information we hold on our Citizens in a much more 
productive fashion, to drive out repeat requests and reduce costs.  This should mean 
once a resident has made a choice about how they want to contact us they can 
arrive at a Community Hub, phone the contact centre or go online and in all cases 
receive the same efficient service.

In essence this means we are making significant changes and improvements to our 
technology and processes to make things easier and better for customers. At the 
same time we are looking to reduce the amount of administration we require for 
certain requests, including the automation of a number of our internal procedures, in 
order to drive down costs and reduce errors.

There are a number of key aspects to the programme which will underpin future cost 
reduction, increase efficiency and enhance the agility of the Council in the longer 
term to react to change.

 Firstly we are drawing together around 100 separate sets of citizen information 
from throughout the various council departments in order to create one single 
view and record of each resident which will be linked to an accurate record of 
that citizen’s address and personal details. From the customer's perspective they 
will hold a single account with the Council.

 Secondly we will use this single view of the customer during our interactions with 
them, regardless of how they choose to contact us. Any requests, amends or 

Page 137

http://www.star-procurement.gov.uk/About-us/Docs/STaR-Procurement-Strategy.pdf
http://rbcintranet.rochdale.local/PSR/SitePages/Home.aspx


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 76

additions will automatically update all of the relevant council departments; thus 
reducing effort on the part of the customer and reducing duplication, costs and 
errors on the part of the Council.

 In the background we are mapping, analysing and totally refreshing all of our 
internal processes with a view to automating as many service requests and 
interactions as possible, again reducing repetition, errors and cost. Our primary 
focus is to update our processes in a customer centric fashion whilst making 
them as efficient as possible.

Work has already started on the various work streams that make up the Connected 
Council Programme but most of these are still in the early stages which mainly 
involve analysis of the current situation.

More information on the Connected Council Programme can be found at the link: 
Connected Council Programme

10.3 Organisational Development Strategy 

The Council is creating a new style organisation that is different and more agile from 
the one that existed before. We are exploring opportunities to do things differently, 
examining the way we work, the way we deliver high quality customer based 
services and the way we behave with a focus on the efficient and flexible use of our 
resources.  

Success will depend on an organisational culture that rewards talent and success, 
empowers and enables people, and an environment that promotes and provides 
work-based learning that gives people the confidence to take decisions where it is 
necessary and appropriate to do so. 

The new shape of the Council has been developed following a full assessment of the 
national and local context, financial situation and statutory requirements. This 
includes additional opportunities challenges and responsibilities arising from the 
Greater Manchester Devolution Agreement and the new Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority. 

Delivering our priorities within significant financial constraints requires us to 
transform our approach to service delivery and the way we work. The Organisational 
Development Strategy provides an overarching framework for the whole 
organisation and sets out how we will develop the Council as a whole to deliver its 
vision in this context.  

The key aims for this strategy are set out below: 
 To maintain a focus on empowered customers and communities 
 To ensure that services provide value for money 
 To ensure that we have the right people with the right skills in the right place at 

the right time to achieve this  
 To ensure we are seen as an employer of choice  
 To have a workforce that is representative of our local population 

Page 138

http://council.rochdale.local/neighbourhoods/ict/Connected_Council/SitePages/Home.aspx


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 77

 To exploit technological developments to improve access to services and to 
create efficiencies   

 To further embed lean delivery and continuous improvement into the way we 
work 

 To have a highly motivated and productive workforce 

The Council’s Organisational Development Strategy can be found at the link:

Organisational Development Strategy

10.4 Equality and Diversity Policy

Our Equality and Diversity Policy - No Matter Who sets out the Council’s 
commitment to: 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010. 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

Our public statements, services and employment practices will reflect this 
commitment.  We will promote this policy and expect respect for it from citizens, 
users of council services, partner agencies, Elected Members, council employees 
and our contractors. 

Our vision for equality and diversity is: 

 Representing, serving and employing people as equals. 
 Valuing the diversity of their contributions and aspirations. 
 No matter who they are or what their circumstances.  

We believe that tackling inequalities provides a strong foundation for cohesive and 
confident communities. We believe that all citizens have a right to equal access to 
life opportunities, including representation, services and employment by the council. 
To achieve this we are working towards removing barriers to opportunities and to 
narrowing the gap between the most disadvantaged and others. 

We understand that people may suffer from inequality due to discrimination because 
of their age, health, race, ethnic origin, religion, gender, sexuality or because they 
have a disability, they are pregnant or on maternity leave, they have undertaken 
gender reassignment, they are married or they are in civil partnerships.  We also 
recognise that some people may experience more than one type of inequality at the 
same time due to a combination of more than one relevant protected characteristic.   

Page 139

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2015-08-17-OD-Strategy-2015-18-v2.pdf


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 78

In addition, we also recognise that those who have caring responsibilities and Armed 
Forces and Ex -Armed Forces personnel may face discrimination, and have made a 
commitment to protect them from discrimination. 

The council’s Equality and Diversity Policy can be found at the link:

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/equality

Page 140

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/equality


Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23

Page | 79

Part 11: Conclusion

The review of the MTFS has been undertaken against a background of significant 
reductions and changes in grant funding and increasing costs due to service pressures. 
These factors could jeopardise the Council’s sustainable financial position unless budget 
savings continue to be delivered alongside the delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 

The forecast budgets position for the Council shows an ongoing challenge, where our 
financial resources are currently not enough to meet the budget requirement to deliver our 
current service provision. The period covered by this financial strategy will continue to 
present our Council with some of the most significant operational and financial challenges 
ever experienced by those leading and managing the delivery of local services.  Managing 
our money well is now more important than it has ever been.

The Council will continue to keep the MTFS under review given the high degree of 
uncertainty surrounding the potential impact on Central Government policy and 
Government funding decision in relation to Local Government. 

Page 141



1

Report to Corporate Overview & Scrutiny

Date of Meeting 17th October 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate and Resources
Report Author Victoria Bradshaw
Public/Private Document Public

Revenue Budget Update 2018/19 to 2020/21 and Saving Programme 2018/19 to 
2019/20

Executive Summary

1. This report provides Members with: 

 An update on the latest position regarding the Council’s Revenue 
Budget for 2018/19 to 2020/21. 

 Update regarding Savings Proposals in order to meet the budget gap 
for 2018/19 and 2019/20.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

Consider the Revenue Budget position for 2018/19 to 2020/21 and the 
potential risks around the Revenue Budget.

Consider the saving proposals contained in this report, for consultation, notes 
the consultation timetable and process detailed in the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced Revenue Budget 
and Capital Programme 2018/19 to Budget Council and provisional budgets 
for 2019/20 to 2020/21. The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 
2018/19 by the by 11th March 2018.

Page 142

Agenda Item 11



2

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

Timetable

The Budget process begins in June with approval, by Cabinet, of the 
assumptions and principles on which the budget is to be based. These are 
used as a part of the determination of the overall budget position and are 
currently being incorporated into Service budgets.

Throughout the year we consult on the budget and savings proposals.  
Financial projections are updated as further information becomes available 
from Central Government and other changes, including local decisions. The 
updated budget and feedback from consultations are reported back to Cabinet 
in February with recommendations for Budget Council, who will in turn set the 
budget. The timetable for the Revenue Budget and Savings Programme is 
provided at Appendix 1.

Revenue Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21

This report provides an update on the Council’s revenue budget position for 
2018/19 to 2020/21.  

This report is based on current information following the Spring Budget 2017 
and Queen’s Speech. Updated information from Central Government will 
become available following the Autumn Budget 2017 and Provisional 2018/19 
Local Government Finance Settlement which will be published November/ 
December 2017. This will have potential implications for Council funding, 
noting these may be reductions or increases.  

The latest economic surveys indicate that:
 inflation continues to rise, currently forecast at 2.6% and likely to rise to 

3% by the end of the year.  On this basis the Bank of England has 
updated its forecast for inflation from 2% in 2017 to 3% by the end of 
the year. 

 pay rises, however, continue to lag behind inflation at less than 2%. 
 the economy is growing below the forecast set by Central Government 

in the Spring Budget 2017. Growth is currently 1.6%, 0.4% below the 
Spring Budget forecast of 2%.

 Growth forecasts for 2018 also indicate a decline from the Spring 
Budget down 0.2% from 1.6% to 1.4%.

At a local level these economic indicators highlight a continuation in the gap 
between the cost of living and pay rises as inflation and energy costs continue 
to grow faster than wages. This is likely to continue the trend of rising 
household debt levels and additional pressures on local welfare services.

A downturn in economic growth may impact on central government revenues 
which could have implications for Local Government funding settlements 
particularly if the demands for increased funding for Health services remain a 
priority for the Government.

Page 143



3

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.2.9

Based on current assumptions and the Spring Budget 2017, the Budget 
forecast for 2018/19 – 2019/20 has been updated from the position reported to 
Council in March 2017. In March 2017 the Council set a three year budget for 
2017/18 to 2019/20. This budget identified a budget gap of £9.9m in 2018/19 
and £5.5m in 2019/20.

Based on the current assumptions the estimated budget gap has been revised 
to £15.9m in 2018/19; £8.0m in 2019/20; and £9.6m in 2020/21.

Table 1 summarises the changes in assumptions since Budget Council March 
2017.

Table 1  : Movement in Budget Gap since Budget Council 

Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget Gap at Budget Council 9,850 -400 5,531 0 8,912 0

Increased Resources
Changes in Budget Assumptions -864 -1,237 -17 0 -18 0

Decreased Resources
Government Changes 278 0 300 0 0 0

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Resources -586 -1,237 283 0 -18 0

Increase in Budget Requirements
Local Decisions 5,275 1,000 1,280 0 -248 0
Service Specific Pressures 1,377 0 954 0 945 0

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Budget Requirements 6,652 1,000 2,234 0 697 0

Revised Budget Gap 15,916 -637 8,048 0 9,591 0

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Table 2 shows the split of the Revised Budget Gap between the Locality Plan 
and Non-Locality Plan budgets.

Table 2 Split of Revised Budget Gap

The latest budget for 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21 is continually being 
updated throughout the budget process. 

The major factors influencing the Council’s Budget are covered in Part 2 of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (see section 4.4). The key factors being :

Page 144



4

4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.4 

4.3.5

 The level of resources received by the Council, both locally generated 
and government grants;

 Health and Social Care integration;
 Budget pressures and costs increasing our spend. 

Savings Programme 2018/19 to 2020/21

During April to September Directorates have engaged in producing the saving 
proposals contained in this report for Cabinet Members to consider. A number 
of Budget Challenge Sessions have been held where officers and members 
have scrutinised service functions, finance and performance matters for each 
Directorate to inform the process and support the delivery of a balanced 
budget for 2018/19.

Saving Proposals are classified as follows:
 Saving proposals not requiring service consultation 
 Workforce proposals 

Table 3 details the savings proposals being considered within this report 
towards meeting the budget gap for 2018/19 to 2020/21.

Table 3 Budget Gap after Savings Proposals 2018/19 to 2020/21

Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Updated Gap before Savings Proposals 15,916 -637 8,048 0 9,591 0

Service Savings Proposals not requiring consultation -1,301 -11,111 -401 -14,317 0 -25,260

Service Savings Proposals requiring consultation
Workforce -140 0 0 0 0 0
Total -140 0 0 0 0 0

 Gap after Savings Proposals 14,475 -11,748 7,647 -14,317 9,591 -25,260
Ongoing Gap from previous year 0 14,475 22,122
Ongoing Gap after Savings Proposals 14,475 22,122 31,713

In-year Gap after Savings Proposals 2,727 7,805 6,453

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

The proposals not requiring service consultation are proposals which:

 Identify alternative financial resources to continue providing the 
service;

 Realign budgets to match updated information;
 Generate additional income for the Council without impacting on 

users;
 Improve the efficiency of delivering a service;
 One-off proposals from the integration of Health and Social Care.

The reductions with no service delivery or workforce implications do not 
require consultation. These proposals generate on going savings of £1.301m 

Page 145



5

4.3.6 

4.3.6.1

4.3.6.2

4.3.6.3

4.3.6.4

4.3.6.5

4.3.6.6

4.3.6.7

4.3.6.8

in 2018/19 and a further £0.401m in 2019/20. Saving proposals with Workforce 
implications totaling £0.140m in 2018/19 will be subject to consultation with 
staff and Trade Unions from the 18th September 2017.

Integration of Health & Social Care

From 201819 the Local Authority will be moving into a formal pooled budget 
arrangement for health and social care. Greater Manchester is moving towards 
taking full control and responsibility of the £6bn Health & Social Care Budget and the 
creation of its own sustainable Health & Social Care system by 2021. To deliver the 
devolved health and social care initiative, a Greater Manchester Strategic Plan has 
been developed and each local area sets out a Locality plan to support this Strategic 
Plan focussing on the integration of health, social care and public health/prevention. 

The integration of services is key to improving the quality of care and outcomes for 
people     within the funding available. The pooling of resources across the locality 
will provide more opportunities to explore value for money, economies of scale, 
reduce duplication and streamline processes. 

The pooled budget brings together resources from a range of organisations including 
the Clinical Commissioning Group and the Local Authority, Better Care Funds and 
GM level resources to invest in transformation of service delivery, (known as 
Transformation Funding). 

The Pooled Budget is required to be operational by 2018/19. The MTFS and Budget 
report  for Council service areas covered by the pool are reported within existing 
Directorates until the development of the Pool Budget reporting arrangements are 
confirmed. The savings proposals for the Locality Plan have been based on current 
assumptions for risk sharing for those organisations which form part of the Pooled 
Budget. The savings proposals currently identified for Health and Social Care are 
therefore subject to consideration and agreement as to the risk sharing basis being 
considered by Cabinet on the 24th October.

However, the 2018/19 – 2020/21 savings proposals include a number of savings 
proposals which are to be delivered through the efficiencies of integration. The 
budget gap and savings proposals have therefore been split to identify the budget 
gap and savings proposals attributable to the Locality Plan and those to be met from 
all non-locality services.

The Locality Plan covers Council services such as Adult Social Care, Public Health 
and elements of Children’s Services. Non-locality Services include Economy, 
Neighbourhoods, Resources and Wellbeing.

Table 4 shows the Budget Gap after savings proposals for the Locality Plan 
budgets. This shows that £13.465m of the budget gap is attributable to the 
Locality Plan services and that savings have been identified of £11.269m to 
bridge this budget gap, leaving an in-year budget gap of £2.196m attributable 
to Health and Social Care.

Table 4 Budget Gap after Savings Proposals – Locality Plan

Page 146



6

4.3.6.9

4.3.7

4.3.8

The Transformation Fund benefits and savings required to be delivered by the Pool 
Budget in relation to Health and Social Care Integration generate one-off savings of 
£10.933m in 2018/19, £14.182m in 2019/20 and £25.260m in 2020/21. There is a 
risk that delivery of the planned benefits may not arise within the timescale forecasts 
which could provide a risk to the Council’s budget. 

Financial reporting and monitoring of the delivery of the Transformation Fund 
benefits, Locality Plan and Pooled Budget savings proposals will be submitted to the 
Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB). The ICB brings together the joint 
commissioning activities of the Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group. The 
aim is to oversee the delivery of health and social care services and control the 
pooled budgets of the Council and local health bodies, whilst seeking value for 
money and efficiencies from integration and joint working.

Table 5 shows the Budget Gap after savings proposals for the Non-locality Plan 
budgets which covers Neighbourhoods Services, Economy, Wellbeing and 
Resources. This outlines that £1.814m of the forecast budget gap relates to non-
locality services and that savings proposed of £1.283m reduce the budget gap to 
£531k.

Table 5 Budget Gap after Savings Proposals – Non-Locality Plan

Page 147



7

4.3.9

4.4

4.4.1

Table 6 shows the overall Budget Gap after savings proposals.

Table 6 Budget Gap after savings proposals

The Revised Budget for 2018/19 to 2020/21, incorporating the savings 
proposals detailed in this report, is summarised in Appendix 2.

Over the coming months further work will be undertaken to identify and update 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy and Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 making 
recommendations to Cabinet/Council in February 2017. This will be reported to 
Cabinet as part of the update following the Autumn Budget 2017 and 
provisional Local Government Finance Settlement.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. Whilst 
budgets are prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines a number of 
alternative options relating to savings proposals and budget pressures are 
considered as part of the overall budget setting process.

Page 148



8

4.4.2

4.4.3

Consideration has been given to a number of options in putting forward the 
savings proposals contained in this report and the report outlines any 
alternatives. To do nothing was not considered to be an option as the Council 
is legally required to set a balanced budget.

Cabinet Members could decide not to implement these proposals and provide 
alternative options to enable a balanced budget to be achieved.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

The Council is required to set a lawful budget for 2018/19 by the by 11th 
March 2018 and there is a risk if we do not responsibly put forward 
proposals for consideration to meet the budget reductions/pressures.

Risk implications have been added where applicable within individual 
detailed reports.  To manage this risk we have sought to supply Cabinet 
members with copies of all available implications to make informed 
decisions.

There are a number of risks and potential pressures in the  Medium Term 
Financial Strategy and Budget 2018/19 – 2020/21which have an impact on 
the budget but are outside of the control of the Council. The MTFS and 
Budget include pressures based on the latest information available. Key risk 
areas for the Budget and MTFS being :

Health and Social Care Integration

A significant proportion of the savings proposals relate to the benefits to be 
delivered from the efficiencies from contract /commission renegotiations and 
integration of working between health and social care organisations. Delays 
in delivery and slippage in the development of new ways of delivery would 
negatively impact on the Budget position for the Council.

Business Rates Retention

The appeals outstanding from 2010 and the current uncertainty following the 
level of appeals from the revaluation of business rates from 2017 continue 
to cause volatility in the level of resources available for the Council. The 
Council now collects and retains 99% of business rates under the retention 
pilot which therefore increases the volatility and risk of changes in resources 
available. The current assumptions provided in the Budget and MTFS 
assume business rates to remain at current levels with increases for 
inflation. No growth has been assumed in the level of business rates 
baseline until the impact of the revaluation 2017 are fully understood.

Page 149



9

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.4

6.5

GM Waste Disposal Authority

The MTFS and Budget currently assume minimal savings from the current 
renegotiation for the delivery of a reduction in costs and operational 
improvements for the waste disposal contract. This budget pressure will be 
reviewed as more details as to the financial position become available 
during Autumn 2017.

Local Government Needs Formula review

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) is based on a set of formulas to identify the 
needs of each local authority which are complex and out of date. RSG is 
proposed to be phased out by the end of the four year settlement - 2019/20. 
Central Government are therefore seeking to bring proposals forward for a 
fairer and simpler method of determining “relative needs” for local 
government finance settlements. The principles will:

 Seek to measure need in a less complex way
 Focus on current key cost pressures for local authorities
 Reflect future need
 Have a transparent approach as to how the ability to generate 

resources locally is taken into account

One of the major changes including in the review is the proposal to 
recognise the other income generated by local authorities such as fees and 
charges and commercial income, thereby reducing the need assessment. 
The MTFS and Budget currently assumes that the changes to the 
calculation of relative need will have no detriment to the Local Authority. 
This will continually be reviewed as the Technical consultation papers are 
released to update the potential financial risks and assumptions for the 
MTFS and Budget.

Where relevant, specific legal issues have been identified in the individual 
savings proposal reports. Legal advice has also been provided in relation to 
the Equality Act duties, and recent case law decisions on both consultation 
requirements and equality impact assessments.

Advice has been provided on the following:
 The need to ensure that service reductions do not constitute a 

failure on the part of the Council to fulfill statutory duties.
 The need to be aware of contractual arrangements with third 

parties which can only be varied by agreement or which (if that 
does not prove possible) can only be terminated by substantial 
notice periods and consider the financial implications of any 
variations.

 The need to be aware of restrictions which affect property 
assets. Some have restrictions on usage, some have 
conditions attached to gifts and planning restrictions might 
apply. On this last aspect, there needs to be separation of the 
Council’s statutory role from that of property owner.

 Some proposals may ultimately involve the transfer of staff 

Page 150



10

6.6

with the resultant need to undertake statutory consultations.
 Some proposals will involve potential redundancy. This will 

involve statutory consultations.
 Advice on contractual, procurement law matters (including staff 

related matters).

The personnel implications arising for the proposals contained within this 
report summarised below;

 Some of these proposals will/may result in a reduction in the number of 
established posts within the Council and depending on the outcome of 
consultation and final decisions made, these will be deleted as a 
consequence of these proposals. 

 The Council will apply its established policies and procedures to identify 
which posts are identified as potentially redundant and which 
employees will be at risk of redundancy. This will include the application 
of the Council’s redundancy selection criteria where this would need to 
be applied.

 Where posts proposed to be deleted are occupied the employee(s) 
concerned will become at risk of redundancy.

 All employees affected will be provided with support through the 
Council’s established procedures for dealing with staff that are at risk of 
redundancy.

 Through the application of these policies and procedures, the Council 
will seek to minimize the number of employees who may be compulsory 
redundant.  In this respect, the Council will seek to provide suitable 
alternative employment wherever this is possible and will seek to 
achieve reductions by voluntary measures wherever possible, by 
seeking volunteers for early retirement/voluntary redundancy in areas 
where staff are affected by the proposals.

 The proposals will be subject to full consultation with staff and trade 
unions in line with statutory requirements.   It is considered that the total 
number of jobs affected during the budget setting process is likely to be 
below 100. However, to ensure sufficient consultation takes place the 
Council is preparing to comply with the statutory minimum consultation 
period of 45 days (which is required where there is to be 100 or more 
redundancies as opposed to the 30 days required when 20 to 99 
redundancies) before making final decisions on its proposals.  In 
addition, the Council will also ensure that the consultation process is 
meaningful and commences when potential redundancies are 
contemplated, that full consideration is given to the outcome and any 
comments received before final decisions are made regarding 
implementation, which are also legal requirements.

Page 151



11

6.6.1

6.6.2

6.6.3

6.6.4

6.6.5

6.6.6

6.6.7

6.6.8

6.6.9

6.6.10

6.6.11

6.7

Redundancy situation

If there is a genuine redundancy situation then RBC will need to follow a fair 
procedure.
It is anticipated that there will be consultation obligations with the trade 
unions before a decision on whether to make redundancies is made.
Once the decision is made to “propose” redundancies (no final decision 
should be made and RBC should remain open to alternative proposals) the 
first issue will be to establish the appropriate redundancy pool.

 If a particular function/team is closing then the pool may be obvious. 
Otherwise the pool should consist of all of the team of employees (or 
whatever the applicable job title is) whose roles are “interchangeable”.  
There should be no distinguishing between full-time and part-time or fixed-
term workers.

 Upon the pool being identified there will be a need to engage in a 
consultation exercise.  Consultation should be meaningful and will usually 
consist of an initial group meeting followed by individual consultation 
meetings.  The redundancies should remain a proposal at this stage and RB 
should remain open to alternative suggestions.

 The option of voluntary redundancy should be made available to employees 
before compulsory redundancies are made.

 The selection criteria should be devised and also subject to the consultation 
process.

 All individuals should then be scored against the criteria and 
recommendations for redundancy made.  Those individuals selected should 
then be invited to a meeting to discuss their scores and potentially challenge 
before a final decision is made.  

 In the event that any employee who is on maternity leave is selected for 
redundancy then they should be given priority for any suitable alternative 
employment.

 Once the potential redundant employees are selected RBC should consider 
whether suitable alternative employment is available or not.  If would be 
advisable to send vacancy lists from the beginning of the consultation 
period.  Posts at the same or a more junior level should be considered and 
no presumptions made as to whether an employee would consider it 
suitable or not.  SAE should be considered up until the date that notice to 
terminate expires.

 The outcome of consultations will be reported to Members of the relevant 
Committees to allow for full consideration of feedback and final decisions 
will be made on the proposals taking into account the outcome of 
consultation.

Equalities Impacts

Workforce Equality Impact Assessment

Page 152



12

A workforce impact assessment will be undertaken to understand how the 
overall proposals   affect the make-up of the workforce.

The Council undertook a workforce EIA for the savings process in previous 
years. The same analysis will be undertaken for the cohort of staff affected 
by the savings proposals in 2018/19 and 2019/20.  A full equalities impact 
assessment will be undertaken following the implementation of the savings 
proposals, at which point we may need to revisit our equalities action plan or 
other policies.

The full workforce implications for each workforce proposal are provided in 
the private report provided separately on this Agenda.

Consultation

7.1 Consultation is to be undertaken with the, stakeholder groups, staff and 
service users as appropriate. Consultation will commence consultation on 
18th 
September 2017 and follow the process outlined in Table 7.

Table 7 Consultation Timetable

Start - 18th September 2017

End - 1st November 2017 WF

Consultation Timetable 

WF – Workforce; savings proposals which affect staff employed by the 
Council

The report will be presented for consultation to :

 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 17th October 2017 
 Trade Unions at the Joint Consultative Negotiation Group (JCNG) on 

the 15th September 2016 and throughout the process.
 Heywood Township Committee 25th September 2017; Pennines 

Township Committee 27th September 2017; Middleton Township 
Committee 28th September 2017; Rochdale Township Committee 4th 
October 2017.

Page 153



13

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Background papers are held by 
the Chief Finance Officer 

Floor 2, Number One Riverside, 
Rochdale

For Further Information Contact: Victoria Bradshaw, Tel: 01706 925409, 
Victoria.Bradshaw@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 154



14

Appendix 1
Revenue Budget and Savings Programme Timetable

Date Meeting Report

2017
September Budget Cabinet 14th September

1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19
2. Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2020/21   }
3. Revenue Budget 2018/19 - 2020/21         } For Consultation
4. Savings Programme 2018/19 - 2019/20   }                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
5. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 - 2022/23

November  Cabinet 28th November 1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19 - Post Consultation
2. Savings programme 2018/19 - 2019/20 - Post Consultation

December Council 13th December Approval of:
Council Tax base setting 2018/19
Business Rates baseline 2018/19

2018
January Budget Cabinet ( January) 1. Budget update 2018/19 - 2020/21 following Autumn 

Budget/Provisional Settlement

February Budget Cabinet (20th February)

February Budget Council (28th February)
March

1. Local Government Act 2013 - 
2. Budget 2018/19 including:
- Council Tax setting 2018/19
- Revenue Budget 2018/19 and forecast 2019/20 and 2020/21
- Capital Budget 2018/19 and forecast 2019/20 and 2020/21
-Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19
- Pay Policy 2018/19
- Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 - 2022/23 (Review)

Statutory Deadline to set Budget 11th March

Page 155



15

GENERAL FUND REVENUE ESTIMATES 2018/19 – 2020/21 Appendix 2

Page 156



Report to Corporate Overview & Scrutiny

Date of Meeting 17th October 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate and Resources 
Report Author Victoria Bradshaw
Public/Private Document Public

Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19

Executive Summary

1. This report provides Members with: 

 The proposed fee and charge levels, by service, for 2018/19

 Highlights proposed fees and charges above the 2% general uplift

 Highlights proposed fees and charges not in line with the 2% general 
uplift 

Recommendation

2. Members are asked to review the report as part of the consultation process 
and provide feedback to Cabinet as to the proposals. 

Reason for Recommendation

3. The fees and charges in this report have been proposed by each Directorate, 
taking into account the 2% general uplift in Discretionary Fees and Charges 
agreed at Cabinet on the 27th of June. Any uplifts that are not in line with the 
2% proposal, with the exception of rounding’s, are highlighted in section 5.4.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 The Authority carries out an annual review of discretionary fees and charges 
as part of the budget setting process. It is a requirement of this process that 
Elected Members agree a general level of increase for all income streams 
taking into account the prevailing rate of inflation. For the 2018/19 financial 
year, Elected Members are being asked to agree an increase of 2.0%, 
wherever possible to ensure that the Authority sets a balanced budget for the 

Page 157

Agenda Item 12



4.2

4.2

forthcoming year (2018/19).

The proposed fee levels for the 2018/19 financial year are included in 
Appendix 2.  Due to rounding of the individual charges, in some cases 
increases are greater than 2%.  Where fees have not been increased by the 
percentage agreed by Elected Members, explanations are provided in section 
5.4.

Alternatives Considered

The alternative is not to review or increase our fees and charges. This would 
potentially reduce the income available to the Council and make it more 
difficult to achieve a balanced budget. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

A full list of all proposed fees and charges for 2018/19 are included in the 
appendix 2.  Increases above the 2% which relate to roundings are highlighted 
in the report.

The proposed increase for 2018/19 is £126.9k.  By completing their returns, 
Directors have agreed to the increase that will be applied to their respective 
income targets.

5.3 Services have proposed to increase certain charges above 2% for the purpose 
of achieving savings.  The savings propose a further increase of £73.5k.  
These increases are detailed within the Appendix 2.

5.4 Uplifts not in line with the 2% are listed below

Highways – the service has proposed a 0% uplift for 2018/19.  Appendix 1 is 
a paper by the service providing the rationale for the proposal.

Libraries – no uplift for 2018/19 is being proposed as the cost of 
implementation outweighs the additional income generated

Environmental Management – playing pitch letting fees are proposed not to 
be increased, as agreed October 2012 pending completion of the playing pitch 
strategy.

Environmental Management – no increase proposed for MOT 
charges/private repairs as the current charge is already higher than 
competitors in the local area.

Public Protection – Vehicles: Annual Fees, proposed no increase following 
review of other GM authorities’ charges.

Resources – no increase to liability orders as Rochdale Council currently has 
the highest charge in Greater Manchester.

Page 158



Adult Care – Appointee-ship fee increased to better reflect the cost of the 
service provided.
 

Risk and Policy Implications

The Service has reviewed its charges against relevant legislation to ensure 
that all transactions remain compliant with the relevant statutes governing 
Local Authority activities.

6.  

Consultation

7. All services engage with the production of the proposed charges identified 
within this report. The Leadership Team, Cabinet Member for Corporate & 
Resources, and opposition Portfolio holder for Finance have been informed of 
the proposed charges for 2018/19. The report will be presented to the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny on the 17th October 2017.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Background papers to this report 
can be obtained from Stuart 
Smith

Number 1 Riverside
Floor 2

For Further Information Contact: Victoria Bradshaw, Tel: 01706 925409, 
Victoria.Bradshaw@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 159



Appendix 1

0% Uplift of Car Parking related charges for Discretionary Fees.

Proposal

It is proposed not to uplift the Car Parking charges for 2018/19 but continue to review 
periodically in line with the Council’s regeneration strategy and priorities:

 All off street and on-street Car Parking Tariffs
 All car parking permits
 All Resident & Visitor Parking Permits
 Parking Dispensations
 Parking Suspensions

The periodic review will take into account previous years where uplift may not have 
been applied.

Impact

The total budget for Car Parking Income is £624,568 which means that based on a 
2% increase a £12,491 pressure would be created.

Rationale

Car Park tariffs and Parking Permits

All car parking charges are legally enforced through a Traffic Regulation Order; 
consequently a tariff change can only be implemented through a new TRO which 
has to be advertised and consulted upon.  Any objections have then to be reported 
upon at Cabinet thus prolonging the 6 month duration and potentially increasing the 
cost should further changes be necessary.

The approximate cost of implementing a tariff change is:

 Traffic Regulation Order plus staff costs - £12,000 - £16,000 depending on 
complexity and level of objections.

 Changes to Parking machine software to accept the new tariff - £5,500
 Changes to the car park tariff boards - £4,500

This means it costs more to implement the tariff change than a 2% additional income 
would create.  Furthermore, the tariff structure has changed a number of times over 
the past 2-3 years with the introduction of ‘free after three’ and then the first three 
hours free. It is also proposed to make another change to the on street parking in 
December due to the reduction in car parking spaces created by the Town Centre 
development. 

It therefore makes it impractical and financially prohibitive to uplift 2% year on year.

Page 160



Suspensions and Dispensations

These charges are all linked with the car parking tariffs and hence should similarly 
not be uplifted.

Page 161



Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19

Appendix 2 - Resources

Sub-Area Ref Desc Current Charge
2017/18 (£)

Proposed
Charge

2018/19 (£)

Increase
(£) % Increase Notes

Charges that are not in line with the 2% proposed uplift

FINANCE SERVICES R0410 Liability Order - Council Tax £104.00 £104.00 £0.00 0.00% RBC highest charge in GM

FINANCE SERVICES R0411 Liability Order - NNDR £124.00 £126.00 £2.00 1.61% In line with other GM authorities

FINANCE SERVICES R0507 Charges for Blue Badge £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 0.00% Capped by legislation

FINANCE SERVICES R0612 Charities Support Management Charge £42.00 £43.00 £1.00 2.38% Rounded further to next full pound.

LEGAL & HR R0090 Confirmation Letter – Elect Reg – Current Year £18.00 £18.90 £0.90 5.00% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0091 Confirmation Letter – Elect Reg - Historic £39.00 £41.00 £2.00 5.13% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0092 Conf On Official Docs – to prove on Elect Reg £18.00 £18.90 £0.90 5.00% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0093 Public Path Orders:- Within Gen Range + Adv Costs £1,367.00 £1,436.00 £69.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0094 Public Path Orders:- Additional Rates £147.00 £155.00 £8.00 5.44% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0095 Street Closure:- Within A General Range £1,367.00 £1,436.00 £69.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0096 Street Closure:- Additional Rates £147.00 £155.00 £8.00 5.44% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0097 Prosecution (Court) Costs Recovered Determined by
court

LEGAL & HR R0098F - a Local Land Charges Search:- Full Search CON29 £135.00 £142.00 £7.00 5.19% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0098F - b Local Land Charges Search £20.00 £21.00 £1.00 5.00% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0099F Local Land Charges Search:- Part 2 Enquiries £23.00 £24.20 £1.20 5.22% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0100F Local Land Charges Search:- Additional Enquiries £30.00 £31.50 £1.50 5.00% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0101F Local Land Charges Search:- Extra Parcels Of Land £20.00 £21.00 £1.00 5.00% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0103F Local Land Charges Search:- Copy Searches £20.00 £21.00 £1.00 5.00% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0113 Sales Of Land And Property: Under £5,000 £831.00 £873.00 £42.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0114 Sales Of Land And Property:
£5,001 - £10,000 £831.00 £873.00 £42.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0115 Sales Of Land And Property:
£10,001 - £15,000 £831.00 £873.00 £42.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0116 Sales Of Land And Property:
£15,001 - £20,000 £1,232.00 £1,294.00 £62.00 5.03% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0117 Sales Of Land And Property:
£20,001 - £25,000 £1,232.00 £1,294.00 £62.00 5.03% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0118 Sales Of Land And Property:
£25,001 - £30,000 £1,232.00 £1,294.00 £62.00 5.03% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0119 Sales Of Land And Property:
£30,001 - £60,000 £1,527.00 £1,604.00 £77.00 5.04% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0120 Sales Of Land And Property:
£60,001 - £100,000 £1,902.00 £1,998.00 £96.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0121 Sales Of Land And Property:
£100,001 - £250,000 £2,491.00 £2,616.00 £125.00 5.02% 5% increase + roundings

P
age 162



LEGAL & HR R0122 Sales Of Land And Property: Over £250,000 £3,027.00 £3,179.00 £152.00 5.02% 5% increase + roundings

LEGAL & HR R0123 Auctions 4% of
consideration

LEGAL & HR R0124 Redemptions (One Per Charge) £199.00 £209.00 £10.00 5.03% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0125 Redemptions (Two Charges) £387.00 £407.00 £20.00 5.17% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0126 Mortgage Questionnaires £194.00 £204.00 £10.00 5.15% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0127 Deeds Of Postponement £237.00 £249.00 £12.00 5.06% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0128 Title Questionnaires:- Up To 20 Questions £108.00 £114.00 £6.00 5.56% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0129 Title Questionnaires:- Above 20 Questions £108.00 £114.00 £6.00 5.56% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0130 Title Questionnaires:- Per Additional Question (>20) £8.10 £9.50 £1.40 17.28% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0131 RTB Sales - Engrossments £102.00 £108.00 £6.00 5.88% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0132 Registration Fees:- Commercial £194.00 £204.00 £10.00 5.15% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0133 Registration Fees:- Private £102.00 £108.00 £6.00 5.88% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0134 Registration Fees:- Sealing Fee £69.70 £73.50 £3.80 5.45% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0135 Registration Fees:- Copies For Solicitors £69.70 £73.50 £3.80 5.45% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0136 Shop Leases £574.00 £603.00 £29.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0137 Licenses:- Community and Residential Commercial £665.00 £699.00 £34.00 5.11% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0138 Licenses:- License To Assign £949.00 £997.00 £48.00 5.06% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0139 Licenses:- License To Sublet (Multiple Licenses) £949.00 £997.00 £48.00 5.06% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0140 Deeds Of Variation, Rectification etc. £719.00 £755.00 £36.00 5.01% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0141 Surrender £719.00 £755.00 £36.00 5.01% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0142 Deeds Of Easement:- Residential £719.00 £755.00 £36.00 5.01% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0143 Deeds Of Easement:- Commercial £1,367.00 £1,436.00 £69.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0144 Agreements To Adopt Highways £1,367.00 £1,436.00 £69.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0145 Section 106 Agreements (Planning Agreements) £1,367.00 £1,436.00 £69.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0146 Section 278 Agreements (Highway Works) £1,367.00 £1,436.00 £69.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0147 Building Agreements £1,367.00 £1,436.00 £69.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0148 Leases/Premiums – Residential £691.00 £726.00 £35.00 5.07% 5% increase + roundings
LEGAL & HR R0149 Industrial Leases - £1,367.00 £1,436.00 £69.00 5.05% 5% increase + roundings

COMMERCIAL R0110 Copies Of Documents £0.85 £1.10 £0.25 29.41% 5% increase + roundings
COMMERCIAL R0111 Charities Admin – Committee Services Meeting £31.10 £33.60 £2.50 8.04% 5% increase + roundings
COMMERCIAL R1882 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) £15.00 £15.80 £0.80 5.33% 5% increase + roundings

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19

Appendix 2 - Resources

Sub-Area Ref Desc Current Charge
2017/18 (£)

Proposed
Charge

2018/19 (£)

Increase
(£) % Increase Notes

P
age 163



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 17th October 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate & Resources          
Report Author Victoria Bradshaw          
Public/Private Document Public

Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2020/21

Executive Summary

1.1 This report provides members with :

 an update on the latest position regarding the Council’s Capital 
Programme for 2018/19 and provisional programme for 2019/20 to 
2020/21.

 the funding resources required for this Capital Programme.

 consider the Capital Programme as part of the  consultation process 
and provide feedback to Cabinet.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

Consider the proposed 2018/19 Capital Programme and provisional 
programmes for 2019/20 and 2020/21, and, confirm or otherwise, to progress 
with the Capital Schemes for consultation.

That some of the assumed external funding included in the programme is still 
subject to confirmation from Central Government and in some cases may 
involve bids for funds. It is therefore recommended that all approvals are 
subject to confirmation of funding allocations.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 The provisional 2018/19 to 2020/21 Capital Programme is presented to 
Cabinet for consultation as part of the budget setting process. 

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 The Capital Programme for 2018/19 to 2020/21 takes into consideration the 
priorities

of the Council and the resources available. The approach for setting the 

Page 164

Agenda Item 13



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

2018/19
capital budget has followed the steps below: 

• Initial budget as provisionally approved at Budget Council on 1st 
March 2017.

• Review of 2017/18 and 2018/19 schemes – Finance Service has 
worked with services to review 2017/18 and 2018/19 schemes 
taking into account spend to date and previous re-phasing of 
budget on the schemes.

• Consideration of new schemes

The result of the above steps is the proposed Capital Programme for 2018/19, 
and provisional Capital Programmes for 2019/20 and 2020/21 for consultation, 
detailed in Appendices 1 and 2.

When a scheme is approved and the proposed spend is profiled across 
financial years, the scheme funding will be approved across these financial 
years and will therefore be considered as a priority in future years. Any 
reduction in the funding of these schemes will only be considered where 
contracts have not been entered into.

The Capital budget is funded from a number of sources: borrowing, capital 
receipts,

and external funding & contributions. Borrowing has an implication for the 
Council’s

Revenue budget as the Council has to make provision to repay the cost of 
borrowing.

Schemes totalling £52.4m have been proposed to be included in the 2018/19 
Capital Programme. Table A shows the total proposed Capital expenditure by 
service for 2018/19 to 2020/21, and how the expenditure is to be funded. 

The Capital budget has been created in line with the Council’s priorities:
 Place Plan – aligning capital investment to support the borough’s 

economic growth potential and continue to regenerate our town 
centres.

 Corporate Plan – ensuring the borough maintains its high 
standard of quality building and public space.

 Asset Strategy – aiming to hold fewer but more efficient assets, 
realising maximum value from the estate whilst safeguarding its 
staff, customers and other building users.

Page 165



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Table A – Summary of Capital programme

 
2018/19  2019/20  2020/21Services

£'000 £'000 £'000
Adult Care 2,243 2,243 2,243
Children's Services 7,739 12,569 7,738
Economy 28,770 30,354 2,150
Neighbourhoods 13,281 9,530 8,289
Public Health 360 0 676
Total requirement 52,393 54,696 21,096
Funding    
Borrowing 14,788 14,617 8,472
External Grant and 
contributions 12,550 16,779 11,948

Invest to Save 21,755 20,000 676
Capital Receipts 3,300 3,300 0
Total funding 52,393 54,696 21,096

The Capital schemes listed in Appendix 1 are categorised as follows:

 Annual Allocation - These schemes receive annual allocations either as 
a result of external funding, or because the capital investment is 
essential for the Council to maintain current service delivery or to meet 
statutory responsibilities.

 Scheme started in previous years - These schemes are multi-year 
schemes that commenced prior to 2018/19.

 New Scheme - These are new schemes or schemes requiring 
additional funding for the 2018/19 capital programme.

The Council is able to borrow resources for capital schemes. The revenue 
implications of this option are that for every £1m of capital expenditure there is 
approximately £61k per annum of revenue cost to repay borrowing, over a 40 
year period. If borrowing is required over a shorter period, the annual cost is 
greater but the overall cost is less. 

Borrowing of £14.8m is required to fund expenditure relating to specific 
schemes in 2018/19. The revenue cost of this is approximately £1.556m per 
annum.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting 
process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. Budgets are 
prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines.

Page 166



Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

5.3

As the cost of the proposed Capital programme is greater than the capital 
receipts

and external funding available, borrowing is required to fund the difference. 
This has
an impact on the Council’s Revenue budget.

Borrowing requires repayment of both the principle sum borrowed and 
associated interest over a given number of years. The budgeted cost of 
borrowing for 2018/19 is £1.556m.

Since Budget Council in March 2017, there have been a number of schemes 
added
to the provisional 2018/19 Capital Programme which are to be funded by 
borrowing.
The annual budgeted cost of borrowing for these additional schemes is 
£0.756m; the revenue cost has been included within the revenue budget 
projections for 2018/19 and future years, and is therefore incorporated into the 
budget gap presented to Cabinet on 14th September 2017.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 Externally funded schemes cannot start until confirmation of the required 
funding has been received. This is a particular risk where the scheme is 
reliant on external funding with the provisional budget being based on 
forecast income. Should the level of income not be received, the level 
expenditure would need to be reviewed to allow the scheme to progress with 
a reduced budget.

6.2 Under the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 
Regulations 2000 the responsibility for approving any plan or strategy for the 
control of local authority borrowing, investment or Capital Strategy or for 
determining the minimum revenue provision is a decision of the full Council. 
The function of the Executive is to prepare and propose the relevant strategy 
to the Council. The Council may require the Cabinet to reconsider, amend, 
withdraw or revoke the strategy.

6.3 The main foreseeable risk at this stage is whether the planned level of 
capital receipts can be achieved to finance the current Capital Programme. 
Given the current economic climate, the sale of property has become more 
difficult and the level of receipts that can be generated has reduced, often 
below originally expected levels. In order to minimise the risk, a prudent 
estimate of capital receipts should be made, having regard to the prevailing 
economic climate which may have an impact on both the timing and level of 
receipts that can be achieved. The overall level of capital receipts should 
therefore be kept under review and any significant changes reflected in 
Capital Programme forecasts.

6.4 Actual and potential revisions to Government policy also present new 

Page 167



risks. The Council must ensure that these are successfully managed, over 
and above those that are a consequence of any traditional Capital 
Programme. In particular these cover risks around expenditure that has 
already been committed in future years where there is no certainty of 
continued funding, potential unfunded ongoing legal liabilities, potential 
overspending requiring unbudgeted resource allocation and the general risks 
and uncertainty over the nature and level of the 2017/18 and future years’ 
capital funding.

Consultation

7.1 Stakeholders are consulted at appropriate stages throughout the budget 
process. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Township 
Committees, and Joint Consultative Committee will be consulted on the 
Capital programme.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 files Finance Services, Number 1 Riverside

For further information contact: Victoria Bradshaw          , Tel: 01706 
925409, 
Victoria.Bradshaw@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 168



Appendix 1 – Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2020/21

Directorate Scheme Name Category 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant Annual Allocation 2,243 2,243 2,243 - - - - - - 2,243 2,243 2,243 - - -
Children's Services Devolved Formula Capital Annual Allocation 492 492 492 - - - - - - 492 492 492 - - -
Children's Services New Place Planning Annual Allocation 5,200 10,030 5,200 - - - - - - 5,200 10,030 5,200 - - -
Children's Services Schools Capital Condition Programme Annual Allocation 1,880 1,880 1,880 - - - - - - 1,880 1,880 1,880 - - -
Children's Services Special Provision Fund Approved Allocation 167 167 166 - - - - - - 167 167 166
Economy Heywood South/Junction19 Approved Allocation 1,500 1,500 - - - - 1,500 1,500 - - - - - - -
Economy Asset Development Fund Provisionally Approved 1,000 1,000 - - - - 1,000 1,000 - - - - - - -
Economy Town Hall Square/River Reopen Phase II Provisionally Approved 1,530 1,580 - 1,530 1,580 - - - - - - - - - -
Economy Rochdale Town Hall Restoration Provisionally Approved - 3,024 - - 3,024 - - - - - - - - - -
Economy Drake Street - Phase II Provisionally Approved 890 - - 890 - - - - - - - - - - -
Economy Commercial Investment Fund - b/fwd to 2017/18 Provisionally Approved - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Economy Rochdale & Littleborough Flood Relief Scheme Provisionally Approved 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,600 - - - - - - - - -
Economy Town Centre East  Whole Life Costs Provisionally Approved - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme Annual Allocation 100 100 100 100 100 100 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme Annual Allocation 310 260 260 310 260 260 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff) Annual Allocation 500 500 500 500 500 500 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme Annual Allocation 400 400 400 400 400 400 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Highways Flooding Infrastructure Provisionally Approved 800 800 - - 800 800 - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund Annual Allocation 800 800 800 800 800 800 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street Machinery Annual Allocation 120 120 120 120 120 120 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way Annual Allocation 80 80 80 80 80 80 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment Annual Allocation 75 75 75 75 75 75 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme Annual Allocation 1,602 1,150 877 707 1,150 877 - - - - - - 895 - -
Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme Annual Allocation 356 358 360 356 358 360 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group Annual Allocation 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan Annual Allocation 1,967 1,967 1,967 - - - - - - 1,967 1,967 1,967 - - -
Neighbourhoods Clearance & Empty Properties Provisionally Approved 500 - - - - - - - - - - - 500 - -
Public Health Link4Life equipment Approved Allocation 360 - 676 - - - - - - - - - 360 - 676
Economy Drake Street - Phase III Addition to Existing Scheme - 500 - - 500 - - - - - - - - - -
Economy Rochdale Town Centre (3 year strategy) Addition to Existing Scheme 300 300 300 300 300 300 - - - - - - - - -
Economy Rochdale Riverside Fees & Costs Addition to Existing Scheme 200 200 - 200 200 - - - - - - - - - -
Economy Rochdale Town Hall Restoration Addition to Existing Scheme - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Economy Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study New Scheme 1,500 300 - 1,500 300 - - - - - - - - - -
Economy East Lancashire Railway Addition to Existing Scheme 50 150 50 50 150 50 - - - - - - - - -
Economy Rail Strategy & P&R New Scheme 200 200 200 200 200 200 - - - - - - - - -
Economy Commercial Investments Addition to Existing Scheme 20,000 20,000 - - - - - - - - - - 20,000 20,000 -
Neighbourhoods Car Parking Machines New Scheme 120 120 - 120 120 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Kiln Lane / Wildhouse Lane New Scheme 601 - - - - - - - - 601 - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Order Programme New Scheme 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods Travellers' Authorised Stopping Site New Scheme 150 - - 150 - - - - - - - - - - -
Neighbourhoods IT Data Centres New Scheme - provisional  amount 1,550 50 - 1,550 50 - - - - - - - - - -

Neighbourhoods
Members' Priority Investment Fund - Street 
Cleaning Equipment One off allocation 500 - - 500 - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL 52,393 54,696 21,096 14,788 14,617 8,472 3,300 3,300 - 12,550 16,779 11,948 21,755 20,000 676

Total Requirement
£000

Prudential Borrowing
£000

Capital Receipts
£000

Government Grants and 
External Contributions 

£000

Invest to Save
£000

P
age 169



Appendix 2 – Detail By Scheme

No SERVICE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
Budget
2018/19

£'000

Budget
2019/20

£'000

Budget 
2020/21

£'000

1 Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grants
The legislative framework governing DFGs is provided by the 'Housing Grants, Construction and 
Regeneration Act 1996'. Since 1990, local authorities have been under a statutory duty to provide grant 
aid to disabled people for a range of adaptations in their homes.

2,243 2,243 2,243

Total Adult Care 2,243 2,243 2,243

No SERVICE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
Budget
2018/19

£'000

Budget
2019/20

£'000

Budget 
2020/21

£'000

1 Children's Services Devolved Formula Capital Schools will develop and commission individual schemes to improve condition and suitability within 
their buildings with guidance and approval from the Council.

          
492 

          
492 

         
492 

2 Children's Services New Place Planning Provision of additional school places to meet statutory duty through a programme of works combining 
internal remodelling, new build or demountable classroom units.

       
5,200 

     
10,030 

      
5,200 

3 Children's Services Schools Capital Condition Programme Development of a programme of works to resolve major condition and improvement issues in school 
buildings in line with the Local Authority's Asset Management Strategy and Local Policy Statement.

       
1,880 

       
1,880 

      
1,880 

4 Children's Services Special Provision Fund

The special provision fund is to support local authorities to make capital investments in provision for 
pupils with special educational needs and disabilities. To be invested in new places and 
improvements to facilities for pupils with education, health and care (EHC) plans in mainstream and 
special schools, nurseries, colleges and other provision.

          
167 

          
167 

         
166 

Total Children's Services          
7,739 

     
12,569 

      
7,738 

P
age 170



No SERVICE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
Budget
2018/19

£'000

Budget
2019/20

£'000

Budget 
2020/21

£'000

1 Economy Heywood South/Junction19

South Heywood Area Wide Improvement Programme proposals for a new link road and network 
improvement from the M62 junction 19 through Heywood to Pilsworth, which will create the 
opportunity for delivering investment in housing and employment growth. £3m budget is match 
funding re a bid to the National Productivity Investment Fund.

       
1,500 

       
1,500            -   

2 Economy Asset Development Fund To create jobs and build the local economy by buying properties/developing properties. Also £1m 
allocated in 2016/17. 

       
1,000 

       
1,000            -   

3 Economy Town Hall Square/River Reopen Phase II The completion of the high quality public realm around the Town Hall to enhance the setting with a 
possible focus on Rochdale's cooperative heritage.

       
1,530 

       
1,580            -   

4 Economy Rochdale Town Hall Restoration Creating a successful, well-loved public realm, befitting of the Town Hall and wider conservation area 
helping to attract a greater number of visitors and residents to the town centre.             -          

3,024            -   

5 Economy Drake Street - Phase II
This project aims to work with businesses and property owners to restructure the mix of uses, 
improve infrastructure and connectivity, increase footfall and promote independent retail and 
increased town centre living in the area.

          
890             -              -   

6 Economy Rochdale & Littleborough Flood Relief Scheme

The River Roch catchment is the main river network in Rochdale Borough and is vulnerable to 
extensive flood risks affecting communities, businesses, town centres and infrastructure including 
power, rail and roads. The Environment Agency have identified the River Roch catchment as one of 
their regional priorities for their capital investment programme and propose a series of flood storage 
areas and improved defences to reduce the risk of serious flooding for over 1000 homes and 
businesses.

       
1,600 

       
1,600 

      
1,600 

7 Economy Town Centre East  Whole Life Costs Construction of the Rochdale Riverside scheme is due to start in 2017 and be complete in 2019.              -               -              -   

Total Economy          
6,520 

       
8,704 

      
1,600 

No SERVICE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
Budget
2018/19

£'000

Budget
2019/20

£'000

Budget 
2020/21

£'000

1 Public Health & 
Well-being Link4Life Equipment

On-going update and replacement of leisure centre equipment across the borough. Funding to cover 
the prudential borrowing is paid from Link4Life to RBC via the contract fee.  This saving is built into 
contract / efficiencies with Link4Life.

          
360             -            

676 

Total Public Health & 
Well-being             

360             -            
676 

P
age 171



No SERVICE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
Budget
2018/19

£'000

Budget
2019/20

£'000

Budget 
2020/21

£'000

1 Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme
Implement alleygating schemes and gating orders on alleys to reduce the number of burglaries and 
improve neighbourhood safety. 100 100 100

2 Neighbourhoods ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme

To refresh, on a rolling programme the ICT estate. To remove the need for individual Services & 
directorates to hold funds related to ICT equipment. Preventing purchasing of non-strategic & inappropriate 
ICT.  To control and make the spend on ICT equipment the most efficient and cost effective by maintaining 
a relatively small annual amount as opposed to a very large investments every 7/8 years

310 260 260

3 Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff)
To deliver the Council's ICT projects utilising existing ICT staff, to reduce the Capital required each year. 
The programmes deliver a variety of objectives for each business area and are assessed against business 
cases to check that they are in line with corporate objectives

500 500 500

4 Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme
An annual allocation of Capital Funds allocated on a pro rata basis and agreed by each of the 4 Township 
Committees 400 400 400

5 Neighbourhoods Highways Flooding Infrastructure Replacement of 185 gullies per year at various high risk locations within the Borough; infrastructure works 
to deal with flooding on carriageways (10 sites); infrastructure works to deal with high risk flooding

800 800 -

6 Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund

Scheme proposes to improve private sector dwellings & environments. Interventions include
-emergency repairs to owner-occupied properties
-works in default to private rented properties
-corrective works to houses in multiple occupation
-tenancy/rent bonds for residents desperate to access decent accommodation unable to access social 
housing

800 800 800

7 Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street Machinery
The programme is a rolling replacement scheme for replacement of the Council's 550 plus pieces of 
machinery. The programme aims to replace assets when they have exceeded the most cost-effective 
period of operation. 

120 120 120

8 Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way The programme is a rolling scheme for carrying out the statutory function of maintaining the Council's 
Rights of Way network. 

80 80 80

9 Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment To maintain within legislative requirements and guidelines the current level of Fixed Play provision across 
the borough.

75 75 75

10 Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme

To replace existing vehicles at the end of their optimum asset life.  Remove vehicles from the programme 
due to changes in requirements and add new requirements into acquisition and replacement schedule.
To also fund BAU efficiency report which relates to the capitalisation of external hire budgets to fund 
additional fleet vehicles.  

1,602 1,150 877

11 Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme

Scheme is to replace wheelie bins which are no longer fit for purpose, and increased demand for new bins 
as they were first introduced in 1991 and have an estimated  life of 10 years.  The scheme may also 
increase recycling rates which in turn would reduces the cost of waste disposal.
ADDITIONAL BUDGET REQUESTED

356 358 360

12 Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group 
To adequately maintain the property portfolio and ensure that the Council comply to any statutory 
regulations. The scheme also aims to reduce the maintenance backlog and improve the reduced property 
holding to accommodation standards.

1,750 1,750 1,750

13 Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan
To continue the aspirations of the Rochdale Highways Capital Programme and be more effective in 
identifying and responding to the Local Transport Plan shared priorities of Safety, Air Quality, Congestion 
and Accessibility. Includes £75k in 2017/18 for road maintenance and signage improvements

1,967 1,967 1,967

14 Neighbourhoods Clearance & Empty Properties
Invest to save proposal to bring empty private sector properties back into use. Investing capital funding in 
staffing to work with and enforce against private sector owners, offering incentives, undertaking works in 
default and acquiring rundown properties to be leased to and refurbished by housing associations. 

500 - -

Total Neighbourhoods 9,360 8,360 7,289

P
age 172



New Schemes / Additions to Existing

No SERVICE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
Budget
2018/19

£'000

Budget
2019/20

£'000

Budget 
2020/21

£'000
1 Economy Drake Street - Phase III Extension of existing scheme. - 500 -

2 Economy Rochdale Town Centre (3 year strategy)

funding will support the delivery of interventions identified in the strategy including physical projects 
(property improvements & public realm works), economic initiatives to complement the current business 
rates reduction scheme, the development of strategies and interventions for upper Yorkshire Street and 
Water Street, and promoting development opportunities.

300 300 300

3 Economy Rochdale Riverside Fees & Costs
Potential requirement to cover lack of partner funding for full restoration of Rochdale Town Hall - 2020/21 
£15m. 200 200 -

4 Economy Rochdale Town Hall Restoration

Potential requirement to cover lack of partner funding for full restoration of Rochdale Town Hall - 2020/21 
£15m. Discussions are ongoing with major funders re available funding streams, however this will allow 
the project to go ahead as agreed.
The adaptation and restoration of the building will allow for new and improved revenue streams to support 
the running of the Town Hall with the objective of reducing the level of annual subsidy required.

- - -

5 Economy Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study £300k budget required for feasibility work to develop he NG proposals further. 1,500 300 -

6 Economy East Lancashire Railway

Project is to support ELR extension into Castleton to connect direct rail access to mainline giving 
accessibility to visitors from across northern England together with investment at Heywood station.  The 
ELR mainline project will be a landmark heritage attraction for the Borough with significant physical and 
economic benefits for regeneration of Castleton District centre.

50 150 50

7 Economy Rail Strategy & P&R

The proposal is for funding to undertake feasibility work or direct development to provide additional park 
and ride facilities at mainline railway station and Metrolink stations.  Schemes would include Rochdale 
railway station, Castleton and Smithy Bridge stations where land is available  Option for Metrolink park 
and ride at New Hey. 

200 200 200

8 Economy Commercial Investments

The priority of this scheme is to generate income through commercial investments including direct 
development projects, commercial property investments and potentially solar investments. Direct 
development schemes are already under consideration in Middleton and Heywood and the Chamber 
House Farm solar farm will be reviewed during 2017/18. The scheme would also allow a potential 
expansion of the existing CIF scheme. The fund will allow flexibility to consider investments which exceed 
a 5% return with an average yield of 6.5% targeted which will deliver net savings of 1.5% to the Council. 
The scheme will also secure business rates income and also creates new job opportunities for local 
residents. The schemes will clearly and visually demonstrate the investment being made into the borough 
by RBC; improving public perception and the built environment.

20,000 20,000 -

9 Neighbourhoods Car Parking Machines Replacement programme for parking machines - upgrade to accept card & pay by phone 120 120 -

10 Neighbourhoods Kiln Lane / Wildhouse Lane

The alteration and improvement to the junction of Kiln Lane with Wildhouse Lane, Milnrow to improve 
traffic flows and reduce delays to traffic. The project involves the demolition of existing residential 
properties and the re-configuration of traffic flows to give priority to vehicles travelling between 
Littleborough and Milnrow along Wildhouse Lane and Kiln Lane. The project also provides enhanced 
pedestrian facilities

601 - -

11 Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Order Programme

Acquisition of private land and buildings where current owner fails to bring asset into use either blighting 
the area or preventing further economic/physical development. CPO powers will be used but an offer must 
first be made to purchase the asset through negotiation. Budget is required to fund the purchase price or 
compensation, staffing costs, legal and valuation fees (external and internal). Subsequent disposal of 
some assets will offset some of the costs.  1,000 1,000 1,000

12 Neighbourhoods Travellers' Authorised Stopping Site

The provision of a site which can be used to grant travellers permission to stop for a short, temporary 
period, allowing the council to recognise travellers' human rights and prevent unauthorised encampments 
in sensitive, contentious locations. The site is key in getting the Police to use their powers of redirection 
and in obtaining legal injunctions to protect sites within the borough. The costs are for either for 
purchasing or leasing a site and establishing facilities on the site. 150 - -

13 Neighbourhoods IT Data Centres 

The Data Centres in No 1 Riverside and Zen were commissioned in 2012/13 and therefore equipment is 
starting to go end of life (warrantly expires) in 2018/19. It is deemed necessary for the Council to have in 
place appropriate ICT infrastructure which maintains the data for the Council other organisations who 
utilise the current Data Centre It is envisaged that the investment will future proof the Council and its 
partners for a further five years.

1,550 50 -

14 Neighbourhoods
Members' Priority Investment Fund - Street 
Cleaning Equipment

TBC
500 - -

Total New Schemes / 
Addition to existing

26,171 22,820 1,550

P
age 173



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

Who are we?

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members 
(reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions of the 
Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see the 
how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline dates 
are as follows:  

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline
Agenda Publication 
Deadline

Date of meeting

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 2nd June, 2017 Monday, 6th June, 2017 Tuesday, 14th June, 2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 6th July, 2017 Monday, 10th July, 2017 Tuesday, 18th July, 2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 5th October, 2017 Monday, 9th October, 2017

Tuesday, 17th October, 

2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 9th November, 2017

Monday, 13th November, 

2017

Tuesday, 21st November, 

2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 11th January, 2018 Monday, 15th January, 2018

Tuesday, 23rd January, 

2018

Budget Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 1st February, 2018 Monday, 5th February, 2018

Tuesday, 13th February, 

2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 8th March, 2018 Monday, 12th March, 2018 Tuesday, 20th March, 2018

What we do
The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors. 

How we do it
The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:
 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 

methodology.
 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 

service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; 
corporate financial monitoring and the annual budget development 
consultation, and for overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and 
Directors.

Page 174

Agenda Item 14



 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals.

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate.

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance.
 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 

performance.
 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 

external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 

Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council.

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate.

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews.

 Consider annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council).

Page 175



APPENDIX

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 
2017/18

14th June 2017

18th July 2017

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plans 2017/18 Performance management and 

monitoring
Presentation – Agilisys (presentation 
highlighting KPI’s)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Performance Monitoring (4th Quarter 
2016/17) – including:

 Corporate Complaints
 Health related Absences

Policy Framework

Presentation – Revenues and benefits 
Service

Member’s request - for information

Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 Guidelines, 
Timetable and Public Engagement

A presentation  outlining 
procedures for the development of 
the Council’s budgetary process 

Cyber Security Presentation on the Council’s 
cyber security strategy

Asset Strategy – Progress Report Update on the Borough’s Asset 
Strategy programme approved in 

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/17

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2016/17)
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance management and 
monitoring

Place Branding - Presentation Committee request

Revenue Finance Outturn Report 
2016/17 

Financial scrutiny

Capital Finance Outturn Report 2016/17 Financial scrutiny
Savings outturn Report 2016/17 Financial scrutiny
Collection Fund Outturn Report 2016/17 Financial scrutiny
Delegated Approvals 2016/17 Financial scrutiny
Notes of Health Related Absence 
meeting (9th March 2017)

For information

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool - minutes For information

Page 176



March 2016

17th October 2017

Work Programme 2016/2017 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2016/17

Performance monitoring and 
management

Proposed Local Positive Recruitment 
Criteria Policy

Consultation on policy proposals

Welfare Reform 2016 Presentation on proposals
Financial Update Report 2017/18 Financial scrutiny

Collection Fund 2017/18 Financial scrutiny

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2018/19 – 2022/23

Financial scrutiny

Revenue Budget Update 2018/19 to 
2020/21 and Savings Programme 
2018/19 – 2020/21

Financial scrutiny

Discretionary Fees and Charges 
2018/19

Financial scrutiny

Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2020/21 Financial scrutiny

Savings Programme 2018/19 – 2020/21 
– Workforce related proposals

Financial scrutiny

GMCA/AGMA  Scrutiny Pool - Minutes

21st November 2017

Work Programme 2016/17 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
 Directorate Plan Update: 1st & 2nd 

Quarters – 2017/18 (April – 
September)

 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

Performance Monitoring: 1st and 2nd 
Quarters 2017/18 (April – September)

 Corporate Complaints
 Health related absences 

Performance monitoring and 
management

Budget Monitoring :
 Financial Update 2017/18
 Collection fund Update 2017/18

Financial scrutiny

Local Government Ombudsman’s Performance management and 

Page 177



Annual Review 2015/16 monitoring

28th January 2018

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Update reports 
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

Budget Monitoring :
 Financial Update 2017/18
 Collection fund Update 2017/18

Presentation – Agilisys (presentation 
highlighting KPI’s)

Performance monitoring and 
management

Presentation of the final report of the 
Absence Management Study Group

Scrutiny of the Study Group’s 
recommendations

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool - Minutes

13th February 2018 (Budget Scrutiny meeting)

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Council Tax – Discount for Foster 
Carers

Budget development

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2017/18 – 2020/21

Budget Scrutiny

Treasury Management Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Corporate Debt Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Local Government Act 2003 (a statutory 
report on the robustness of the budget)

Budget Scrutiny

Revenue and Capital Budgets and 
Council Tax 2017/18  

Budget Scrutiny

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool – Minutes for information

20th March 2018

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Update reports 
 Resources Directorate
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Services) 
Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

Performance Monitoring : Performance monitoring and 

Page 178



 Corporate Sickness Absences
Corporate Complaints

management

Budget Monitoring:
 Financial Update 2017/18

Collection fund Update 2017/18

Financial scrutiny

GMCA/AGMA  Scrutiny Pool – Minutes

Issues to be scheduled:

1. Insurance  Claims: an annual report covering insurance claims will be 
presented to the Committee in the autumn of 2018, to align with the 
insurance annual cycle (September – September)

2. ICT Development Strategy – due in Spring 2018
3. Communications Strategy – due in Spring 2018
4. Homelessness Study Group – ongoing
5. Absence Management Study Group – final report due to the Committee 

in January 2018
 

Page 179



Document is Restricted

Page 180

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2016/17
	Append. 1 for LGO Annual Review 2016-17
	Append. 2 for LGO Annual Review 2016-17

	7 Proposed Local Positive Recruitment Criteria Policy
	8 Finance Update Report 2017/18
	Append. 1 for Finance Update Report 2017/18

	9 Collection Fund 2017/18
	10 Medium Term Finanical Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23
	Append. 1 for Medium Term Finanical Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23

	11 Revenue Budget Update 2018/19 to  2020/21 and Saving Programme 2018/19 to 2019/20
	12 Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19
	Append. 2 for Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19

	13 Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2020/21
	14 Work Programme 2017/18
	16 Revenue Budget Update 2018/19 to  2020/21 and Saving Programme 2018/19 to 2019/20 - Savings Proposals Appendix



